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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
17,791,393 19,570,061 21,053,382 22,609,471 24,878,288
(268,650,034) (295,507,921) (317,906,068) (341,403,012) (375,662,149)
8,909,918 9,719,639 10,720,611 11,940,685 13,360,188
(134,539,762) (146,766,549) (161,881,226) (180,304,344) (201,738,839)
5,378,404 5,368,250 6,147,584 6,514,383 7,095,770
(81,213,900)  (81,060,575) (92,828,518) (98,367,183) (107,146,127)
356,992 569,948 187,502 343,961 421,390
(5,390,579)  (8,606,215)  (2,831,280)  (5,193,811)  (6,362,989)
2,727,890 3,340,879 4,000,273 4,665,871 5,392,473
(41,191,139)  (50,447,273) (60,404,122) (70,454,652) (81,426,342)
446,632 440,562 385,252 389,410 419,913
(6,744,143)  (6,652,486)  (5,817,305)  (5,880,091)  (6,340,686)
403,243 400,275 404,300 479,143 540,578
(6,088,969)  (6,044,153)  (6,104,930)  (7,235,059)  (8,162,728)
8,506,675 9,319,364 10,316,311 11,461,542 12,819,610
(128,450,793) (140,722,396) (155,776,296) (173,069,284) (193,576,111)
4,512,047 5,333,535 6,152,743 6,885,075 7,422,930
(68,131,910)  (80,536,379)  (92,906,419) (103,964,633) (112,086,243)
2,587,057 2,811,653 2,896,619 2,805,107 2,699,895
(39,064,561)  (42,455,960) (43,738,947) (42,357,116) (40,768,415)
1,202,175 1,203,614 635,514 661,741 758,925
(18,152,843)  (18,174,571)  (9,596,261)  (9,992,289) (11,459,768)
471,809 323,051 540,386 371,001 708,551
(7,124,316)  (4,878,070)  (8,159,829)  (5,602,115) (10,699,120)
16,579,508 18,248,470 19,623,985 20,934,684 22,918,526
(250,350,571) (275,551,897) (296,322,174) (316,113,728) (346,069,743)
13,538,360 15,038,001 16,194,279 17,346,290 18,542,861
(204,429,236) (227,073,815) (244,533,613) (261,928,979) (279,997,201)
4,821,751 5,599,743 6,379,447 6,559,082 6,879,767
(72,808,440)  (84,556,119) (96,329,650) (99,042,138) (103,884,482)
8,065,556 8,815,148 9,246,510 9,791,974 10,611,922
(121,789,896) (133,108,735) (139,622,301) (147,858,807) (160,240,022)
651,053 623,110 568,322 794,590 823,525
(9,830,900)  (9,408,961)  (8,581,662) (11,998,309) (12,435,228)
1,537,660 1,458,065 1,254,791 1,449,863 1,829,272
(23,218,666) (22,016,782) (18,947,344) (21,892,931) (27,622,007)
88,804 205,832 319,789 157,101 53,197
(1,340,940)  (3,108,063)  (4,828,814)  (2,372,225) (803,275)
382,742 388,215 475,017 780,673 1,108,212
(5,779,404)  (5,862,047)  (7,172,757) (11,788,162) (16,734,001)
1,210,091 1,318,193 1,426,415 1,670,294 1,948,355
(18,272,374)  (19,904,714)  (21,538,867) (25,221,439) (29,420,161)
® 1,471,620 1,546,500 1,731,946 2,073,343 2,498,311
(22,221,462)  (23,352,150)  (26,152,385) (31,307,479) (37,724,496)
Tierl(CET1)

® 1,124,690 1,231,030 1,339,953 1,583,927 1,740,584
(16,982,819)  (18,588,553)  (20,233,290) (23,917,298)  (26,282,818)
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Tierl ® 79,902 79,904 79,906 79,906 199,894
(1,206,520)  (1,206,550)  (1,206,581)  (1,206,581)  (3,018,399)
Tier2 ® 267,028 235,566 312,087 409,510 557,833
(4,032,123)  (3,557,047)  (4,712,514)  (6,183,601)  (8,423,278)
® 10,986,302 11,856,530 12,605,577 13,712,804 15,485,352
(165,893,160) (179,033,603) (190,344,213) (207,064,699) (233,828,815)
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
540,862 510,128 542,898 602,557 629,350
(8,167,016)  (7,702,933)  (8,197,760)  (9,098,611)  (9,503,185)
436,140 398,104 441,930 477,760 486,871
(6,585,714)  (6,011,370)  (6,673,143)  (7,214,176)  (7,351,752)
82,549 90,935 72,903 78,141 86,926
(1,246,490)  (1,373,119)  (1,100,835)  (1,179,929)  (1,312,583)
225,818 197,049 205,268 213,963 224,096
(3,409,852)  (2,975,440)  (3,099,547)  (3,230,841)  (3,383,850)
N/A N/A N/A 136,647 138,605
(N/A) (N/A) (N/A)  (2,063,370)  (2,092,936)
84,172 86,446 98,166 N/A N/A
(1,270,997)  (1,305,335)  (1.,482,307) (N/A) (N\/B)
230,857 226,624 239,478 251,674 266,576
(3,485,941)  (3.422,022)  (3.616,118)  (3,800,277)  (4,025,298)
180,774 184,060 193,133 202,631 212,924
(2,729,687)  (2,779,308)  (2,916,308)  (3,059,728)  (3,215,152)
180,582 183,941 192,962 202,783 212,008
(2,726,788)  (2,777,509)  (2,913,726)  (3,062,023)  (3,202,680)
820,348 715,973 633,417 105,927 352,571
(12,387,255)  (10,811,192)  (9,564,597)  (1,599,498)  (5,323,822)
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
@ 1.07 0.99 0.95 0.93 0.90
@ 16.79 15.14 14.57 13.66 12.43
@ 2.66 2.25 2.28 2.33 2.17
® 2.49 2.10 2.15 2.20 2.03
(OO 1.65 1.55 1.53 1.48 1.38
15.26 17.83 13.43 12.97 13.81
) 33.28 34.59 32.96 31.27 30.49
1
1 ® 0.55 0.55 0.58 0.59 0.59
(8.31) (8.31) (8.76) (8.91) (8.91)
1 ® 0.55 0.55 0.58 0.59 0.59
(8.31) (8.31) (8.76) (8.91) (8.91)
1
2.53 2.20 1.95 0.30 1.01
(38.20) (33.22) (29.45) (4.53) (15.25)
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
® 2.39 2.37 1.81 1.59 1.40
© 189.43 173.40 208.37 252.18 288.75
(10) 4.53 4.12 3.77 4.02 4.06
Tierl(CET1) () 10.24 10.38 10.63 11.55 11.24
Tierl ) 10.96 11.06 11.26 12.13 12.53
() 13.40 13.04 13.74 15.12 16.13
O] 61.75 60.59 59.87 60.65 62.24
6.81 6.75 6.79 7.41 7.88
1
1 an 3.48 3.81 4.15 4.54 5.00
(52.55) (57.53) (62.67) (68.55) (75.50)
(€]
(@)
(3) CSRC 9 - 1
2010 33 1
O]
®)
©®) CBIRC
(7) CAS CAS
®)
(©)]
(10)
ayn
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
® 25 44.50 46.74 50.95 55.17 57.74
25 115.15 82.24 106.74 101.77 112.07
@ 10 7.15 6.98 7.26 5.53 4.68
10
® 16.82 16.58 18.27 15.25 13.83
® 4.96 3.00 2.13 1.72 1.54
18.28 24.86 18.70 16.93 15.90
86.94 89.23 71.48 61.48 47.10
10.35 9.55 6.94 8.91 8.82
(1) CBIRC
@
®) 10
(4) CBIRC
2019 1 2 3 4
173,606 150,861 151,936 152,947
(2,621,451) (2,278,001) (2,294,234) (2,309,500)
61,251 60,194 59,226 31,427
(924,890) (908,929) (894,313) (474,548)
263,874 (274,386) 112,649 250,434
(3,984,497) ((4,143,229)) (1,701,000) (3,781,553)
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1951 1979 2
2009 1
2010 7
1
IT
2019
24,878,288 13,360,188 18,542,861
16.13 2019 212,924
2019 3 4 37
390 3,445 19,216 52
23,149 13
4 11 5 16
2014 6
2019 500 36
1,000 Tierl 3
A A-1
Al P-1
A F1+
39

2019 12 31 MOF 40.03 35.29
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2019 12 31
/
CA 588,790,000 100.00
ABC
4,113,392, 449 100.00
9,500,000,000 100.00
UK 100,000,000 100.00
1,750,000,001 51.67
19,600,000 51.02
& 31,000,000 50.00
29,400,000 51.02
40,000,000 51.00
210,000,000 51.00
100,000,000 51.00
@ 2,949,916, 475 51.00
20,000,000 100.00
® 7,556,038, 271 100.00
10,000,000, 000 100.00
* 12,000,000, 000 100.00
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(3) 2019 12 31

(4) 2019 12 31

2018 12 31

51
1,381

3,761
51
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/
53,342,800,000
(&) 50.00
@ 4,075,200,000 24.29
@ 100,000,000 29.50
(1) 2015 5 28 CFA XAF
La Banque Sino-Congolaise pour 1®Afrique BSCA.
BSCA. 50
BSCA.
&)
20
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464,011

2019 9,680
7,240 735
8,459
2019 12 31
10,678 2.3
63,647 13.7
50,858 11.0
66,738 14.4
95,807 20.6
46,065 9.9
121,024 26.1
735 0.2
8,459 1.8
464,011 100.0
2019 12 31
528 0.1
28,408 6.1
234,804 50.6
161,158 34.7
39,113 8.4
464,011 100.0
2019 12 31
120,419 25.9
17,184 3.7
20,904 4.5
17,099 3.7
120,899 26.1
375 0.1
7,351 1.6
104,409 22.5
29,415 6.3
25,956 5.6
464,011 100.0
2019 12 31
30 89,697 19.3
31 40 88,018 19.0
41 50 159,282 34.3
51 127,014 27.4
464,011 100.0

42/492



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2019 12 31
252,296 54.4
211,715 45.6
464,011 100.0
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2019
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2019
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2019

50
0.39

0.5

CPI

0.3

25.58

30
2020

GDP 6.1

3 2019
2019
225 22.3 23.3
CRB
0.5
1
2.9
2019 M2
3.08
3

2020
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2020 CovID-19
56G
CovID-19
CovID-19 CPI
2020 CoviD-19
PBOC
2020
2020
6
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2018 12 31 2019 12 31
(@) (@)
5,452,275 45.8 5,898,736 44.3
1,884,346 15.8 2,131,098 16.0
1,366,955 11.5 1,856,415 13.9
3,210,049 26.9 3,443,297 25.8
11,913,625 100.0 13,329,546 100.0
27,060 - 30,642 -
11,940,685 - 13,360,188 -
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
(@) (@)
90 79,458 0.7 71,118 0.5
91 360 57,026 0.5 49,650 0.4
361 3 50,632 0.4 47,787 0.4
3 15,816 0.1 14,438 0.1
202,932 1.7 182,993 1.4
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10 )
A 117,031 0.88
B 38,700 0.29
C 30,864 0.23
D 30,216 0.22
E 24,143 0.18
F 22,348 0.17
G 22,000 0.16
H 21,122 0.16
I 19,592 0.15
J 19,572 0.15
345,588 2.59
2019 12 31 4.68
10 13.83
@
2019 CBIRC
IT
5

2018 12 31 2019 12 31
Q) Q)
11,397,204 95.67 12,843,935 96.36
326,419 2.74 298,401 2.24
190,002 1.59 187,210 1.40
45,388 0.38 66,462 0.50
126,274 1.06 103,763 0.78
18,340 0.15 16,985 0.12
11,913,625 100.00 13,329,546 100.00
27,060 - 30,642 -
11,940,685 - 13,360,188 -
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oOoOooodn
2019 12 31 2.792 187.21
0.19 1.40
28.018 298.401 2.24
0.50

2018 12 31 2019 12 31
154,548 81.3 2.37 148,695 79.4 2.10
98,184 51.7 4.50 81,488 43.5 3.70
56,364 29.6 1.30 67,207 35.9 1.37
— — — 21 — —
30,196 15.9 0.65 31,699 16.9 0.59
11,285 5.9 0.31 12,386 6.6 0.30
6,310 3.3 1.66 7,465 4.0 1.57
1,276 0.7 0.81 1,746 0.9 1.04
5,516 2.9 2.56 4,281 2.3 1.62
5,759 3.1 2.30 5,785 3.1 1.80
50 - 5.18 36 - 4.92
5,258 2.8 1.35 6,795 3.7 1.62
190,002 100.0 1.59 187,210 100.0 1.40

2019 12 31 5,853 148,695
0.27 2.10
1,503 31,699 0.06

0.59
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2018 12 31 2019 12 31
72,033 46.6 6.02 60,529 40.7 5.06
4,561 3.0 0.54 5,725 3.8 0.67
8,450 5.5 1.38 10,038 6.8 1.45
7,045 4.6 0.51 12,630 8.5 0.77
34,687 22.4 10.73 30,541 20.5 9.83
1,082 0.7 0.25 659 0.4 0.13
4,935 3.2 2.06 2,543 1.7 1.13
5,994 3.9 3.06 4,697 3.2 2.34
7,871 5.1 0.86 15,150 10.2 1.46
142 0.1 0.09 87 0.1 0.05
IT 111 0.1 0.37 84 0.1 0.30
7,637 4.8 4.09 6,012 4.0 2.92
154,548 100.0 2.37 148,695 100.0 2.10
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
7 _ - 6 - -
27,776 14.6 1.04 29,228 15.6 0.98
19,249 10.1 1.03 16,805 9.0 0.79
53,114 27.9 2.90 46,883 25.1 2.34
28,691 15.1 1.64 35,969 19.2 1.81
9,419 5.0 2.05 8,987 4.8 1.79
46,488 24.5 1.76 42,537 22.7 1.43
5,258 2.8 1.35 6,795 3.6 1.62
190,002 100.0 1.59 187,210 100.0 1.40
( )
2019
1 2 3
12
2018 12 31 269,164 68,464 148,984 486,612
1 2 (7,791) 7,791 — —
2 3 - (24,546) 24,546 -
2 1 6,921 (6,921) - -
3 2 - 3,872 (3.872) —
123,577 - - 123,577
37,603 21,276 54,182 113,061
(65,429) (12,216) (41,092) (118,737)
- - (51,398) (51,398)
2019 12 31 364,045 57,720 131,350 553,115
@ 3 17

@

55/492



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

Q)

2019 12 31

2019

VaR

VaR 1 250
99
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VaR
( )
2018 2019
109 76 119 44 75 89 116 57
1 123 117 300 12 90 120 287 56
17 14 19 9 9 15 25 5
VaR 120 134 252 57 115 146 291 92
o VaR
20194 1= &1 HMBIB EOVaRD FEAE
300
— VRS
—_— WY AS
955 — BBV
— A
200 .
w

50 et

&0
WIS L__,.J \V_’_,-.——\ _ ey Fat
0
HGE K098 M9 Hn9E HNGE g HG4E HGE Mg g g i
iR 28 aA 44 sA & f A &R oA 198 1nAa 2R
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OooooOodd
2019 12 31 1
476,113 1,121,355
3 1 1
1 12 5 5

2018 12 31 (3,394,064) 385,096 1,411,500 (1,597,468) 1,214,752 1,830,838 34,524
2019 12 31 (3,911,081) 308,220 2,481,506 (1,121,355) 814,042 1,986,997 79,447
D) 443

2018 12 31 2019 12 31
100 (24,024) (67,879) (25,607) (42,579)
100 24,024 67,879 25,607 42,579

12
2019 12 31 100
25,607 42,579
2019 1,130 1.62 2019

1,289 3,542

2018 12 31 2019 12 31

13,131 1,913 50,482 7,236

2,335 340 (25,767) (3,694)

() 443
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2018 12 31 2019 12 31
+5 (110) 1,346
-5 110 (1,346)
+5 (644) (832)
-5 644 832
5
1,346

60/492



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2019
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oooooog
2019
57.74 112.07 2019 4
5.5 125.6 2019
17,318.3 13,508.5
128.2
1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5
2018 12 31 20,466 (10,794,068) 221,913  (979,235)  (71,719) 3,467,506 7,108,745 2,509,038 1,482,646
2019 12 31 25,889 (11,586,444) 536,345  (724,010) (800) 3,066,681 8,144,318 2,297,152 1,759,131
) 44.2
CBIRC
CBIRC 100
2017
2019 4 5.5
125.6 92
1 2
2019 4
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1 HQLA 4,795,414
2 11,528,794 1,067,628
3 1,704,977 85,246
4 9,823,817 982,382
5 6,890,802 2,687,408
6 3,153,463 775,132
7 3,694,533 1,869,470
8 42,806 42,806
9 13,502
10 2,625,637 820,347
11 672,415 672,415
12 65 65
13 1,953,157 147,867
14 120,560 120,560
15 1,485,411 67,115
16 4,776,560
17 182,318 179,614
18 931,644 461,185
19 763,419 763,419
20 1,877,381 1,404,218
21 | HQLA 4,230,135
22 3,372,342
23 125.6

CBIRC
CBIRC 100

2
2019 3 0.5
17,285.8 13,390.2
2019 4 0.9
17,318.3 13,508.5
2019 3 2019 4
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2019 3
6 6 12 1
ASF
1 1,917,569 _ _ 244,889 | 2,162,458
2 1,917,569 _ _ 199,889 | 2,117,458
3 _ _ _ 45,000 45,000
4 9,671,477 | 2,101,936 173 27 | 10,686,604
5 1,806,993 _ _ — | 1,716,644
6 7,864,484 | 2,101,936 173 27 | 8,969,960
7 6,639,574 | 1,798,297 481,559 317,876 | 4,198,107
8 2,315,519 _ _ — | 1,157,759
9 4,324,055 | 1,798,297 481,559 317,876 | 3,040,348
10 _ _ _ _ _
11 161 | 1,593,048 198,690 183,333 238,615
12 | NsFR 44,063

13
161 | 1,593,048 198,690 139,270 238,615
14 [AsF 17,285,784

ASF
NSFR

B s 810, 389

16
185 114,322 84,040 _ 99,273
17 2,700 | 3,289,762 | 2,151,392 | 9,084,365 | 10,176,483

1 HQLA

18

_ _ _ 112,055 112,055
1 HQLA

19
466 707,160 249,658 52,639 283,714

20
PSE 6 | 2,404,513 | 1,746,654 | 4,760,635 | 6,076,014

21
35 _ 592,684 45,757 208,612 448,535
22 1 90,967 92,126 | 3,847,468 | 3,361,874

23
35 1 68 131 106 170
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y HOLA
2,236 87,122 62,954 311,568 342,826
25 _ _ _ _ _
26 107,271 577.658 648,760 922.176 | 2.126,459
27
28 ceP
3,880 3,298
29 | NSFR 42,466 _
30 NSFR
) 11,370 11,370
31
107,271 577,658 648,760 875,830 | 2,111,791
32 3,697,936 177,582
33 |RSF 13,390,186
34 129.1
1 NSFR
30 26
2019 4
6 6 12 1
ASF
1 1,948,665 _ _ 244.889 | 2,193,554
2 1,948,665 _ _ 199,889 | 2,148,554
3 _ _ _ 45,000 45,000
4 9,712,785 | 2,033,536 186 26 | 10,666,568
5 1,893,705 _ _ — | 1,799,020
6 7,819,080 | 2,033,536 186 26 | 8,867,548
7 6,611,941 | 1,654,872 600,276 315,201 | 4,240,135
8 2.484.823 _ _ — | 1,242,411
9 4.127.118 | 1,654,872 600,276 315,201 | 2,997,724
10 _ _ _ _ _
11 202 | 1,717,344 151,551 185,784 218,056
12 NSFR 43,503
13
202 | 1,717,344 151,551 142,281 218,056
14 |ASF 17,318,314
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ASF
NSFR
15 HQLA 896,117
16
2,654 129,416 88,991 —_ 110,530
17 11,875 | 3,595,218 | 2,034,468 | 9,345,383 | 10,394,197
1 HQLA
18
_ _ _ 185,449 185,449
1 HQLA
19
9,631 | 1,067,252 174,756 55,702 304,970
20
PSE 7 | 2,350,345 | 1,711,223 | 4,821,147 | 6,097,491
21
35 _ 611,528 61,197 184,359 449,642
22 1 92,218 93,877 | 3,971,513 | 3,468,808
23
35 1 86 100 133 181
" HQLA
2,236 85,403 54,612 311,572 337,479
25 _ _ _ _ —
26 162,978 476,946 599,230 745,839 | 1,916,376
27
28 ccp
1,020 867
29 NSFR 44,172 669
30 NSFR
@ 10,918 10,918
31
162,978 476,946 599,230 700,647 | 1,903,922
32 3,971,804 191,264
33 [RSF 13,508, 486
34 128.2
1 NSFR

30
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2019

Q)

2019
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2019
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©

CBIRC MOF 5
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2019

2019

2019 12 31

44
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@
@
2019
629,350 4.4 30.49
0.78 3 212,924
10,293 (5.08 )

2018 2019
477,760 486,871 9,111 1.9
78,141 86,926 8,785 11.2
46,656 55,553 8,897 19.1
602,557 629,350 26,793 4.4
213,963 224,096 10,133 4.7
136,647 138,605 1,958 1.4
251 118 (133) -53.0
251,696 266,531 14,835 5.9
2) 45 67 -
251,674 266,576 14,902 5.9
49,043 53,652 4,609 9.4
202,631 212,924 10,293 5.08
202,783 212,008 9,315 4.6
(152) 826 978 -
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OooooOodd
2019 77.4 2019
486,871 9,111
48,877 39,766
2019 2.17 2.03
16 17
LPR
PBOC
2018 2019
11,433,884 502,616 4.40 12,859,889 565,465 4.40
() 5,796,234 216,118 3.73 6,373,176 232,571 3.65
5,421,191 204,593 3.77 5,988,985 220,739 3.69
@ 375,043 11,525 3.07 384,191 11,832 3.08
2,560,993 40,701 1.59 2,286,277 35,024 1.53
® 750,474 25,289 3.37 941,437 26,081 2.77
20,541,585 784,724 3.82 22,460,779 859,141 3.83
@ (453,657) (534,803)
(O) 1,551,629 1,163,630
21,639,557 23,089,606
16,398,914 227,819 1.39 17,615,216 279,737 1.59
® 1,441,140 40,228 2.79 1,734,711 44,994 2.59
® 1,123,025 38,917 3.47 1,386,484 47,539 3.43
18,963,079 306,964 1.62 20,736,411 372,270 1.80
O) 1,025,371 1,096,337
19,988,450 21,832,748
477,760 486,871
2.20 2.03
2.33 2.17
@
® MOF
(©))
(O]
®)
®)
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62,703 146 62,849
21,054 (4,601) 16,453
(4,208) (1,469) (5.677)
5,290 (4,498) 792
84,839 (10,422) 74,417
19,315 32,603 51,918
7,614 (2,848) 4,766
9,033 (411) 8,622
35,962 29,344 65,306
48,877 (39,766) 9,111
2019 859,141 74,417
1,919,194
62,849 12.5 565,465
1,426,005
22,993 7.9 313,430
492,514 1
35,074 18.3 226,849
714,345 7
4,018 51.6 11,805
198,925 118
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764 6.1 13,381
20,221 3
2018 2019
6,497,777 290,437 4.47 6,990,291 313,430 4.48
2,323,836 98,664 4.25 2,245,236 96,055 4.28
4,173,941 191,773 4.59 4,745,055 217,375 4.58
182,070 7,787 4.28 380,995 11,805 3.10
4,341,210 191,775 4.42 5,055,555 226,849 4.49
412,827 12,617 3.06 433,048 13,381 3.09
11,433,884 502,616 4.40 12,859,889 565,465 4.40
2 2019
16,453 232,571
576,942 8
5,677 35,024
274,716 6
PBOC
792 26,081
190,963
60
65,306 372,270
1,773,332 18
51,918 279,737

20 1,216,302
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2018 2019
2,279,545 58,406 2.56 2,370,806 63,971 2.70
4,559,749 32,384 0.71 4,724,887 38,121 0.81
6,839,294 90,790 1.33 7,095,693 102,092 1.44
4,514,210 111,283 2.47 4,985,641 133,277 2.67
5,045,410 25,746 0.51 5,533,882 44,368 0.80
9,559,620 137,029 1.43 10,519,523 177,645 1.69
16,398,914 227,819 1.39 17,615,216 279,737 1.59
4,766
44,994 293,571
20
8,622 47,539
263,459 4
Tier2
2019 8,785 11.2
86,926
7.1
13.9
18.0
28.4
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2018 2019
10,680 11,443 763 7.1
8,876 10,109 1,233 13.9
20,929 19,801 (1,128) -5.4
25,586 30,181 4,595 18.0
19,640 25,209 5,569 28.4
1,782 1,895 113 6.3
3,598 3,899 301 8.4
434 474 40 9.2
91,525 103,011 11,486 12.5
13,384 16,085 2,701 20.2
78,141 86,926 8,785 11.2
2019 55,553 8,897
2,998
2,667
8,596
2018 2019
16,069 19,067
8,460 5,793
30 -

22,097 30,693
46,656 55,553
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oOoOooodn
2019 10,133 224,096
0.78 30.49
14.0 IFRS 16
32.3
2018 2019
123,614 124,267 653 0.5
47,173 48,246 1,073 2.3
17,652 23,349 5,697 32.3
16,413 18,711 2,298 14.0
5,330 5,688 358 6.7
3,781 3,835 54 1.4
213,963 224,096 10,133 4.7
2019 138,605
1,722 131,833
2019 4,609 9.4 53,652

20.13
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2018 2019
274,658 45.6 271,719 43.2
233,801 38.8 239,963 38.1
65,628 10.9 79,114 12.6
28,470 4.7 38,554 6.1
602,557 100.0 629,350 100.0
2018 2019
59,675 9.9 53,411 8.5
111,918 18.6 117,085 18.6
84,055 13.9 90,032 14.3
86,126 14.3 86,083 13.7
85,363 14.2 90,460 144
122,886 20.4 129,342 20.6
20,398 3.4 21,320 3.4
32,136 5.3 41,617 6.5
602,557 100.0 629,350 100.0
39
2018 2019
228,440 37.9 236,740 37.6
374,117 62.1 392,610 62.4
602,557 100.0 629,350 100.0
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ooooOoog
®)
2019 12 31 2,268,817 10.0 24,878,288
1,358,068 11.8
537,855 7.8 105,212 3.8
97,184 14.7
337,550 91.0
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
11,940,685 - 13,360,188 -
479,143 - 540,578 -
11,461,542 50.7 12,819,610 51.5
6,885,075 30.5 7,422,930 29.8
2,805,107 12.4 2,699,895 10.9
661,741 2.9 758,925 3.1
371,001 1.6 708,551 2.8
425,005 1.9 468,377 1.9
22,609,471 100.0 24,878,288 100.0
2019 12 31 13,360,188 1,419,503
11.9
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
11,524,215 96.7 12,909,633 96.8
6,514,383 54.7 7,095,770 53.2
343,961 2.9 421,390 3.2
4,665,871 39.1 5,392,473 40.4
389,410 3.3 419,913 3.2
11,913,625 100.0 13,329,546 100.0
27,060 - 30,642 -
11,940,685 - 13,360,188 -
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
2,179,691 33.5 2,203,081 31.0
4,334,692 66.5 4,892,689 69.0
6,514,383 100.0 7,095,770 100.0
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2018 12 31 2019 12 31
1,195,669 18.3 1,196,978 16.9
839,578 12.9 852,697 12.0
o 611,456 9.4 693,376 9.8
1,380,611 21.2 1,642,017 23.1
323,345 5.0 310,828 4.4
432,320 6.6 511,348 7.2
239,574 3.7 225,010 3.2
195,954 3.0 201,044 2.8
916,926 14.1 1,037,898 14.6
162,029 2.5 191,141 2.7
IT
30,167 0.5 27,612 0.4
@ 186,754 2.8 205,821 2.9
6,514,383 100.0 7,095,770 100.0
@
2019 346,928
36,943
@
2019
2019 12 31 5 @ ) ®)
® ®)
5 76.4 0.5
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2019 12 31 726,602 15.6
13.7
6.3
22.6
24.8
28.8
ABC E
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
3,660,574 78.4 4,162,431 77.2
158,009 3.4 168,036 3.1
215,616 4.6 264,305 4.9
380,719 8.2 475,001 8.8
249,987 5.4 321,968 6.0
966 - 732 -
4,665,871 100.0 5,392,473 100.0
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
303,703 2.5 319,025 2.4
2,674,175 22.4 2,996,889 22.4
1,862,337 15.6 2,136,948 16.0
1,833,704 15.4 2,000,981 15.0
1,749,376 14.7 1,982,054 14.9
460,207 3.9 503,266 3.8
2,640,713 22.2 2,970,470 22.3
389,410 3.3 419,913 3.2
11,913,625 100.0 13,329,546 100.0
27,060 - 30,642 -
11,940,685 - 13,360,188 -
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2019 12 31 7,422,930 537,855
7.8 436,938
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
6,160,441 90.8 6,597,379 90.3
384,249 5.7 384,243 5.3
37,963 0.5 100,619 1.4
O 201,873 3.0 227,369 3.0
6,784,526 100.0 7,309,610 100.0
100,549 - 113,320
6,885,075 - 7,422,930 -
@
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
3,039,646 49.3 3,531,300 53.5
1,460,989 23.8 1,388,164 21.0
982,181 15.9 1,100,892 16.7
228,640 3.7 216,576 3.3
448,985 7.3 360,447 5.5
6,160,441 100.0 6,597,379 100.0
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
3 361,988 5.9 434,169 6.6
3 12 991,780 16.1 1,066,476 16.2
1 5 3,074,102 49.9 3,134,611 47.5
5 1,732,571 28.1 1,962,123 29.7
6,160,441 100.0 6,597,379 100.0
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
5,861,326 95.1 6,267,575 95.0
239,670 3.9 272,831 4.1
59,445 1.0 56,973 0.9
6,160,441 100.0 6,597,379 100.0
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2018 12 31 2019 12 31

643,245 9.5 801,361 10.9

4,422,090 65.2 4,851,608 66.4

1,719,191 25.3 1,656,641 22.7

6,784,526 100.0 7,309,610 100.0

100,549 - 113,320 -

6,885,075 - 7,422,930 -

2019 12 31
2,489,056 1,388,164
1,100,892
2019 12 31 10
(€))
2017 30,774 3.85 2027 1 6 -
2017 26,222 3.83 2024 1 6 -
2017 26,092 4.39 2027 9 8 -
2019 23,785 3.28 2024 2 11 -
2017 20,936 4.11 2027 3 20 -
2017 19,298 4.13 2022 4 21 -
2017 18,216 4.30 2024 8 21 -
2017 17,654 3.70 2022 1 6 -
2015 17,045 3.97 2025 2 27 -
2019 16,743 3.75 2029 1 25 -
@
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2019 12 31 1,983,842 9.5 22,918,526
1,196,571 6.9
379,409 26.2
103,904
66.1
327,539 42.0
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
17,346,290 82.9 18,542,861 80.9
1,449,863 6.9 1,829,272 8.0
157,101 0.8 53,197 0.2
780,673 3.7 1,108,212 4.9
286,303 1.4 330,627 1.4
914,454 4.3 1,054,357 4.6
20,934,684 100.0 22,918,526 100.0
2019 12 31 1,196,571 6.9
18,542,861 0.8
0.7
57.6
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
17,072,198 99.6 18,219,470 99.5
6,559,082 38.3 6,879,767 37.6
1,889,911 11.0 1,986,306 10.9
4,669,171 27.3 4,893,461 26.7
9,791,974 57.1 10,611,922 57.9
4,473,942 26.1 4,953,306 27.0
5,318,032 31.0 5,658,616 30.9
(O 721,142 4.2 727,781 4.0
73,448 0.4 95,744 0.5
17,145,646 100.0 18,315,214 100.0
200,644 - 227,647 -
17,346,290 - 18,542,861 -
@
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2018 12 31 2019 12 31
73,421 0.4 63,721 0.4
3,898,571 22.7 4,237,786 23.1
2,366,330 13.8 2,590,965 14.2
3,016,435 17.6 3,193,377 17.4
2,945,676 17.2 3,122,628 17.0
837,735 4.9 893,920 4.9
3,934,030 23.0 4,117,073 22.5
73,448 0.4 95,744 0.5
17,145,646 100.0 18,315,214 100.0
200,644 - 227,647 -
17,346,290 - 18,542,861 -

2018 12 31 2019 12 31
10,561,889 61.6 11,147,306 60.8
3 1,744,274 10.2 1,830,041 10.0
3 12 2,629,576 15.3 2,520,189 13.8
1 5 2,209,312 12.9 2,805,074 15.3
5 595 - 12,604 0.1
17,145,646 100.0 18,315,214 100.0
200,644 - 227,647 -
17,346,290 - 18,542,861 -

2019 12 31 1,959,762 349,983
199,886 173,556 29,684
174,910 277,016 741,101
1 0.46 5.00

2018 12 31 2019 12 31
349,983 20.9 349,983 17.9
79,899 4.8 199,886 10.2
173,556 10.4 173,556 8.9
18,992 1.0 29,684 1.5
154,257 9.2 174,910 8.9
239,190 14.3 277,016 14.1
652,944 39.0 741,101 37.8
1,473 0.1 2,219 0.1
4,493 0.3 11,407 0.6
1,674,787 100.0 1,959,762 100.0
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2018 12 31 2019 12 31

906,782 45.1 1,056,796 43.8
242,489 12.1 339,829 141
191,250 9.5 216,229 9.0
131,414 6.5 151,040 6.3
538,870 26.8 646,134 26.8

2,010,805 100.0 2,410,028 100.0

©
1ASB IFRS 16 2019 1 1
IFRS CAS
IFRS CAS

86/492



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
@
@
2019 12 6,879,767
320,685 7,517,160
658,816
13,846 2,620
569,002 2019 5.9978
758.8 213
130.5
662,905
757
309
45 71
2019
35,553 176,140
2019 195.1
127.4 1,626,552

217,988

6
2019
964.2
628 312
3,526

3 2,540 98.3

87/492



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
2019
2019
1
7.6617
2019
3.1851 25.3
1 5
2019
3
2019 446.7
615.8 10.0 15.5
2019
43.4691 2.7978
M&A
2019
8.583 24.3
100
1
MEA 100
ME&A

M&A
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2019

2019
501,857

2019

2019

2019

Tier2

13.7

2019

2019

Tier3

5.894

48,689
e

89/492

4,162,431

10,027

819,948

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

837

ETC

10,611,922



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
2019
1,059 71
24.51 7.1
B C
30 2019
120 16.5
2019 2.01 14.6
ETC
2019 ETC 20
ETC 20
2019 123 1,404.0

17 280.6

320.53 80.72
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©
2019 37,927,469
34,968,899 2,958,570
2019 12 31 7,422,930 537,855
7.8
2019

2019
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@
2019
2019 12 31 @
2.029.39 369.265 22.2
781.938
253.105 47.9
(1) 2019 9
2019
3,028.36 20.1 14.9
9.446.16 7.4 46.6
7.819.38 47.9 38.5
20,203.90 2.2 100.0
2019
16.346.64 18.9 80.5
3.947.26 38.6 19.5
20,293.90 2.2 100.0
2019
1
2019 9,883,859 7.2
3,899
8.4
23
29
2019 50,794 645,031
31.1
2019

4,580.18 82,065.93
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2019
382.7
340
300 1
70 120
2019
27.2
2019
1,804 44.8
ABC
2019 22 54.726
14 31.417 8

23.309
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O
4
T+0
2019 310 20.6
2019 17,412 28.6 2019
61.83 26.2
e e e
e
2019 7.23
16.6 2019 180.8
1.84 97.8 2019

1.24 9.3
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3
ABC e

ABC e ABC e ABC e
ABC e 4
e

e
2019 589.4 372.1
APl SDK H5
6 300
3
K12
100
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@®
2019
2019
592.3 @ 217.9 58.2
46.3 1.1092
386 2019 4.66
1.20
8.134 1.37
PBOC
22.05 PBOC 2
(1) 2019 CBIRC
10
799 100
e e e
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@
2019
1,191.0
13.4 1.5
5
2019
MEA 90
2015 10 13 1
2019 12 31 5 3 2
2
1 2
1.2865 3.0876 @

@
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Q)
140.78
2019
2019
111.2
95
1,378.1
14
53.02
@
2019 6
17 58
46.1
ABC
2019
1PO
4
10
4
50.741
2019

50
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2019
5.9
0.63
970.7
2019 39.2
24.5
19
2019
8.1
ABC
137 231.5
89
38
5
56
64
2019
3
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7,863

8.6

2019

@

99/492

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oooooog
2019
31.8
2019
1
2019 0.69 0.217
22
169 234.4
121 167.2
4
ESG



2019
20.6

20

2019

19

17.7

180.8

56

2019

1.24

7.23

17.74

2019

1
2019
17.6
56
1 N
310
61.83
1.84
9.3
312
33.55
16.6
83.8 35.5
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56
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2019
0.34 0.24 0.1
92
99.59
WeChat
2019
0.69 12.59 WeChat
8.33 21.61
9,255
(9]
2019 IT 12.79
4.0 4.1 4.2
Al 4
30
NLP
95 OCR 99.99
12
3 E
112 177
IT

41

101/492



2.0

C3
C3

IPv4/1Pv6
WAN

699
100
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Q)

ABC

V3.0

1,300

2019 13.7
0.79 APP
0.146
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) 6 @
®
V3.0
2019 5 59
(®)
7
@ 8 ®
2019 42,299
2,140,452
207,821 2,486,427
2019 70.3 19.1
13.7 143.3
61

@
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@ 6
©)
O] 7
G 8
©
2019 538,070
5,587,815 286,506
1,926,798
2
37.8 119.8
80.2 564
ABC e
ABC e 2019
ABC e 111.4 198.6
1.00 1.74
0.6
e
2019

42.2
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@
2019
2019 832 100
40
3 3
2019 832
167.55 18.1 1,091.44
@ 64.16 19.4 394.19
@ 68.82 20.6 402.63
3 3
17.54 18.4 112.77
93
20
2019
1,993
928
3 3
2019
17 14

34
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190
3
100
70.17
3
4
2019
.
1) 2019
() 2019
2020

2020

16.7

0.73

12

3,832

2018
23.58

35.3

100

1.53
6.2
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57 46
86.6 87.9
12
7
e
2019
17.4 10.37
111.25

370

( [2018]346 )
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)
2019 12 31 7.8 8,699,905
13.7 4,553,104
7.9 7,960,558
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
4,005,882 - 4,553,104 -
(210, 395) - (226,412) -
3,795,487 47.0 4,326,692 49.7
® 3,603,324 44.7 3,622,774 41.6
668,563 8.3 750,439 8.7
8,067,374 100.0 8,699,905 100.0
7,380,598 97.7 7,960,558 98.5
173,006 2.3 125,058 1.5
7,553,604 100.0 8,085,616 100.0
(€Y)
2019
41.5 97,772
2018 2019
175,438 199,258 23,820 13.6
93,223 116,959 23,736 25.5
® 111,567 115,125 3,558 3.2
193,782 197,424 3,642 1.9
30,405 34,592 4,187 13.8
4,253 4,724 471 11.1
228,440 236,740 8,300 3.6
86,542 90,654 4,112 4.8
72,661 48,228 (24,433) -33.6
137 86 (1) -37.2
69,100 97,772 28,672 41.5
@
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2019
27 3.08 2019 12 31
1.58 0.5 315.18
4.99
2018 2019
4.60 4.59
1.30 1.51
13.31 14.61
37.25 37.37
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
54.28 57.20
2.08 1.58
252.94 315.18
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)
2019 2021
3
2017 2019
1 ( FSB )

ICAAP ) 2019 2019

1CAAP

CBIRC

2019 3 4 60 120

2 Tier2 Tier2

2019 8 9 85 35
Tierl

2019 5 2009 5 25 15 2019 8

2014 8 30 10 Tier2

WWWw.SSe.com.cn
www . hkexnews . hk

2019
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®
2019 12 31
7.09
2019 3 31 2019 6 30 2019 9 30 2019 12 31
Tierl 1,725,849 1,724,878 1,910,079 1,940,478
25,565,737 26,148,038 27,202,211 27,369,508
6.75 6.60 7.02 7.09
1 24,878,288
2 (73,445)
3 -
4 26,109
5 5,074
6 2,541,365
7 (7,883)
8 27,369,508
1
24,073,214
2 Tierl (7,883)
3
24,065,331
4 24,511
5 26,825
6 -
7 (327)
8
9 45
10 -
11 51,054
12 706,684
13 -
14 5,074
15 -
16 711,758
17 4,743,864
18 (2,202,499)
19 2,541,365
20 Tierl 1,940,478
21 27,369,508
22 7.09
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O)
CBIRC

2019

27,369,508

1,783,370

1,950,322

2,576,967

314,230,204

9,883,859

749,706

0TC 3,106,650

O© 00 N O OB W N

253,919
10. 3 87,562
11. 450,622
12. 523,181
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@ 2010 7 15
@
(©) 1@
(O]
2017 49 SSF 3 2019
12 31 SSF
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2019 12 31
349,983,033,873
800,000,000
2019 12 31
1.00 319,244,210,777
1.00 30,738,823,096
349,983,033,873
2
2019 12 31
100 800,000,000
800,000,000
Tierl CBIRC
100 5
5.50 6.00 2 4.84 5.32
3 2
Q=V/P
v p
% 1 2.43
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2009 1 15 260,000,000,000 | 260,000,000,000 | 260,000,000,000 | 260,000,000,000
2010 4 21 10,000,000,000 | 270,000,000,000 | 10,000,000,000 | 270,000,000,000
2010 7 15 22,235,294,000 | 292,235,294,000 | 22,235,294,000 | 292,235,294,000
2010 7 16 25,411,765,000 | 317,647,059,000 | 25,411,765,000 | 317,647,059,000
2010 8 5 3,811,764,000 321,458,823,000 | 3,811,764,000 | 321,458,823,000
2010 8 13 3,335,294,000 324,794,117,000 | 3,335,294,000 | 324,794,117,000
2018 7 2 25,188,916,873 | 349,983,033,873 | 25,188,916,873 | 349,983,033,873
2019 12 31 349,983,033,873 349,983,033,873
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2014 10 31

2014 11 13 400,000,000 400,000,000 40,000,000,000 | 40,000,000,000

2015 3 6 400,000,000 800,000,000 40,000,000,000 | 80,000,000,000

2015 3 18 ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’

2019 12 31 800,000,000 80,000,000,000
Tierl
22,819 366,871 389,690 2020 2

29 22,760

389,847 412,607
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2019 12 31
1 140,087,446,351 40.03
MOF 2 123,515,185, 240 35.29
- 30,561,081,146 8.73
SSF 11 23,520,968, 297 6.72
2
- - 005L- - 2,554,275,099 0.73
CT001 Hu
- - 005L - 2,539,312,027 0.73
- FH002 Hu
- 2,518,891, 687 0.72
28 1,842,751,186 0.53
- 1,395,843,555 0.40
- 1,259, 445,843 0.36
2019 12 31
MOF CSRC
Cai Zi[2019] 49 MOF SSF
13,723,909,471
Guo Fa[2017] 49 SSF
3 SSF
SSF H 805,709,096
- - - 005L-CT001 Hu
- - - 005L - FH002 Hu
- - - 005L-
CTO01 Hu - - - 005L - FHO02 Hu
5,093,587,126 1.46
3,778,337,530 1.08

122/492



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OoOoOoOoOodno
2018 12 31 2019 12 31
@ @
() ()
® 25,188,916,873 7.20 - - - 25,188,916,873 7.20
1. @ 19,959,672,543 5.70 - - - 19,959,672,543 5.70
2. ® 5,037,783,373 1.44 - - - 5,037,783,373 1.44
3.
® 191,460,957 0.05 - - - 191,460,957 0.05
324,794,117,000 92.80 - - - 324,794,117,000 92.80
1.
294,055,293,904 84.02 - - - 294,055,293,904 84.02
2.
® 30,738,823,096 8.78 - - - 30,738,823,096 8.78
349,983,033,873 100.00 - - - 349,983,033,873 100.00
()
@)
®3) MOF
CSRC
5 - 2007
O] 3
2021 7 2 5,229,244,330 19,959,672,543 330,023,361,330
2023 7 2 19,959,672,543 - 349,983,033,873 MOF
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No.
10,082,342,569 2023 7 2 - 5
MOF 9,877,329,974 2023 7 2 - 5
2,518,891,687 2021 7 2 - 36
1,259,445,843 2021 7 2 - 36
755,667,506 2021 7 2 - 36
503,778,337 2021 7 2 - 36
191,460,957 2021 7 2 - 36
30
22,819 366,871
389,690 2020 2 29
22,760 389,847 412,607
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10
389,690 2019 12 31
10 2019 12 31
- 40.03 |140,087,446,351 | 10,082,342,569
MOF -13,723,909,471| 35.29 |123,515,185,240| 9,877,329,974
-9,018,145 8.73 | 30,561,081,146 -
SSF +13,723,909,471| 6.72 | 23,520,968,297 -
 00sL +2,001,050,149 | 0.73 | 2,554,275,099 -
CT001 Hu
)  005L +796,565,637 | 0.73 | 2,539,312,027 -
- FH002 Hu
- 0.72 | 2,518,891,687 | 2,518,891,687
- 0.53 | 1,842,751,186 -
+516,626,524 | 0.40 | 1,395,843,555 -
- 0.36 | 1,259,445,843 | 1,259,445,843
1 2019 12 31
2
3 MOF CSRC
Cai Zi[2019] 49 MOF SSF
13,723,909,471
Guo Fa[2017] 49 SSF 3
SSF
SSF H 805,709,096
4 - - 005L-CT001 Hu
- - - 005L - FH002 Hu
- - - 005L-CT001 Hu
- - - 005L - FH002 Hu 5,003,587,126
1.46
3,778,337,530 1.08
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10 2019 12 31
130,005,103,782
MOF 113,637,855,266
30,561,081,146
SSF 23,520,968,297
- 005L-CT001 Hu 2,554,275,099
- 005L - FHOO2 Hu 2,539,312,027
1,842,751,186
1,395,843,555
1,255,434,700
980,723,700
1 2019 12 31
2
3 - - -
005L-CT001 Hu - - - 005L - FHOO02 Hu
10
MOF
1949 10 MOF 1
2019 12 31 MOF 123,515,185,240 35.29
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828,209

2003 12 16 1
911000007109329615
2019

2018 2018 12 31
4,753,591,974.3 491,246,057.6 4,262,345,916.7
2018 469,472,211.3 2018

16,032,756.3

2019 12 31

No.

1 34.68
2 34.71
3 40.03
4 64.02
5 57.11
6 19.53
7 53.95
8 55.67
9 100.00
10 69.07
11 20.05
12 73.63
13 71.56
14 31.34
15 44 .32
16 31.21
17 70.00
18 14.54

@
@
2015 11 5
2019 12 31 140,087,446,351

40.03

1271492



SSF
SSF MOF

MOF

MOF  SSF
2019 12 31 MOF

2000 8

13,723,909,471

SSF
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2019 12 31
336
140,087,446,351 4388 40.03
1,255,434,700 0.39 0.36
133,312,244,066
MOF ® s 41.76 38.09
so 23,520,968, 297 . 5.7
2,528,604,007 g 23 0.72
2,475,577,852 8,05 0.71
2,448,859,255
2,408,696, 255
@) 7.84 0.69
2,151,249,908
. 6.99 0.61
7,326,000 0.0 0.00
1,851,234
. 0.01 0.00
91,693,261
5 0.30 0.03
41,306,379 0.13 0.01
1,462,864,843
5 4.75 0.42
e 9,797,058,826  SSF 2010 4 21
2010 5 5  NOF MOF
(2) 2019 12 31 MOF 123,515,185,240
38.69 35.29
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(©)] QSMA1L
2,448,859,255
O]
2,151,249,908
®)
1,556,409,338
o

2014 ! 400 2014 400 Tierl
360001 1150 a1 100 5.32 11 o8 40

2015 ! 400 2015 400 Tierl
360009 2 |37 100 4.84 3 o7 40
(1) 2019 11 5 2 1 5.32

2020 3 11 2 2 4.84
1 ( 360001) 25 @ 2020 2
29 1 (

360001) 25
¢y
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1 ( 360001) 10
o @
@ ®
60,000,000 15.00
49,000,000 12.25
35,000,000 8.75
30,000,000 7.50
30,000,000 7.50
30,000,000 7.50
30,000,000 7.50
20,000,000 5.00
15,000,000 3.75
12,000,000 3.00
) 10
(@) 2 2017
©)
) 1 1 400
2 ( 360009) 32 2020 2
29 2 (

360009)
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2 ( 360009) 10
® ®
@ ®
- 50,000,000 12.50
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2019 2018
565,465 502,616
326,409 303,054
227,251 191,775
11,805 7,787
172,710 157,909
59,861 58,209
35,024 40,701
13,585 14,442
8,047 9,025
3,549 1,822
859,141 784,724
(279,737) (227,819)
(33,728) (28,303)
(31,375) (23,094)
(16,164) (15,823)
(9.441) (8,389)
(1,825) (3,037)
(372,270) (306,964)

486,871 477,760
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( 12 31
2019 2018
30,181 25,586
25,209 19,640
19,801 20,929
11,443 10,680
10,109 8,876
3,809 3,598
1,895 1,782
474 434
103,011 91,525
(9,543) (7,323)
(3.992) (3,193)
(1,770 (2,004)
(780) (864)
(16,085) (13,384)
86,926 78,141
3
( 12 31
2019 2018
11,095 14,253
(@) 4,304 2,666
' (571 1,487
) (1,421 516
5,660 (2,853)
19,067 16,069
(@8]
4
( 12 31
2019 2018
5,274 2,179
471 304
36 5,984
12 7
5,793 8,460
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2019 2018
22,938 17,365
2,804 (726)
1,017 1,104
863 785
824 1,018
2,247 2,551
30,693 22,097
12 31
2019 2018
(6] 124,267 123,614
) 48,246 47,173
23,349 17,652
18,711 16,413
®) 5,688 5,330
3,835 3,781
224,096 213,963
12 31
2019 2018
79,835 75,976
8,524 8,328
5,450 5,371
4,902 4,829
407 381
141 161
3,534 3,365
9,464 12,469
106,807 105,509
17,399 17,848
61 257
124,267 123,614
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Xviii

579 86 76 741

0] 521 82 76 679

380 380

367 367

367 367

(i) 145 145

(iii) 146 146
(iv)
)

579 86 76 741

50 50

50 50

(vi) 13 13

280 280

310 310

300 300

(vii) 145 21 19 185

(viii) 43 7 7 57

(ix) 478 75 69 622

(x) 391 65 58 514

974 147 76 1,197

(xi) 974 142 76 1,192

(xii) 478 76 69 623

(xiii) 304 a7 44 395
(xiv)

(xv) 272 272

(xv) 252 252
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(xvii)

2019 4 1
2019 7 30
2019 7 29
2019 5 21
2019 7 29
2019 10 9
2019 11 11
2019 12 23
2019 4 29
2019 5 10
2020 3 24
2019 11 28
2019 5 10

2019 1 9
2019 8 30
2019 10 9
2019 1 2

2019 12
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43 8 56
2,972 5,509 842 9,974
2020 1 14
2019 6 28
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Xvi
761 95 72 928
0] 685 96 73 854
410 410
380 380
380 380
360 360
360 360
(i)
(i)
(iv) 254 36 28 318
50 50
(v) 21 21
(v) 21 21
(i) 280 280
(vi) 43 43
(vi) 41 41
(vii) 685 95 74 854
685 129 73 887
1,946 146 73 2,165
(viii) 1,297 9% 50 1,441
(ix) 571 69 56 696
(x) 571 74 62 707
(xi)
(xii)
(xiii) 33 33
(xiv) 241 241
(xv) 55 7 9 71
2,620 7,510 841 570 11,541
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2019 1 9

2018 6 1

2018 11 12

2018 8 21
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2019 1 2

2018 3 12
2018 9 29
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2018 6 29

2018 1 22

2018
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2019 2018
13 14
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1 1
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12 31
2019 2018
4,000,001 4,500,000 1
4,500,001 5,000,000 2 2
5,000,001 5,500,000 1
5,500,001 6,000,000 1
6,000,001 6,500,000 1
6,500,001 7,000,000
7,000,001 7,500,000
7,500,001 8,000,000 1
2019 12 31 2018 12 31 5
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
5
( 622 )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
7
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) 12 31
2019 2018
131,833 130,111
301 1,384
985 2,575
3,990 1,533
30 (41)
409 (393)
1,057 1,478

138,605 136,647
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12 3
2019 2018
62,674 63,111
824 804
215 211
63,713 64,126
22 ) (10,061) (15,083)
53,652 49,043
25%
(
2019 2018 12 31
) 12 31
2019 2018
266,576 251,674
(25%) 66,644 62,919
(1) (31,575) (26,202)
18,684 12,345
(101) (19)
53,652 49,043
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(
2018
2017
1 2018
2019 5 30
2018 (
2019 12 31
2 2017
2018 5 11
2017 (
2018 12 31
3 2019
2019 1 11
2019 3 11
2019 8 30
2019 11 5
2018
2018 1 11
2018 3 12
2018 8 28
2018 11 5

4 2019 12 31

0.1819

)
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1) 60,862
@ 57,911
60,862 57,911
©) 4,600 4,600
( GAAP )
1 0.1739 60,862
( GA® )
1 0.1783 57,911
5.5% 2,200
6% 2,400
5.5% 2,200
6% 2,400



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OoOoOoOoOodno
11.
1
12 3
2019 2018
( ) 212,098 202,783
( ) (4,600) (4,600)
( ) 207,498 198,183
( ) 349,983 337,423
1 ( ) 0.59 0.59
2014 2015 2 V.33
2019 2
V.33 2019 12 31
2019 1 2019 4,600

2018 4,600

2019
2018 12 31 1
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( ) 12 31
2019 2018
92,928 98,089
() 2,018,692 2,312,116
) 393,607 223,555
©) 193,631 170,187
2,698,858 2,803,947
1,037 1,160
2,699,895 2,805,107
1 PBOC
[2019]4
1% 2019 1 15 0.5 2019 1 25 0.5
2019 1 25
1 [2019]223 2019 9 16
0.5
2019 3 25 2019
[2019]60 PBOC 2019 12 31 9.5%(2018 12
31 12.0%) 11.5%(2018 12 31 14.0%)
115 2018 12 31 14
5%(2018 12 31 5%)
PBOC
2 PBOC
3 PBOC
0% 2015 8 31 PBOC
[2015]273 PBOC
2018 8 3 [2018]190 2018 8
6 20% 1
13
( ) 12 31
2019 2018
185,905 54,075
14,292 12,296
34,493 43711
234,690 110,082
2,118 196
(1,066) (550)
( ) 235,742 109,728
2019 12 31 14,670

2018 12 31 13,080
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12 31
2019 2018
162,772 193,744
252,498 256,887
106,047 99,172
521,317 549,803
3,289 3,504
(1423) (1,384)
523,183 552,013
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
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) 2019 12 31
/
2,751,623 23,588 (19,835)
108,691 540 (547)
24,128 (20,382)
225,976 340 (1,676)
95,328 476 (7.490)
24,944 (29,548)
) 2018 12 31
/
2,850,770 34,202 (30,657)
75,226 886 (738)
35,088 (31,395)
418,445 1,654 (839)
76,631 202 (2,320)
36,944 (34,554)
CBRC ( ) (2013 1 1 )
2019 1 1
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
) 12 31
2019 2018
90,486 17,336
) 12 31
2019 2018
681,801 343,571
27,958 27,475
709,849 371,046
308 1,152
(1,606) (1,197)
708,551 371,001

42 —
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( ) 12 31
2019 2018
) 12,279,223 11,027,381
2 540,387 433,912
?) 249
12,819,610 11,461,542
(@]
7,381,532 6,802,200
5,407,627 4,677,264
12,789,159 11,479,464
30,642 27,060
(540,578) (479,143)
12,279,223 11,027,381
]
118,997 89,951
421,390 343,961
540,387 433,912
(3)

249
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1 2 3(i)
12
12,281,653 320,316 187,190 12,789,159
(351,550) (57,693) (131,335) (540,578)
11,930,103 262,623 55,855 12,248,581
540,068 299 20 540,387
(12,495) (27) (15) (12,537)
2018 12 31
1 2 3(i)
12
10,929,528 359,934 190,002 11,479,464
(261,704) (68,455) (148,984) (479,143)
10,667,824 291,479 41,018 11,000,321
433,488 424 433,912
(7,460) ) (7,469)
44.1
3 30,745 2018
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17.3
. 1
12
( 2019 12 31
1 2 3
12
[0) i
2018 12 31 191,146 63,973 128,611 383,730
1 2 (6,261) 6,261
2 3 (19,356) 19,356
2 1 5,948 (5,948)
3 2 3,390 (3,390)
72,673 72,673
25,202 16,147 40,776 82,215
(39,198) (11,076) (35,664) (85,938)
(39,209) (39,209)
2019 12 31 249,600 53,301 110,480 413,471
( 2019 12 31
1 2 3
12
(i) iv
2018 12 31 78,018 4,491 20,373 102,882
1 2 (1,530) 1,530
2 3 (5.190) 5,190
2 1 973 (973)
3 2 482 (482)
50,904 50,904
12,311 5,129 13,406 30,846
(26,231) (1,140) (5.428) (32,799)
(12,189) (12,189)
2019 12 31 114,445 4,329 20,870 130,644
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1 2 3
12
vi
160,902 53,285 126,922 341,109
(9,105) 9,105
(22,224) 22,224
3,948 (3,948)
2,217 (2,217)
48,217 48,217
21,108 29,648 62,188 112,944
(33,924) (4,110) (26,946) (64,980)
(53,560) (53,560)
191,146 63,973 128,611 383,730
2018 12 31
1 2 3
12
(vii) viii
60,853 3,924 25,389 90,166
(1,124) 1,124
(1,248) 1,248
1,139 (1,139)
411 (412)
35,789 35,789
(2,634) 3,750 10,441 11,557
(16,005) (2,331) (3,291) (21,627)
(13,003) (13,003)
78,018 4,491 20,373 102,882
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11
(i) 2019 2 2019 12 31
2 2018 12 31 13
2019 3
2 3 2019
2019 12 31 3 2018 12 31
(i) 2019 1 1
16
(iv) 2019 2 2019 12 31 2018 12
31 2
1 1 2 1
1 2019 2 3 2
2019 2 3
70 2 20
2019 3 2
3 2019
2019 12 31 3 2018 12 31
(v) 2018 1 1
12
(vi) 2018 2
1 1 2 1 3
2018 2 2018 2
2018 12 31 2 2018 1 1
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 3
2 3 2018
2018 12 31 1
2018 1 1
(vii) 2018 1 1
17
(viii) 2018 2 1
1 2 1 1
2018 2 2018 2
5 2018 12 31 2 2018 1 1
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 3
2 3 2018
2018 3
12
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12 31

2019 2018
18.1 801,361 643,245
18.2 4,946,741 4,503,698
18.3 1,674,828 1,738,132
7,422,930 6,885,075

12 31

2019 2018
(1 240,281 246,788
) 216,052 129,725
©) 345,028 266,732
801,361 643,245
3,695 4,101
0] 481,884 519,076
315,782 120,068
801,361 643,245

12 31

2019 2018
10,371 11,302
45,231 87,444
102,650 62,506
43,207 52,756
201,459 214,008
29,132 28,139
2,354 1,986
7,336 2,655
240,281 246,788
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2 (ii) 12 31
2019 2018
19,434 20,554
72,334 51,947
5,724 4,385
97,492 76,886
95,183 33,778
23,377 19,061
216,052 129,725
1
( )
3 (iii) 12 31
2019 2018
17,137 21,257
19,790 33,399
147,389 49,711
27,334 38,537
211,650 142,904
28,207 9,174
104,184 110,431
987 4,223

345,028 266,732

(iii)
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18.2
( ) 12 31
2019 2018
2,755,256 2,299,357
1,278,027 1,255,738
302,220 300,010
124,558 169,480
4,460,061 4,024,585
@) 290,801 290,891
(ii) 93,352 93,358
(iii) 16,791 22,443
4,861,095 4,431,277
95,134 81,608
(9,488) (9,187)
4,946,741 4,503,698
17,851 12,698
(iv) 4,567,976 4,116,972
360,914 374,028
4,946,741 4,503,698
(1) 2020 1 MOF 2020 1 1
5
@) 1998  MOF 93,300
2028 2008 12 1 2.25%
(3
( 41(2) )
(4)
1)
( ) 2019 12 31
1 2 3
12
4,953,832 1,196 1,201 4,956,229
(8/409) (32 (1,047) (9,4898)
4,945,423 1,164 154 4,946,741
( ) 2018 12 31
1 2 3
12
4,509,520 1,043 2,322 4,512,885
(6,691) (236) (2,260) (9,187)
4,502,829 807 62 4,503,698
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2019 12 31
1 2 3
6,691 236 2,260 9,187
(29) 29
(382 382
1,832 1,832
1,534 3 4 1,541
(1,237) (236) (1,599) (3,072
8,409 3P 1,047 9,488
2018 12 31
1 2 3
5,883 20 2,261 8,164
9 9
2,242 2,242
(369) 227 233 o1
(1,056) (20) (234) (1,310
6,691 236 2,260 9,187
2019 12 31
/
1,650,974 1,671,746 20,772 (6,897)
2,050 3,082 1,032
1,727,559 1,738,132 10,573 (6,897)
2018 12 31
/
1,725,961 1,735,892 9,931 (6,327)
1,598 2,240 642
1,727,559 1,738,132 10,573 (6,327)
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(a)
( ) 12 31
2019 2018
744,035 707,987
247,527 263,005
478,172 544,934
165,270 186,738
1,635,004 1,702,664
0] 18,556 14,287
1,653,560 1,716,951
18,186 18,941
1,671,746 1,735,892
107,477 98,119
1,499,316 1,593,843
64,953 43,930
1,671,746 1,735,392
@)
41 2
(b)
( ) 2019 12 31
1 2 3
12
1,671,525 221 1,671,746
(6,874) (23 (6,897)
( ) 2018 12 31
1 2 3
12
1,730,932 4,783 177 1,735,892
(5,720) (552) (55) (6,327)
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(©) (ii)
( ) 2019 12 31
1 2 3
12
2018 12 31 (i) 5,720 552 55 6,327
2 1 26 (26)
2,129 2,129
186 2 209
(1,187) (526) (55) (1,768)
2019 12 31 6,874 23 6,897
( ) 2018 12 31
1 2 3
12
2018 1 1 0] 5,290 125 186 5,601
1 (35) 35
2 51 (51)
1,958 1,958
(143) 452 39 348
(1,401) 9) (170) (1,580)
2018 12 31 5,720 552 55 6,327
(i) 2019 12 31
@)
( ) 12 31
2019 2018
2,878 2,036
204 204
3,082 2,240
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19
(1
2019 12 31
/ (%) (%)
1988 11 1 588,790,000 100.00 100.00
ABC 2009 11 11 4,113,392,449 100.00 100.00
2010 9 29 9,500,000,000 100.00 100.00
(UK) 2011 11 29 100,000,000 100.00 100.00
2008 3 18 1,750,000,001 51.67 51.67
2008 8 12 19,600,000 51.02 51.02
(i) 2008 8 12 31,000,000 50.00 66.67
2010 5 25 29,400,000 51.02 51.02
2010 3 30 40,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 4 20 210,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 5 24 100,000,000 51.00 51.00
(i) 2005 12 19 2,949,916,475 51.00 51.00
( ) 2014 11 26 20,000,000 100.00 100.00
( ) (i) 2014 12 23 7,556,038,271 100.00 100.00
2017 8 1 10,000,000,000 100.00 100.00 /
(iv) 2019 7 25 12,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
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2019 2018
() 3 2
(i) 2012 12 31 51
2012 12 31 1,381 2016
3,761 917 2,844
51
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
(iii) 2019 617 617
100.00
(iv) 2019
(2
41
20
1
/ (%) (%)
(i) 2015 53,342,800,000 50.00 50.00
(i) 2018 4,075,200,000 24.29 20.00
(i) 2019 100,000,000 29.50 20.00

( 2015 5 28
50
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/ (%) (A)
2018 i3 1,000 69.00 28.57
2018 i3 500 74.00 33.33
2018 I 1,200 41.71 40.00
2018 ] 1,500 66.67 50.00
2018 ] 400 50.00 40.00
2018 I 2,000 50.00 50.00
) 2018 i3 2,520 30.16 28.57
2019 I 2,000 50.00 50.00
2019 H 1,800 66.67 50.00
2019 ] 400 70.00 50.00
2019 i3 2,000 50.00 50.00
2019 i 3,500 20.00 20.00
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2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019

2019
2019

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018

2018
2018

12 31

12 31
11

12 31

12 31
11

2019 12
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186,443 65,804 11,097 7,986 271,330

10,999 10,053 2,945 2,060 26,057

5,097 226 1 (5,324)

(9,074) (8,967) (679) (401) (19,121)
193,465 67,116 13,364 4321 278,266
(67,584) (47,735) (3,258) (118,577)

(6,613) (5.919) (545) (13,077)

588 5,189 410 6,187
(73,609) (48,465) (3:393) (125,467)
(271) (21 ® ® (301)
(26) (26)

6 5 1 12

(265) (16) (34 (315)
119,591 18,635 9,971 4,287 152,484
118,588 18,048 7,838 7,978 152,452
173,802 64,846 10,009 16,170 264,827

3,532 5,310 1,613 4,904 15,359

12,210 236 121 (12,567)

(3,102) (4,589) (646) (521) (8,856)
186,443 65,804 11,007 7,986 271,330
(61,235) (44,900) (3,022) (109,157)

(7,048) (6,442) (614) (14,104)

699 3,607 378 4,684
(67,584) (47,735) (3,259) (118,577)
(294) (8) @) (109) (412)

(3 (13) (16)

26 101 127
(271) (21) (@) (8) (301)
118,588 18,048 7,838 7,978 152,452
112,273 19,938 6,986 16,061 155,258

231/492



2018

2019

2017

2018

2018

12 31

12 31

12 31

12 31

I

I

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
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12 31

2019 2018
120,952 113,293
(520) (139)
120,432 113,154
103,435 8,865 720 6471  (6579) 242 113154
10,705 310 (187) 1,169  (1,940) 4 10061
(2,783) (2,783)
114,140 9,175 533 7,640 (11,302 246 120,432
78,656 7,376 940 2,677 7,763 252 97,664
7,266 3841  (1,363) 9,744
85,922 7,376 940 6,518 6,400 252 107,408
17,513 1,489 (220) @n (3642 (10) 15,083
(9,337) (9,337)
103,435 8,865 720 6471  (6,579) 242 113154
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31

/ / / /
C ) )

456,559 114,140 413,742 103,435
23,426 5,856 29,070 7,268
36,700 9,175 35,462 8,865
30,558 7,640 25,883 6,471
2,133 533 2,883 720
1,019 255 1,071 268
550,395 137,599 508,111 127,027
(68,635) (17,158) (55,392) (13,847)
(35) 9 (104) (26)
(68,670) (17.167) (55,496) (13,873)
481,725 120,432 452,615 113,154
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23
( ) 12 31
2019 2018
(@) 78,132 54,309
2 19,889 20,804
©) 10,805
3,229 2,771
3,030 2,993
2,730 2,804
1,792 2,196
1,173 1,079
594 667
564 608
9,943 7,341
131,881 95,662
@
IFRS 15 —
2019 12 31 2,658 (2018 12 31 10,692
) 859 (2018 12 31 610 )
2019 12 31 78,994 (2018 12 31 46,862 ) 2,661
(2018 12 31 2635 )
%)) 2019 12 31
(3) 2019 12 31 2019 3,700
3,700
24
2019 12 31 PBOC 596,500
2018 12 31 551,500
25
( ) 12 3
2019 2018
100,894 47,202
1,339,628 1,016,565
3,242 8,906
55,438 44,280
1,499,202 1,116,953
4,707 7,369
1,503,909 1,124,322
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26
( ) 12 31
2019 2018
148,603 137,955
175,124 185,870
323,727 323,825
1,636 1,716
325,363 325,541
27
( ) 12 31
2019 2018
()] 14,147 17,188
@ 312,975 265,715
3,505 3,400
316,480 269,115
330,627 286,303
@
@
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
28
( ) 12 31
2019 2018
50,895 156,741
1,970
52,865 156,741
332 360
53,197 157,101

42
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29
12 31
( ) 2019 2018
4,902,237 4,677,155
5,659,615 5,318,511
2,061,676 1,941,564
4,960,436 4,479,483
@) 250,847 288,530
480,403 440,403
18315214 17,145,646
207,647 200,644
18542,861 17,346,290
1
12 31
( ) 2019 2018
68,694 78,859
75,808 92,555
49,904 52,055
17,571 12,463
38,870 52,598
250,847 288,530
30
12 31
( ) 2019 2018
) 349,978 282,880
@ 267,307 240,897
®3) 482,345 251,253
1,099,630 775,030
8,582 5,643
1,108,212 780,673

2019 2018 12 31

236/492




EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

15
15
15
10
10
10
10
10
15
15

10

ooOoooOoo
) 12 31
2019 2018
@) 3,488 3,432
(ii) 25,000
(iii) 50,000 50,000
(iv) 50,000 50,000
Tier2 v) 30,000
Tier2 (vi) 40,000 40,000
Tier2 (vii) 40,000 40,000
Tier2 (viii) 50,000
Tier2 (ix) 40,000
Tier2 (X) 10,000
Tier2 (xi) 20,000
(xii) 35,458 41,070
(xiii) 3,000
(xiv) 2,890
(xv) 1,880
(xvi) 3,500 3,500
350,216 283,002
(238) (122)
349,978 282,880
2015 10 2.75% 2 5
2009 5 4.0 1 15 2019 5 20
25,000
2011 6 534 1 15
2021 6 6
2021 6 7 5.3%
2012 12 4.99% 1 15
2022 12 19
2022 12 20 4.99%
2014 8 Tier2 584 1 10 2019 8 19
30,000
2017 10 Tier2 4.45% 1 10
2022 10 16
2022 10 17
4.45% Tier2 Tier2 CBIRC
Tier2
2018 4 Tier2 4.45% 1 10
CBIRC 2023 4 26
2023 4 27
4.45% Tier? Tier2 CBIRC
Tier2
2019 3 Tier2 4.28% 1 10
CBIRC 2024 3 18
2024 3 19
4.28% Tier2 Tier2 CBIRC

Tier2
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ooooooo
ix 2019 4 Tier2 4.30% 1 10
CBIRC 2024 4 10
2024 4 11
4.30% Tier2 Tier2 CBIRC
Tier2
X 2019 3 Tier2 4.53% 1 15
CBIRC 2029 3 18
2029 3 19
4.53% Tier2 Tier2 CBIRC
Tier2
Xi 2019 4 Tier2 4.63% 1 15
CBIRC 2029 4 10
2029 4 11
4.63% Tier2 Tier2 CBIRC
Tier2
Xii)
( ) 2019 12 31
(%)
2021 3 2021 8 47-48 3,600
2020 8 2021 1 218252 807
2020 9 2021 9 3 HIBOR+0.70 358
2020 9 2021 9 2.50-3.88 9,069
2020 2 2023 11 3 LIBOR+0.68 0.85 21,624
35,458
( ) 2018 12 31
(%)
2019 8 2021 3 3848 3,315
2019 1 784
2019 3 2021 1 2.18-2.52 1,489
2020 9 3 HIBOR+0.70 350
2019 1 2021 9 1.88-3.88 15,620
2019 3 2023 11 3 LIBOR+0.40 0.80 19,512
41,070
Xiii) 2019 6 3.68% 1 3
Xiv) 2019 9 3.30% 1 3
XVv) 2019 9 3.40% 1 5
XVi) 2018 3 5.55% 1
10 2023 3 4
2023 3 5 6.55%
22019 12 31
1 7 -0.23%  3.66% 2018 12 31
2 7 0%  4.60%
3
2019 12 31
3 1 -022%  2.85% 2018 12 31 2 1
0% 3.2%
2019 12 31 1 1 2.70%
3.24% 2018 12 31 3 1 320%  4.40%
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MOF

@
@
@

@
@
@
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
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12 31

2019 2018
105,682 53,578
73,588 68,351
59,286 49,248
) 50,471 45,285
@ 30,558 25,883

10,280
8,541 7,568
4,579 4,249
561 1,567
114 238
72,093 62,599
415,753 318,566
12 31

2019 2018
() 43,130 39,698
() 5,208 2,704
() 2,133 2,883
50,471 45,285

2019

12 31
29,559 79,835 (78,047) 31,347
186 8,524 (8,526) 184
255 5,450 (5.373) 332
235 4,902 (4.826) 311
13 407 (407) 13
7 141 (140) 8
6,206 3,534 (2,692) 7,049
3,492 9,464 (8,738) 4218
39,698 106,807 (103,375) 43,130

2018

12 31
26,829 75,976 (73,246) 29,559
157 8,328 (8,299) 186
171 5,371 (5,287) 255
159 4,829 (4,753) 235
7 381 (375) 13
5 161 (159) 7
5,344 3,365 (2,503) 6,206
3,393 12,469 (12,370) 3,492
35,804 105,509 (101,705) 39,698
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2019
11 12 31
518 10,825 (10,891) 452
31 349 (346) 34
2,155 6,225 (3,658) 4722
2,704 17,399 (14,895) 5,208
2018
11 12 31
527 11,808 (11,817) 518
32 319 (320) 31
7 5721 (3573) 2,155
566 17,848 (15,710) 2,704
2019
11 12 31
2,883 61 (812) 2,133
2018
11 12 31
3,762 257 (1,136) 2,883
12 31
2019 2018
2.80% 3.00%
8.00% 8.00%
8.00% 8.00%
60 60
55 55

2010

240/492
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2018 12 31

2019 12 31

@

@

EDINETOOOO
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12 31
2019 2018
(i) 25,213 20,523
4,490 4,438
855 922
30,558 25,883
2019 12 31
1 2 3
12
17,797 2,006 720 20,523
(1,072) 1,072
(319) 319
13 (13)
14,751 14,751
(116) (76) 26 (166)
(8,537) (638) (720) (9,895)
22,836 2,032 345 25,213
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2018 1 1

@
2018 12 31

a 2019

@) A

(2) CBIRC

[2018]936

74,783

2018 0411

2018

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
2018 12 31
1 2 3
12
17,204 1,519 175 18,898
(1,209) 1,209
(728) 728
21 (21)
9,373 1,013 10,386
(313) 54 ) (268)
(7,279) (1,040) (174) (8,493)
17,797 2,006 720 20,523
2019 2018
2019 12 31
( )
319,244 319,244
30,739 30,739
349,983 349,983
2018 12 31
( )
319,244 319,244
30,739 30,739
349,983 349,983
H
A [2018]28
2018 6 25,189 A
3.97 100,000
99,972 25,189
3



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
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(3) 2019 12 31 2018 12 31 2018 6 25,189
A H
3
( ) ( ) )
5
6% 100 400 40,000
)
5
5
55% 100 400 40,000
)
5
5
4.39% 100 850 85,000
2 5
5
4.20% 100 350 35,000
@ 5
1) 800 1 100
2014 11 400 2019 12 31 (
) 39,944 5 6%
5 5 2.29%
2019 11 1 5 2019 11 5
3.03% 2.29% 5.32%
1
2015 3 400 2019 12 31 (
) 39,955 5 5.5%
5 5 2.24%
2020 3 6 5 2020 3 11
2.60% 2.24% 4.84%
1

Tier2

oOoOooodn



CBRC
A
2018 6
1
Tierl
)
2019 8 16
1
2
2019 9 3
2
2
2019 12 31
CBIRC
Tierl

243

2019 8 20

2019 9 5

25,189

2.46

120,000

CBIRC

2441492

[2012]56

85,000

35,000

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OoOoOoOoOodno
)
1 243
A
1 2
CBIRC
100
5 4.39%
100
5 4.20%
119,987

Tierl
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34
2010 2018
35
( ) 2019
2018 12 31 24,996 (6,004) 18,992
14,921 (4,196) 10,725
(425) 107 (318)
383 (98) 285
2019 12 31 39,875 (20,192) 29,684
( ) 2018
2017 12 31 (26,135) 6,445 (19,690)
13,003 (3112) 9,801
2018 1 1 (13,132) 3,333 (9,799)
38,212 (9,358) 28,854
(280) 70 (210)
196 (49) 147

2018 12 31 24,996 (6,004) 18,992
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GAAP 10%
50%
2020 3 30 2019
10% 20,623 2018 19,867

25%
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37
MOF [2012] 20 2012 7 1
1.5%
2019 12 31 37,826
2018 8,440 2019 12 31 37,626
2018 8,380 2019 5 30
2020 3 30 34,211
2020
38
3
( ) 12 31
2019 2018
92,928 98,089
401,632 230,450
105,571 78,352
150,495 221,495
703,955 350,055
1,454,581 978,441
39

2471492
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2019 12 31
288,227 128,729 89,900 83,229 87,164 129,921 21,197 30,774 859,141
(55,547) (78,563) (38,991) (56,914) (48,692) (55,322) (16,407) (21,834) (372,270)

( ) (220,171) 50,152 25,699 50,389 41,859 39,850 14,201 (1,979)
12,509 100,318 76,608 76,704 80,331 114,449 18,991 6,961 486,871
27,771 17,384 14,912 11,863 11,600 15,990 2,808 683 103,011
(3477 (2.857) (2.491) (2,239) (1,962) (2,424 @72 (163) (16,085)
24,204 14,527 12,421 0,624 0,638 13,566 2,336 520 86,026
) 10,446 87 27 44 (15) 10 (147) 8615 19,067
/ 6,137 1 13 (932) (54) (23) 612 5,793
25 2,113 963 643 560 1,340 140 24,909 30,693
53,411 117,085 90,032 86,083 90,460 120,342 21,320 41,617 629,350
(15,107) (32,858) (24,373) (29,007) (32,881) (47,267) (13,679) (28,924) (224,096)
(2.442) (29,378) (23.434) (28,367) (17,636) (28,116) (6,650) (2,582) (138,605)
(69) 14 76 11 1 (107) (78) 34 (118)
35,793 54,863 42,301 28,720 39,944 53,852 913 10,145 266,531
10 35 a5
35,803 54,863 42,301 28,720 39,944 53,852 913 10,180 266,576
(53,652)
212,924
1,324 3,078 2,542 3,037 3,029 4,075 1,185 an 18,711
1,867 1,763 12,008 1,684 2,397 4,091 834 2,786 27,480

2019 12 31

6,353,747 5,027,379 3,080,744 4,208377 3,563,117 4,854,981 1,041,908 1,187,051 (4650058) 24,757,336
207 6,465 6,672
120,952
24,878,288
@ 11,592 32,067 19,404 29,526 28,042 42,169 11,477 24,704 198,981
(4,411873)  (5050321)  (3089,694)  (4326673)  (3570834) (4873445  (L052174)  (L133,764) 4,650,058  (22,858,720)
(59,806)
(22,918,526)
40,267 641,332 400,516 441,065 340,859 396,394 72,520 77,075 2,410,028

®
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2018 12 31

@

EDINETOOOO
OO000D0O0000O0OnE24593)
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277,633 114,128 77,565 76,222 75,067 115,740 19,649 28,720 784,724
(51,458) (60,785) (32,523) (46,921) (39,110) (45,169) (13,004) (17,994) (306,964)
(207,818) 43,613 26,581 47,630 40,297 40,271 12,316 (2,890)
18,357 96,956 71,623 76,931 76,254 110,842 18,961 7,836 477,760
24,175 16,271 13,087 10,020 10,144 14,088 2,514 1,226 91,525
(2,868) (2,921) (1,635) (1,534) (1,585) (2,130) (406) (305) (13,384)
21,307 13,350 11,452 8,486 8,559 11,958 2,108 921 78,141
15,439 (188) (242) (261) (133) (1,606) (1,094) 4,154 16,069
9,158 (82) 49 4 (5) (10) (646) 8,460
30 30
(4,616) 1,882 1,173 974 688 1,702 423 19,871 22,097
59,675 111,918 84,055 86,126 85,363 122,886 20,398 32,136 602,557
(18,453) (31,046) (23,218) (27,681) (31,651) (45,244) (13,449) (23,221) (213,963)
(4,459) (18,681) (11,336) (36,790) (23,753) (32,671) (6,213) (2,744) (136,647)
14 (62) 6) (64) (76) (55) (251)
36,763 62,205 49,439 21,647 29,895 44,895 681 6,171 251,696
9 (31) (22)
36,772 62,205 49,439 21,647 29,895 44,895 681 6,140 251,674
(49,043)
202,631
1,361 2,496 1,873 2,602 2,864 3,823 1,149 245 16,413
959 2,826 2,118 1,907 2,559 3,409 1,017 2,305 17,100
5,322,502 4,760,141 2,823,835 3,956,866 3,297,149 4,550,800 966,852 1,005,244 (4187,211) 22,496,178
236 3,769 4,005
113,293
22,609,471
11,327 31,152 17,018 28,137 27,154 40,804 11,289 18,028 184,909
(3,676,865) (4,763,609) (2,819,997) (3,987,753) (3,306,792) (4,567,877) (978,231) (971,384) 4187211  (20,885,297)
(49,387)
(20,934,684)
39,120 520,584 324,158 359,054 297,915 304,479 76,623 79,872 2,010,805
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( )
2019 12 31
340,666 227,426 285,030 6,019 859,141
(113,620) (187,154) (68,698) (2,798) (372,270)
( )
(3.204) 159,498 (156,294)
223,842 199,770 60,038 3221 486,871
53,640 47,467 152 1,752 103,011
(7,652 (8:376) 4] (55) (16,085)
45,988 39,001 150 1,697 86,926
11,570 7,497 19,067
/ 424 (445) 4,438 1,376 5,793
1,465 1,547 2,918 24,763 30,693
271,719 239,963 79,114 38,554 629,350
(74,492) (97,241) (24,792) (27,571) (224,096)
(86,174) (49,699) (1,407) (1,325) (138,605)
(131) 53 @ (36) (118)
110,922 93,076 52,011 9,622 266,531
45 45
110,922 93,076 52,911 9,667 266,576
(53,652)
212,924
4,340 10,641 3,361 369 18,711
5,042 14,667 5,134 2,637 27,480
2019 12 31
7,711,316 5,826,636 10,771,924 447,460 24,757,336
6,672 6,672
120,952
24,878,288
(8,026,739) (11,880,991) (2,701,678) (249,312) (22,858,720)
(59,806)
(22,918,526)
1,565,535 844,493 2,410,028
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( )
2018 12 31
314,901 191,918 272,138 5,767 784,724
(92,866) (153,206) (58,026) (2,866) (306,964)
( )i
8,665 158,924 (167,589)
230,700 197,636 46,523 2,901 477,760
47,828 41,797 13 1,887 91,525
(5,730) (7,608) ®3) (43) (13,384)
42,008 34,189 10 1,844 78,141
11,283 4,786 16,069
/ (63) 461 7,874 188 8,460
30 30
/ 1,923 1,515 (92) 18,751 22,007
274,658 233,801 65,628 28,470 602,557
(75,164) (93,304) (23,481) (22,014) (213,963)
(106,947) (26,542) (3,253) 95 (136,647)
(224) (25) @ (251)
92,323 113,930 38,892 6,551 251,696
(22) (22)
92,323 113,930 38,892 6,529 251,674
(49,043)
202,631
3,742 9,422 3,062 187 16,413
3,480 10,068 3,552 17,100
2018 12 31
7,034,426 5,051,815 10,086,338 323,599 22,496,178
4,005 4,005
113,293
22,609,471
(7,829,685)  (10,800,316) (2,077,681) (177,615)  (20,885,297)
(49,387)
(20,934,684)
1,338,766 672,039 2,010,805
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( )
2019 12 31
199,258 659,883 859,141
(116,959) (255,311) (372,270)
I ) 115,125 (115,125)
197,424 289,447 486,871
40,907 62,104 103,011
(6,315) (9,770) (16,085)
34,592 52,334 86,926
632 18,435 19,067
/ ©) 5,798 5,793
4,097 26,596 30,693
236,740 392,610 629,350
(90,654) (133,442) (224,09)
(48,228) (90,377) (138,605)
(86) (32 (118)
97,772 168,759 266,531
45 45
97,772 168,804 266,576
(53,652)
212,924
7,533 11,178 18,711
6,716 20,764 27,480
2019 12 31
8699905 16,172,309 (114,878) 24,757,336
6,672 6,672
120,952
24,878,288
(8085,616) (14,887,982 114878  (22,858,720)
(59,806)
(22,918,526)

729,244 1,680,784 2,410,028
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2018 12 31
175,438 609,286 784,724
(93,223) (213,741) (306,964)
I 111,567 (111,567)
193,782 283,978 477,760
35,222 56,303 91,525
(4,817) (8,567) (13,384)
30,405 47,736 78,141
) (267) 16,336 16,069
5 8,455 8,460
30 30
4,515 17,582 22,097
228,440 374,117 602,557
(86,542) (127,421) (213,963)
(72,661) (63,986) (136,647)
(137) (114) (251)
69,100 182,596 251,696
(22) (22)
69,100 182,574 251,674
(49,043)
202,631
7,494 8,919 16,413
4,123 12,977 17,100
2018 12 31
8,067,374 14,537,570 (108,766) 22,496,178
4,005 4,005
113,293
22,609,471
(7,553,604)  (13,440,459) 108,766  (20,885,297)
(49,387)
(20,934,684)
569,419 1,441,386 2,010,805
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1 MOF
2019 12 31 MOF
MOF
2019 9 25
2019 12 31
( )
MOF
MOF
MOF
(MOF
MOF
( )
MOF
MOF
MOF

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
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35.29% 2018 12 31 39.21%
3.92%
6.95%
MOF
12 31
2019 2018
643,568 655,946
307,723 298,734
1,004 9,444
520 1,487
1,772 13,250
4 41
41 80
12 31
2019 2018
30,195 38,180
(253) (410)
1,652 3,096
162 174
12 31
2019 2018
% %
0.13-9.00 225 9.00
0.00-3.41 0.00 3.37

42
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40.03% 2018 12 31 40.03%
12 31
2019 2018
22,024 28,034
68,455 37,438
1,862 12,063
12 31
2019 2018
2,314 2,295
(270) (225)
75 19
12 31
2019 2018
% %
392-435 392 435
284515 275 515
437 441
138225 138 218
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12 31
2019 2018
63,637 31,990
61,520 51,809
4,360 3,866
94,067 24,205
53,117 59,338
768,800 785,135
157,640 91,880
94,756 83,786
5,518 7,920
1,309 360
1,438
2,000 2,000

5,002 1,556
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12 31
2019 2018
88,805 29,761
3,008
2,709 2,370
1,022
21 711
10,895 4,039
63
950 3,208
1,040 721
12,557 16,267
12 31
2019 2018
792 337
1,506 1,020
1 49
(253 (108)
(125) (151)
(18)
(268)
12 31
2019 2018
% %
053360 050 5.25
1.00-4.70 4.00
3.30-4.70 2.38-4.70

4.60-4.60 392 479
0.01-3.10 001 320

0.30-3.85 030 3.85

260/492



5
( )

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
6

9.54
2019
2018 12 31 854
( )
2019 12 31
2018 12 31
2018

8.56 2019 8 30

2018

2019 12 31
2018 12 31

2019 12 31
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12 31
2019 2018
157
12 31
2019 2018
% %
0.01
:8.24
7.49
12 31
2019 2018
9.97 11.54
2018

11.54
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7
( ) 12 31
2019 2018
3,196 3,197
( ) 12 3
2019 2018
(157) (36)
12 31
2019 2018
% %
0.00 5.00 0.00 5.00
8
o))
( ) 12 31
2019 2018
(%) (%)
63,637 26.99 31,990 29.15
61,520 11.76 51,809 9.39
4,360 17.48 3,866 10.46
94,067 13.28 24,205 6.52
75,141 0.59 87,372 0.76
1,788,546 24.09 1,776,253 25.81
1,004 0.92 9,444 13.10
157,640 10.48 91,880 8.17
94,756 29.12 83,786 25.74
5,518 18.67 7,920 22.92
1,309 2.46 360 0.23
11,072 0.06 25,313 0.15
565 0.21 1,608 0.84

2,000 1.00 2,000 2.50
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41.
oy
2019 12 31

363,248
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12 31
2019 2018
(%) (%)
32,509 3.78 40,475 5.16
(523) 0.14 (635) 0.21
227 143 193 1.08
1,552 151 3,09 3.38
/
464,477 2018 12 31
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2
WMPs
WMPs
WMPs WMPs WMPs
2019 12 31 WMPs 1,960,701 2018 12 31
1,706,487 WMPs 1,727,350 2018
11,408,263 2019 12 31 WMPs
4,971 2018 4,784 574 2018
1,664 WMPs
WMPs 2019
2019 12 31 15,810 529 2018
: 50,893 9.20 116,900 2018 12 31 : 142,914
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
WMPs
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
WMPs
WMPs 2019 12 31 2018
WMPs WMPs
2019 12 31 478,339 (2018 12 31 684,653
) 2019
797 (2018 1,093 )
2019 12 31

73,521
2018 12 31 60,663
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2016 9 28

2016 12

2019 12 31
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2019 12 31
4,490 2018 12 31 14,438
31
2016 11 4
31 2016 12 31
2
2
2019 12 31
12 31
2019 2018
2,606 2,934
2018 12 31
12 31
2019 2018
149,602 178,564
907,194 728,218
1,056,796 906,782
339,829 242,489
646,134 538,870
216,229 191,250
151,040 131,414
2,410,028 2,010,805
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157,101

31

28

826,551
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(2013 1 1 )
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
12 31
2019 2018
1,063,652 950,993
12 31
2019 2018
55,738 163,937
1,978
57,716 163,937
2019 12 31
53,197 (2018 12 31
12
43
2019 12 31 863,190 2018 12
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16
2018 12 31
MOF
2019 12 31
2018 12 31 70,702
MOF
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2019 12 31
97
43
8.7
2019 12 31
(2018 12 31 37,378
16,699
55,161 2018 12 31
6,923

) 11,855

: 20,679

2019 12 31
(2018 12 31 2,367
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2019 12 31

75,795

67,016
2018 12 31



2019 12 31

31
(2018 12 31

12,368

32,414
3,338
42
46,250 )
2019 12 31
2018 12 31

2018 :28,151
2018 :4,976
149,342

268/492
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8.7

2019 12
2,955



2019

51,398
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12

PD LGD EAD
IFRS 9

PD LGD EAD

12
12
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IFRS 9

+ 10

12

PD LGD

GDP

PD LGD
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2019 12 31

30

90

GDP
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10%
5%

3 DCF
DCF

12 31
2019 2018
2,606,967 2,707,018
235,742 109,728
523,183 552,013
24,944 36,944
708,551 371,001

0) 12,819,610 11,461,542

693,758 591,787

(ii) 4,946,741 4,503,698
(iii) 1,671,746 1,735,892
81,800 58,992

24313051 22,128,615

(iv) 2,384,815 1,990,282

26,697,866 24,118,897
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2019 12 31
2
1 3
12
7,483,007 22,214 7,505,221
261,208 261,208
155,490 155,490
7,483,007 438,912 7,921,919
(237,105) (163,829) (400,934)
7,245,902 275,083 7,520,985
2019 12 31
2
1 3
12
5,338,714 5,338,714
37,193 37,193
31,720 31,720
5,338,714 68,913 5,407,627
(114,445) (25,199) (139,644)
5,224,269 43,714 5,267,983
2018 12 31
2
1 3
12
6,751,757 40,876 6,792,633
283,697 283,697
159,782 159,782
6,751,757 484,355 7,236,112
(183,686) (192,575) (376,261)
6,568,071 291,780 6,859,851
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( ) 2018 12 31
2
1 3
12
4,611,259 4,611,259
35,785 35,785
30,220 30,220
4,611,259 66,005 4,677,264
(78,018) (24,864) (102,882)
4,533,241 41,141 4,574,382
(i)
( ) 2019 12 31
2
1 3
12
4,953,832 4,953,832
1,196 1,196
1,201 1,201
4,953,832 2,397 4,956,229
(8,409) (1,079) (9,488)
4,945,423 1,318 4,946,741
( ) 2018 12 31
2
1 3
12
4,509,520 101 4,509,621
942 942
2,322 2,322
4,509,520 3,365 4,512,885
(6,691) (2,496) (9,187)

4,502,829 869 4,503,698

2741492
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(iii)
( ) 2019 12 31
2
1 3
12
1,671,525 1,671,525
221 221
1,671,525 221 1,671,746
( ) 2018 12 31
2
1 3
12
1,730,932 203 1,731,135
4,580 4,580
177 177
1,730,932 4,960 1,735,892
(iv)
1
(v) 2019 12 31 2018 12 31

(Vi)
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12 31
2019 2018
(%) (%)
318,970 4.0 303,637 4.2
1,710,643 216 1,548,750 214
960,384 121 842,577 11.6
1,198,828 15.2 1,128,923 15.6
1,125,021 14.2 1,017,666 14.1
1,886,512 238 1,721,056 23.8
316,802 4.0 296,755 4.1
404,759 51 376,997 5.2
7,921,919 100.0 7,236,361 100.0
55 66

1,286,246 238 1,125,425 24.1
1,176,564 218 1,019,760 21.8
802,153 14.8 705,802 151
857,033 15.9 731,709 15.6
1,083,958 20.0 919,657 19.7
186,464 34 163,452 35
15,154 0.3 11,393 0.2
5,407,627 100.0 4,677,264 100.0

13,329,546 11,913,625

276/492
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12 3
2019 2018
(%) (%)
1,689,787 21.3 1,410,827 195
1,291,327 16.3 1,255,497 17.3
1,047,843 13.2 923,992 12.8
900,036 114 868,758 12.0
704,973 89 619,101 8.6
517,448 6.5 438,208 6.1
386,064 4.9 385,639 5.3
623,570 79 600,813 8.3
233,961 29 245,584 34
212,201 27 201,790 2.8
314,709 4.0 286,152 3.9
7,921,919 100.0 7,236,361 100.0
4,163,293 77.0 3,661,900 78.3
264,980 49 216,588 4.6
181,234 33 166,285 3.6
475,001 88 380,720 8.1
323,119 6.0 251,771 54
5,407,627 100.0 4,677,264 100.0
13,329,546 11,913,625
2019 12 31
1
1 5 5
1,274,211 765,757 1,403,329 3,443,297
692,480 430,558 733,377 1,856,415
861,640 418,293 4,618,803 5,898,736
657,142 102,480 1,371,476 2,131,098

3,485,473 1,717,088 8,126,985 13,329,546

2018 12 31
1
1 5 5
1,427,185 579,653 1,203,211 3,210,049
576,797 362,033 428,125 1,366,955
791,952 399,413 4,260,910 5,452,275
626,118 90,126 1,168,102 1,884,346

3,422,052 1,431,225 7,060,348 11,913,625

2771492
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) 2019 12 31
31 o1 361
30 % 360 3 3

5,326 3,416 7,957 4,206 1,287 22,192
13441 3,554 13,259 10,899 3,090 44,243
28,893 14,514 25,747 25,865 8,396 103,415
1,733 241 2,687 6,817 1,665 13,143
49,393 21,725 49,650 47,787 14,438 182,993

) 2018 12 31

31 91 361
30 90 360 3 3
11,624 2,912 7,030 445 716 22,727
11,129 4,646 16,181 16,401 4,060 52,417
28,360 16,480 31,174 31,880 9,203 117,187
4,033 274 2,641 1,906 1,747 10,601
55,146 24,312 57,026 50,632 15,816 202,932
1
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
17
12
6
2019 12 30

57,266 2018 12 31 59,232
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2019 2,123
2018 3,221
7
181 2 23
1
18.2 18.3
2
( ) 2019 12 31
3,540,555 3,540,555
1,562,706 1,562,706
784,479 784,479
(ii) 294,375 221 294,596
94,127 94,127
MOF 307,723 307,723
32,983 1,164 154 34,301
6,616,948 1,164 375 6,618,487
( ) 2018 12 31
3,045,869 3,045,869
1,556,598 1,556,598
848,336 848,336
(ii) 356,695 5,292 177 362,164
93,358 93,358
MOF 298,734 298,734
34,469 62 34,531
6,234,059 5,292 239 6,239,500
2019 12 31 2018 12 31 2019 12 31
2018 12 31

ii 2019 12 31 15,834 2018 12 31 27,704
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2019 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5

486,535 9,125 6,831 14,476 2,182,928 2,699,895
90,556 33,02 20,772 90,234 1,158 235,742
14 207,602 155,974 135,902 22,208 1,393 523,183
2,703 4,508 17,107 572 54 24,914
3872 681,579 22,323 m 708,551
18,973 558,669 623,929 2,673,083 2572187 6,372,769 12,819,610
10,066 39,013 148,812 264,557 104,287 123,340 111,286 801,361
57,686 118,976 473,032 2623065 1,673,982 4,946,741
57,974 93,069 409,965 805,881 304,857 3,082 1,674,828
3,030 71,148 1,371 1,449 2,028 221 1 2,561 81,809
25,889 658,305 1,648,744 1,196,643 4,081,161 61206690 8476396 2,299,857 24,516,664
(30) (14,626) (36) (593,394 (450) (608,536)
(904,887) (82,729) (228,049) (194,638 (93,346) (260) (1,503,900)
(129,237) (112,198) (72,581) (4,058) (7,289) (325,363)
(14,147) (121,057) (77,436) (117,945) (42) (330,627)
(6,161) (8.296) (12,793 (1,799) (499 (29,548
(22,800) (18,671) (11,726) (63,197)
(11,165,898) (592,346) (1,292,948) (2,581,024) (2,898,018) (12,627) (18,542,861)
(66,682) (181,008) (493,388) (56452) (310,682 (1,108,212)
(159,787) (76,761) (2,011) (4.472) (8,823 (721) (2,705) (255,280)
(12,244,749) (1,112,399) (1,920,653) (4,081,961) (3,062,988)  (332,078) (2,705) (22,757,533
25,889 (11,586,444) 536,345 (724,010) (800) 3066681 8144318 2,297,152 1,759,131

280/492
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2018 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5
321,644 6,895 1,156 6,046 2,469,366 2,805,107
79,736 9,341 4,634 9,409 6,608 109,728
11 240,801 100,189 169,472 37,409 4131 552,013
7,633 11,579 16,025 1,257 450 36,944
3872 352,749 12,627 1,753 371,001
14,617 538,045 615,065 2,435,236 2376458 5482121 11,461,542
5268 55,119 70,797 198,207 143,862 134,228 35,764 643,245
2 56,424 98,997 414,999 2410422  1522,854 4,503,698
41,872 103,062 465,868 886,821 238,269 2,240 1,738,132
1,966 49,601 1,170 614 2316 52 4 3,269 58,992
20,466 456,251 1,310,049 1,018,720 3,719,331 5862889  7,382057 2,510,639 22,280,402
(30) (50,553) (99,248) (410,911) (453) (561,195)
(556,486) (41,138) (243,528) (225,963) (35,129) (22,078) (1,124,322)
(126,386) (97,578) (85,617) (8518) (7.442) (325,541)
(17,188) (79,934) (81,225) (104,518) (3,400) (39) (286,303)
(6,977) (9,929) (16,611) (925) (112) (34,554)
(118,263) (15,769) (22,869) (200) (157,101)
(10,574,096) (545,318) (1,244,458) (2,695,212) (2,286,609) (597) (17,346,290)
(50,591) (204,552) (225,219) (57,346)  (242,965) (780,673)
(102,519) (68,976) (1,668) (4,130) (2,803) (80) (1,601) (181,777)
(11,250,319) (1,088,136) (1,997,955) (3,791,050) (2395,383) (273312 (1,601)  (20,797,756)
20,466 (10,794,068) 221913 (979,235) (71,719) 3467506 7,108,745 2,509,038 1,482,646
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2019 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5

486,535 9,125 6,831 14,476 2,182,928 2,699,805
90,556 33,047 20,884 91,763 1,158 237,408
14 208,566 157,415 136,766 2413 1,451 526,625
3872 683,342 22,448 789 710,451
88,732 631,700 748273 3,215,778 4256241 9,640,739 18,581,463
10,066 39,068 150,739 273575 127,220 140,773 116,474 857,915
71,325 142,840 586,483 301452 1,977,753 5,792,923
60,246 98,418 443,923 881,005 339,239 2,050 1,824,971
71,148 1,371 1,449 2,028 221 1 2,561 78,779
92,618 658,305 1,737,790 1,349,297 4,765,581 8302870 12,099,956 2,304,013 31,310,430
(30) (14,655) (54) (606,271) (450) (621,460)
(904,885) (82,724) (229,529) (199,427) (97,725) (260) (1,514,550)
(129,391) (112,804) (72,530) (5,506) (8,194 (328,425)
(14,147) (121,285) (77,317) (119,329) (42) (332,120)
(22,813) (18,722 (11,878) (53,413)
(11,166,088 (593,662) (1,298,128) (2,616,011) (3,107,403) (15,256) (18,796,548)
(67,271) (186,093) (516,177) (115,060)  (365,107) (1,249,708)
(159,673) (76,762) (2014 (4,530) (9,363) (944 (2,705) (255,991)
(12,244,823) (1,108,563) (1,924,661) (4,146,153) (3335549)  (389,761) (2,705) (23,152,215)
92,618 (11,586,518) 629,227 (575,364) 619,428 4,967,321 11,710,195 2,301,308 8,158,215

282/492
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OooooOodd
2018 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5
321,644 6,895 1,156 6,046 2,469,366 2,805,107
79,737 9,348 4,655 9,581 6,608 109,929
11 241,562 101,589 173,608 40,319 4731 561,820
3,872 354,045 12,709 1,812 372,438
97,822 600,427 724,144 2,900,449 3767258 8,114,986 16,205,086
5268 55,446 73,150 207,930 169,782 151,036 35,764 698,376
2 72,020 126,705 524,909 2503816 1,767,087 4,994,539
45,883 112,551 500,456 974,855 268,951 2,240 1,904,936
49,239 987 a1 2,009 51 2 3,269 55,998
101,705 455,890 1,386,613 1,157,100 4,326,800 7462689 10306793 2,510,639 27,708,229
(30) (50,619) (99,748) (419,625) (449) (570,471)
(556,485) (41,322) (245,144) (230,699) (43,494) (23719) (1,140,863)
(126,537) (98,193) (87,235) (10,114) (8,741) (330,820)
(17,188) (79,597) (81,187) (104,672) (3,400) (39) (286,083)
(118,312) (15,842) (23,191) (229) (157,574)
(10,575,141) (546,932) (1,250,2086) (2,737,934) (2,446,798) (711) (17,557,722)
(50,644) (209,621) (244,927) (105830)  (279,335) (890,357)
(102,370) (68,976) (1,579) (4,130) (2,803) (80) (1,602 (181,538)
(11,251,214) (1,082,939) (2,001,519) (3852,413) (2613,117)  (312,625) (1,601)  (21,115428)
101,705 (10,795,324) 303,674 (844,419) 474,387 4849572 9994168 2,509,038 6,502,801
2019 12 31
3
1 12 1
1 3 5 5
)] 9 (852) (427) (1,275)
2018 12 31
3
12 1
1 5 5
(12) 108 260 248 604
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2019 12 31
3
1 12 1
3 5 5
509,415 449,528 1,849,384 53,790 40 2,862,157
(512,826) (453343)  (1,845,114) (54,222) (54) (2,865,559)
(3.412) (3.815) 4,270 (432) (14) (3.402)
2018 12 31
3
1 12 1
3 5 5
589,624 649,674 1,636,207 49,275 502 2,025,282
(588,961) (648,039) (1,637,033) (49,351) (496) (2,923,879)
663 1,636 (826) (76) 6 1,403
2019 12 31
1
1 5 5
187,064 265,518 604,214 1,056,796
339,829 339,829
646,134 646,134
104,848 102,713 8,668 216,229
148,334 2,706 151,040
1,426,209 370,937 612,882 2,410,028
2018 12 31
1
1 5 5
132,322 246,008 528,452 906,782
242,489 242,489
538,870 538,870
97,061 79,005 15,184 191,250
127,042 4,372 131,414
1,137,784 329,385 543,636 2,010,805

284/492



VaR

VaR

99%
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VaR

VaR

VaR

LPR

VaR

)

@

VaR

LPR
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2019
75 89 116 57
90 120 287 56

9 15 25 5

115 146 201 92

2018

109 76 119 44

123 117 300 12
17 14 19 9

120 134 252 57

LPR
LPR
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2019 12 31
( ( (
) ) )

2,634,765 53,709 1,041 10,380 2,699,895
168,817 44,574 4,605 17,746 235,742
292,023 163,495 43,886 23,779 523,183
10,628 13,473 194 649 24,944
708,551 708,551

12,348,706 348,051 51,769 71,084 12,819,610
777,121 10,887 10,441 2,912 801,361

4,870,459 61,071 7,982 7,229 4,946,741

1,426,703 211,441 3439 33,245 1,674,828
71,130 7,601 1,336 1,742 81,809

23,308,903 914,302 124,693 168,766 24,516,664

(608,086) (450) (608,536)

(1,429,626) (35,573) (16,058) (22,652)  (1,503,909)
(48,504) (205,326) (52,490) (19,043) (325,363)

(327,080) (3.547) (330,627)
(17,558) (11,054) (159) 77 (29,548)
(14,315) (31,638) (7,244) (53,197)

(18,126,394) (356,979) (36,907) (22581)  (18,542,861)
(797,166) (244,866) (25,539) (40641)  (1,108,212)
(242,710) (8,318) (1,360) (2,892) (255,280)

(21,611,439) (897,301) (132,513) (116,280)  (22,757,533)

1,697,464 17,001 (7,820) 52,486 1,759,131
126,517 22,665 (6,186) (42,246) 100,750

2,141,071 230,196 5,450 33,311 2,410,028
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( ) 2018 12 31
( ( (
) ) )
2,755,814 35,337 906 13,050 2,805,107
41,200 52,583 4312 11,633 109,728
331,738 167,234 39,896 13,145 552,013
4,587 31,613 81 663 36,944
371,001 371,001
11,032,180 331,601 46,919 50,842 11,461,542
616,802 11,160 12,332 2,951 643,245
4,432,187 58,918 4,928 7,665 4,503,698
1,518,932 180,027 3,084 36,089 1,738,132
49,641 6,592 986 1,773 58,992
21,154,082 875,065 113,444 137,811 22,280,402
(560,742) (453) (561,195)
(1,061,287) (31,565) (17,438) (14032)  (1,124,322)
(35,679) (231,041) (40,199) (18,623) (325,541)
(282,865) (3438) (286,303)
(27,894) (5,470) (247) (943) (34,554)
(111,942) (40,008) (5,151) (157,101)
(16,963,294) (332,184) (23,965) (26,847)  (17,346,290)
(497,790) (209,896) (31,747) (41,240) (780,673)
(168,772) (9,668) (944) (2,393) (181,777)
(19,710,264) (863,270) (114,540) (109,682)  (20,797,756)
1,443,818 11,795 (1,096) 28,129 1,482,646
66,987 17,299 9,749 (24,713) 69,322
1,776,217 191,808 9,655 33,125 2,010,805
5%

( ) 2019 12 31 2018 12 31

5% (938) (298) (556) 240

5% 938 298 556 (240)
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PBOC
2015 10 24 PBOC
2019 8 16 PBOC
LPR
LPR
) 2019 12 31
1 3 1

1 3 12 5 5
2,403,893 5,799 14,476 275,127 2,699,895
112,905 20,406 88,805 13,626 235,742
200,698 154,961 134,853 21,083 3,288 523,183
24,944 24,944
681,875 22,204 774 3,608 708,551
5,502,472 1,574,201 5,115,754 343,985 252,466 30,642 12,819,610
22,784 152,133 255,866 113428 105,131 132,019 801,361
75,653 140,993 452172 2,532,585 1,650,204 95,134 4,946,741
87,962 1425570 400,393 723583 299,052 21,268 1,674,828
81,809 81,809
9,117,242 2,212,747 6,463,093 3,734,664 2,306,853 682,065 24,516,664
(14,200) 33 (586,915) (455) (6:933) (608,536)
(987.313) (226,516) (193,695) (91,472 (260) (4.653) (1.503,909)
(128,699) (114,216) (73,762) (3,361) (3,689) (1,636) (325,363)
(119,351) (76,811) (116,949) “ (17.479) (330,627)
(29,548) (29,548)
(22.680) (18554) (11,631) (332 (53.197)
(11,671,856) (1,255,456) (2520,131) (2:804,741) (12,502) (278,175) (18,542,861)
(84.224) (212,941) (478,500) (20,551) (303,405) (8.582) (1108,212)
(255,280) (255,280)
(13,028,323) (1,904,527) (3,981,587) (2920,622) (319,856) (602,618) (22,757,533)
(3.911,081) 308,220 2,481,506 814,042 1,986,997 79,447 1,759,131
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( ) 2018 12 31
1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5
2,525,736 6,046 273,325 2,805,107
88,252 4,602 9,325 6,148 1,401 109,728
255,919 128,851 161,825 1,823 3,595 552,013
36,944 36,944
351,927 12,317 1,733 5,024 371,001
5,254,390 1,858,490 3,873,792 211,158 236,652 27,060 11,461,542
57,964 76,890 193,623 132,401 134,775 47,592 643,245
65,371 111,723 407,488 2,344,377 1,493,131 81,608 4,503,698
74,705 180,807 439,067 789,488 232,884 21,181 1,738,132
58,992 58,992
8,674,264 2,373,680 5,092,899 3,485,395 2,097,442 556,722 22,280,402
(49,000) (96,559) (406,000) (456) (9,180) (561,195)
(598,768) (241,587) (220,417) (34,049) (21,630) (7,871) (1,124,322)
(125,830) (98,972) (85,916) (6,450) (6,657) (1,716) (325,541)
(79,464) (80,720) (103,108) (3,400) (38) (19,573) (286,303)
(34,554) (34,554)
(118,163) (15,633) (22,745) (200) (360) (157,101)
(11,034,284) (1,211,550) (2,632,559) (2,205,898) (475) (261,524) (17,346,290)
(62,819) (243,563) (210,654) (20,190) (237,804) (5,643) (780,673)
(181,777) (181,777)
(12,068,328) (1,988,584) (3,681,399) (2,270,643) (266,604) (522,198) (20,797,756)
(3,394,064) 385,006 1,411,500 1,214,752 1,830,838 34,524 1,482,646
100 12
( ) 2019 12 31 2018 12 31
+100 (25,607) (42,579) (24,024) (67,879)
-100 25,607 42,579 24,024 67,879
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2012 CBIRC

Tierl

8%

2014 4 CBIRC

2017

2019 12 31

Tierl
Tierl

Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tier2

CBIRC

CBIRC

CBIRC

Tierl

Tierl

2.5%
Tierl
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5% 6%

1%
CBIRC
« )
CBIRC
2019 2018
12 31 12 31

11.24% 11.55%
12.53% 12.13%
16.13% 15.12%
1,748,467 1,591,376
(7,883) (7,449
1,740,584 1,583,927
199,894 79,906
1,940,478 1,663,833
557,833 409,510
2,498,311 2,073,343

15,485,352 13,712,894
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()
(1
Tierl Tierl Tierl
Tierl
(2 Tierl ( )
( Tierl )
3 Tierl ( )
Tierl
4 Tierl ( Tierl
)
5 Tier2 Tier2 ( )
( Tier2 )
6
46
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
46.1

294/492



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
46.2
3
1
2 1
3
46.3
(
MOF
)
( ) 2019 12 31
1 2 3
MOF 4544892 4,627,432 33506 4,403,618 190,308
356,902 365,299 23,643 341,656
( ) 2018 12 31
1 2 3
MOF 4,111,606 4,172,399 19139 3,948,241 205,019

282,880 291,787 26,597 265,190
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46.4
( ) 2019 12 31

1 2 3
24,128 24,128
340 340
476 476
24,944 24,944
540,387 540,387
540,387 540,387
2,190 199,269 201,459
29,132 29,132
2,3%4 2,354
7,100 236 7,336
93,298 4,194 97,492
2,108 22,194 70,881 95,183
2,227 5,351 15,799 23,377
12,419 199,231 211,650
28,207 28,207
99,174 5,010 104,184
987 987
28,398 676,092 96,871 801,361
200,203 1,452,949 1,653,152
18,594 18,594
1,107 1,975 3,082
201,310 1,452,949 20,569 1,674,828

229,708 2,694,372 117,440 3,041,520

296/492



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
2019 12 31
1 2 3

(14,147 (14,147)
(312,975) (312,975)
(3,505) (3,505)
(17,652) (312,975) (330,627)
(20,382) (20,382)
(1,676) (1,676)
(7,490) (7,490)
(29,548) (29,548)
(146,474) (146,474)

(193,674) (312,975) (506,649)
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2018 12 31
1 2 3
35,074 14 35,088
1,635 19 1,654
202 202
36,911 33 36,944
433,912 433,912
249 249
434,161 434,161
214,008 214,008
28,139 28,139
4,440 201 4,641
71,110 5,775 76,885
19,937 3,217 13,998 37,152
208 6,786 8,694 15,688
181 142,723 142,904
9,174 9,174
78,092 32,339 110,431
4,223 4,223
24,766 553,450 65,029 643,245
80,435 1,641,141 1,721,576
14,316 14,316
988 1,252 2,240
81,423 1,641,141 15,568 1,738,132

106,189 2,665,443 80,850 2,852,482
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( ) 2018 12 31
1 2 3
(17,188) (17,188)
(265,715) (265,715)
(3,400) (3,400)
(20,588) (265,715) (286,303)
(31,381) (14) (31,395)
(820) (19 (839)
(2,320 (2,320)
(34,521) (33) (34,554)
(55,109) (265,748) (320,857)
2
3
3
3
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
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2018 1 1
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2019
65,029 33 15,568 (265,715) (33)
116,620 8,183
(1,556,474)
(87,063) (33) (3,503) 1,517,367 33
2,285 (8153
321
96,871 20,569 (312,975)
1,004 85
2018
131,928 25 11,950 (364,151) (37)
40,833 7,386
1,742,672
(109,866) (19) (3,760) (1,633,946) 1
2,134 27 7 (10,290) 3
€y
65,029 33 15,568 (265,715) (33)
(3,390) 16 44 10
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471

12020 1 10

22020 3 30

20,623

34,211

2019 12
63,662

2019 12 31

47.2

2020 1

31

2020 3 11
2019 12 31
( 36)
( 37)
2019 12 31
10)
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12 31

2019 2018
2,699,397 2,804,746
210,400 90,380
30,063 21,268
611,187 581,208
24,944 36,944
701,304 369,024
12,765,407 11,420,286
608,494 497,702
4,915,498 4,467,824
1,579,790 1,688,965
19 41,543 28,960
208 236
131,462 110,462
141,692 143,296
120,072 112,535
125,774 90,071
24,707,235 22,463,907
608,488 561,136
1,514,804 1,128,357
284,187 291,632
330,627 286,303
29,496 34,525
49,360 152,847
18,541,030 17,346,832
1,081,040 758,935
332,818 239,961
22,771,850 20,800,528
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12 31
2019 2018
32 349,983 349,983
33 199,886 79,899
79,899 79,899
119,987
34 173,357 173,357
35 29,549 18,890
36 174,551 153,928
37 275,790 238,215
730,309 647,737
1,960 1,370
1,935,385 1,663,379
24,707,235 22,463,907

2020 3 30
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49 ( )
( )
2018 12 31 349,983 79,899 173,357 18,890 153,928 238,215 647,737 1370 1663379
_ _ _ _ _ _ 206,232 _ 206,232
_ _ _ 10,659 _ - - 590 11,249
_ _ _ 10,659 _ _ 206,232 590 217,481
33 _ 119,987 _ _ _ _ _ _ 119,987
36 _ _ _ _ 20,623 _ (20,623) _ _
37 - - - - - 37,575 (37,575) _ _
10 _ _ _ _ _ _ (60,862) _ (60,862)
10 _ _ _ _ _ _ (4,600) _ (4,600)
2019 12 31 349,983 199,886 173,357 29,549 174,551 275,790 730,309 1960 1,935,385
( )
2017 12 31 324,794 79,899 98,574 (18,934) 134,061 230,065 574,931 117 1,423,507
_ _ _ 9,641 _ (95) (35,243) _ (25,697)
2018 1 1 324,794 79,899 98,574 (9,293) 134,061 229,970 539,688 117 1,397,810
_ _ _ _ _ _ 198,672 _ 198,672
_ _ _ 28,183 _ _ _ 1,253 29,436
_ _ _ 28,183 _ _ 198,672 1,253 228,108
32 25,189 _ 74,783 _ _ _ _ _ 99,972
36 _ _ _ _ 19,867 _ (19,867) _ _
37 _ _ _ _ _ 8,245 (8,245) _ _
10 _ _ _ _ _ _ (57,911) _ (57,911)
10 _ - — _ _ _ (4,600) _ (4,600)

2018 12 31 349,983 79,899 173,357 18,890 153,928 238,215 647,737 1,370 1,663,379
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{Amouris i millisrd of Renrminks, urles olbsraiie slated)

Year ended 31 December
Iy 2019 20NE
Interest income 1 859,141 784,724

Intenest expense 1 (372,270) (306, 64}
_Met interest income 1 436,870 477760
Fee and commission income 2 103,011 91,525
Fee and commission expense 2 {16,085) {13,384)
Met fee and commission income 2 | B6.926 Ta.141
het tradifig gain E] 19.067 16,069
Net gain on financial investments 4 5,793 8,460
Met gain on derecognition of financial assets measured at amortized cost - 30
Other operating income 5 30,693 22,087
Operating income 629,350 802,557
Operating exponses 3 (224,095) (213,963)
Credit impalrment losses g {128,505} {136,547)
Impazrment losses on other assels (118} (251)
Operating profit 266,531 251,696
Share of result of associates and joant veniures 20 45 (22}
Profit bafore tax 166,576 251,674
Income 1ax expense 9 (53.652) (49,043}
Profit for the year 212,924 202,631
Artributable to:
Equinty holders of the Bamnk 212,098 202,783
Non-controlling interests 826 (152}
212,924 207,631

Earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders
of the Bank (expressed In RME yuan per share)
— Basic and diluted 1 0.59 0,59

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

158 (@rureur
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the yedr erded 31 December 20019
(Amaunts i milions of Renminki, wnies olbense siated)

Year ended 31 December

2019 201
Prafit for the year A 212,924 202,631
Cither comprehansive incomse:
Iterms that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or boss:
Faif value changes on financial asseis at fair value through other
comprehensive mcome 59,239 35,360
Loss allowance on financlal assets at fal value through other
comprahensive mcome 5,637 3,243
Income tax impact for tair value chenges and loss allowance on
financial assels at fair value threugh other comprehensive income {4,208} 19,290
Foreign currency translation differences 746 1.505
Subtotal 11,416 0,818
Iterms that wall not be reclassified subsaquently 1o profit of loss:
Fair valiie changes on othar equity Investiments detignated at fair value
through ather comprebensive moame 383 196
Income tax impact for fair value changes on other equity Investments
diesignated at fair value through other comprehansive Incomae (98) (47)
Subtotal 285 149
_ Other comprehensive income, net of tax : LLIYL L _30.967
Total comprehensive income for the year 224,625 233,508
Total comprehensive income attributable 1o
Equity holders of the Bank 223,536 233079
hWen-controlling interasts 1,089 519
224,625 233,598

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consalidated financial statements.

Annual Repon 2019 159
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2019
[Amaurit o milicns ol Renmink, urles elbsnase sated)

A at 21 Decambar
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2019

Assels
Cash and balances with central banks 12 2,699,895 2,805,107
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 13 235,742 109,728
Procious matals 20,063 211,268
Placements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions. 14 523,183 552,013
Derivative financlal assets 15 24,944 36,544
Financial assets hald under resale agreements 16 708,551 371,001
Loans and advances 1o customers 17 12,819,610 11,461,542
Financial invesiments 18
Finzncial assets at fair value through profit or loss 801,351 543,245
Debt instrument imvestments at amortized cost 4,946,741 4,503,698
Other debxt instrument and other equity investments
at falr value through other comprehensave income 1,674,828 1,738,132
Investment in associates and joint ventures 20 6,672 4,005
Property and equipment 21 152,484 152,452
Goodwill 1,381 1,381
Deferred tax assets 22 120,952 113,293
Other assets 23 131.881 95,662
Taotal assets 24,878,288 22,609,471
Liabilities
Borrowings from central banks 24 B08.536 561,195
Deposits from banks and other financial institutons Fi 1,503,909 1,104,327
PMacements from banks and other financial institutions 26 325,363 325,541
Financial labilities at fair value through pmﬁ! ar loss 27 330,627 286,303
Derivative financial Fabilities 15 29,548 34,554
Financial assets sold under répurchase agreements 28 53,197 157,101
Due to customers 29 18,542,861 17,346,290
Dbt securities issued 30 1,108,212 780673
Deferred tax liabifities 22 520 138
Other liabilities A 415,753 318,566
Total liabilitios 22,918,526 20,934,684

160 (Hrurean
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

A5 at 31 December 2019
Al i milons of Refiminkl, e olbensde stated)

Ag at 31 Decombar

2019
Equity
Cwrdinary shares 32 349,983 349,983
Other equity instrements i3 199,686 79,899
Preference shares 79,899 79,800
Perpetual bonds 119,987 -
Capital resene A4 173,556 173,556
Investiment revaluation reserve EL 29,684 18,992
Surplus reserve 36 174,510 154,257
General resene a7 217016 239,190
Retained earnings 41,101 652,944
Foseign cumency translation reserve 2,219 1,473
Equaty atinbutable 1o equity holders of the Bank 1,948,355 1,670,294
Mon-controlling interests " 11,407 4,493
Total equity 1,959,762 1,674,787
Total equity and liabilities 24,878,288 12,609.47

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorzed for ksue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 Decernber 2009
JAmowis i millised ol Fenrminks, urles olbsranie slated)
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the yedr erded 31 December 20019
(Amaunts i milions of Renminki, wnies olbense siated)

EDINETOOOO

O0O00000000000(Ee24593)

Yoar andod 31 Decombar

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2019

Profit before tax 266,576 251,674
Adjustments for
Amodtization of intangible assets and othar assets 1,934 2,309
Depreciation of property, eguipment and right-of-use assets 16,777 14,104
Credit impalrment losses 138,605 136,647
Impairment bosses on other assets 118 251
Interest income arising from investment securitees {232,571) {216,118}
Interest expense on debl securities issued 31,375 23,094
Revaluatien gain on financial instruments at fair value through prefit or loss (9,641) (5, 120}
Nt gain on INVEStMEnt securities (494) (351}
Share of result of associates and joint venlures (45) 22
Wet gain on disposal of property, equipment and other assets {1.217) {1,068}
het foreign exchange gain (8,135) (B, 733)
203,282 198,711
Met change In operating assets and operating liabilities:
Met decrease in balances with central banks, deposits with banks and
other financial insttutions 173,726 266,843
Met increase in placements with and joans to banks and
other financial institutions (42,279) {75,015)
Met decrease in financial assets held under resale agreements 15,474 23,004
Net increase in loans and advances 1o customers (1,442,873) {1.238,775)
et increase in borrowings from central banks 45,587 86,098
Met (decreaselfincrease in placements from banks and
other financial institutions (98) 43,764
Net increase in due to customers and depaosits from banks and
other financial institutions 1,551,818 1,093,590
{increasel/Decrease in other operating assels {148,837) 3,365
IncreasefiDecreasa) in other operating liab litias 46,446 (247 5938)
Cash from operations 406, 246 153,647
Income tax pakd (53,675) (47,720}
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 352,571 105,927

310/492
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the year ended 31 Decernber 2009
JAmowis i millised ol Fenrminks, urles olbsranie slated)

Yoar endaed 31 Dacambar

2019

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash recelved from disposalredemption of Investment securiies 1,731,574 1,868,019
Cash recewed from interest income ansing from inestment securntios 223,034 199,504
Cash recewed from disposal of property, equipment and othor assats 1,178 5,805
Cash paid for purchase of investment securitios (2.969.824) (2,491,466
Increase In investment in associates and joint ventures (2.657) (3.801)

__Cash paid for purchase of property, eguipment and other assets (14,110} (17,048}

MET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (230,805) (439,087}

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contribution from fssues of shares - 100,007
Cash payments for transaction cost of shares ssued - {36]
Contribution from issues of other equity instruments 120,000 -
Cash payments for transaction cost of other equity instruments issued {13} -
Cash recewed from debt securities issued 1,465,652 1,310,162
Repaymants of debt secunties issusd (1.141,045) {1.021.557)
Cash payments for interest on debt securities issued {28.441) (21.844)
Cash payments for transaction cost of debt securities issued (63} (96)
Cath payments far principal portion and interest portion of

lease liability {4,687) B
Capital contribution fram non-controlling interests 5.825 49
Dividends paid to ordinary shareholders {60.BR2) (57.911)
Dividends paid to preference shareholders {4,600) {4,800}
Dividends paid to non-contraliing Interests - (1}

WET CASH EROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 351,765 304,873

MET INCREASE/{DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 473,531 (28,287}

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 1 JANUARY 978,441 1.001.246

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES OM CASH AND

_ CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,609 5,482

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 38 1,454,581 978,441

MET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES INCLUDE:

Interast received 582,522 515,982
Interas! paid (318,125} {286,984}

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consalidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

| GENERAL INFORMATION

Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the “Bank®) is the successor entity to the Agricultural Bank of China (the
“Predecessor Entity”) which was a whally state-owned commercial bank approved for setup by the People’s Bank
of China (the *PBOC ") and founded on 23 February 1979 in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC™). On 15
lanuary 2009, the Bank was establshed after the completion of the financial restructuring of the Predecessar
Enuity, The Bank's establshment was authorized by the PBOC, The Bank was ksted on the Shanghai Stock
Exrhange and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 15 July 2010 and 16 July 2010, respectively.

The Bank operates under financial services certificate No. BOOOZH 111000001 ssued by the China Banking and
Insurance Regulatory Commission (the former “China Banking and Regulatedy Commipston, CBRC" and “China
Insurance Regulatory Commussion, CIRC®, the “CBIRC "), and business koense No. 911100001000054743 issued
by Beying Administration of Industry and Commerce. The registered office of the Bank iz located at Mo, &9

liangiomen Mel Avenue, Dongcheng District. Beijing, the FRC.

The principal activities. of the Bank and its subsidearies {collectively, the “Group®) include Renminb: {"RMB" ) and
foreign currency depesits, loans, clearing and settlement services, assets custodian services, fund management,
financial leasing services, insurance services and other serveces as approved by relevant regulators, and the
prowision of related serices by IS overseas sstablishiments as approved by the respsctive local regulaters.

The head office and domestic branches of the Bank and its subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China are
referred te as the "Domestic Operations”. Branches and subsidiaries registered and operating outside of the
Mainland China are referred to as the “Overseas Operations™

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1 Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The corsalidated financal statements have been prepared n accordance with International Finandcial
Repartng Standards (“IFRSs"), a8 msued by the International Accounting Standards Boaed (“IASB").
In additien, the consolidated financial statemenis include applicable disclosures required by the Rubes
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) for this financlal year and the comparative period,

Basis of preparation

The consokdated fimancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for cartain
financial instruments which are measurad at falr value, as explained In the accounting policies set out
below. Historscal cost is generally based on the fair value of consideration given in exchange for assets and
that s received (or in some circumstances the amount expected 1o be pasd) with respect to Rabilities.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain cntical
accounting estimates. It also requines management to exercise its judgment in the process of apphing the

Group's accounting policies, The areas ivelving a higher degree ol judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptiaons and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements ane disclosed in Note (i,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{amourits n millioes of Benminks, unles olheosise sated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basic of preparation {Continued)

1.1 Other amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2019 relevant to and
adapted by the Group

The following amendments have been adopted by the Group for the first time during the financial
year ended 31 December 2019,

{1} IFRS 16 Leasas
{2) IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income Tax Treatments
{3)  Amendments fo IFRS 9 Frepayment Features with Negatve Compensation and Maodifications
of Financial Liabilities
(4} Amendments to IFRS 3,  The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
IFRS 11, 1AS 12 and
145 23
{5) Amendments o 145 19 Cmployee Benefits' Regarding Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Setilement
(8)  Amendments o 145 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

(1) IFR5 16: Leases

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 as issued by the IASE with the transition date of 1 January
2019, As permatted under the specific transitional provisions in the standard, the Group did not
restated comparative figures. The reclassilications and the adjustments arising from the new
leasing rules are therefore recognized in the opening balance sheet on 1 lanuary 2019,

The specfic accounting policses atfected by the new leasing rules are as folkows:
The implementation of the new leasing rules matnly affects the Group as the lessee.

According to the requirements of IFRS 16, the Group recognized the right-of-use assets at the
commencement date, and recognized the lease liabilities at the present value of the outstanding
lease payments. The Group’s right-of-use assets mainly include operation buildings. The
right-of-use assets are measured at costs compaising the followang: the amount of the initial
reasurement of lease Rabilities, any lease payments made at or before the cormmencement date,
any initiad direct costs, restoration costs and less any lease mcentives received. IF the Group could
reasonably determine the ownership of the leased asset when the bkease term expires, the right-
of-use assets are depreciated ower the asset's remaining wseful life. Othersise, the nght-of-use
as5ets are depreciated over the shorter penod of the asset’s wseful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. When the recoverable costs of right-of-use assets are lower than the camying
amount, the value of nght-of-use assets will be decreased down to the recoverable costs.

Short-term leases and leases of ow-value assets are recognized on a straight-line bams a5 an
expanse in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with @ lease term of 12 months or less.
Leases of low value assets are the underiying assets are of low value whien new.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basic of preparation (Continued)

1.1 Other amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2019 relevant to and
adopted by the Group (Continued)

(1) IFRS 16: Leases (Continued)
The impact of the Group's implementation of the new lease rules are as follows:

The Group has recognized the lease [isbikties in relation 1o leases which had praviously be
classified a5 'operating leases” under the principles of 1AS 17 leases as of 31 Decamber 2013,
The lease liabilites were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payment
deeounted by the lesses™s incrernental barrowing rate on the date of initial application, and the
amount of the practical expedients, contracts reassessed as lease contracts and adjustments as
a result of a different treatment of extension and termination options was taken into account
dufing the process al calculation, The difference bebwesn the lease llabilities recognized
on | lanuary 2019 and the remaining lease payments of non-cancellable operating lease
commitments an 31 Decemnber 2018 B RMEB 178 million. The incremental bormoweng rate applied
to the lease fabibties recognized under each non-cancellable operating lease commitment was
based on upon the yedd-to-maturity of bonds with the similar matunties issued by each lessee
in the Group, comprehensively considering the remaining lease term, leate business scale and
guaraniee conditions. The right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal to lease
liabalities, adjusted by the amount of any prepasd or accrued lease payments relating 1o that
lease recognized in the balarce dhest as al 31 December 2018, In addition, In applylng new
leasing rules for the first time, the Group has used the practical expedients permitted by the
stondard, mainly including the accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of
less than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 as shori-term leases, nof recognizing lease Habilites
and right-of-use assets for short-term leases and low-value lases,

On 1 lanuary 2019, the Group recognized the right-of-use assets amounted RMEB11,095 million
and lease liabilities amounted RMB10,428 million. The implementation of IFRS 16 does not have
any impact on net asset of the Group a8 at 1 lanuary 2019,

(2} IFRIC 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

I Jume 2017 the LASH issued (FRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatmenis to carily how o
apply the recogmition and measurement requirements in 145 12 when there s uncertainty over
income tax treatments. The adoption of this interpretation did not have a significant impact an
the Group's consolidated financlal statements.

(3) Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with MNegative Compensation and
Modifications of Financlal Liabilities

On 12 Qetobar 2017, the 1ASE msued amendments to RS 9 Propayment Features with
Negative Compensation and Modifications of Financial Liabilities. These amendments permit
more assels to be measured at amodtized cost than under the prévious verson of IFRS 9, in
partioular some prepayable financlal assets, These amendments also clarify the accounting for a
medification or exchange of a financial liabdity measured at amortized cost that does not result
in the derecogrition of the financial liability. The adopticn of the amandmaents did not have a
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

(@) Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, 1AS 12 and 145 23 The Annual Improvements to IFRSS
201 5-2017 Cyele

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle include a number of amendments to
vanous IFRSs, including the amendments to IFRS 3 — Business Combinations, the amendmenis
to IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements, the amendments 10 1AS 12 — Income taxes and IAS 23 —
Barrowing Costs. The adoption of the amendmants did not hawe a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statemnenis.
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Far the year ended 31 Decermnber 2019
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basic of preparation {Continued)

1.1 Other amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2019 relevant to and
adapted by the Group (Confinued)

(5) Amendments to [AS 19: Employee Benefits® Regarding Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

On 8 February 2018, the 1ASE ssued amendments 1o 1AS 19: Employes Benafits regarding plan
amendment, curtailment or settiement to require an entity to detarmine the amount of any past
service cost, or gain or loss on settlement by measuring the net defined benefit kability betore
and after the amendment, wsing cument assumpiions and the falr value of plan assets at the
time of the amendment. The adoption of the amendments did not have a significant impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statemaents.

(6) Amendments to 1AS 28: Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
On 12 October 2017, the 1ASE msued amendments to 1AS 28: investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures to clarify that companies account for long-term interests in an associate of jomnt
venture — to which the equity methed is not appiied — using IFRS 9. The adoption of the
amendments did not have a significant impact on the Group's consalidated financial staterments,

1.2 Standards and amendmenis relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted before their effective dates in 2019

The Group has not adopted the following new and amended standards that have been issuad but are
nat yof affective

annhua t

beginning on or after

{1} Amendments o 145 1 and A5 B The Definiticn of Matenal 1 lanuary 2020

{2} Amendments fo FAS 3 The Definition of A Business 1 January 2020

(3)  Amendments to FRS 9, Interest rate benchmark rofomm 1 lanuary 2020

145 39 aref RS 7

IS Insurance Coniracts 1 January 2021

(lkely to be extended

ta 1 laniacy 2023}

15 Amendments to 1AS 1 Classlication of Liabites as Current or 1 lanuary 2022
Non-tutfent

{6 Amendments to FRS 10and 145 23 Sae or Contribation of Assets batween The amentments wers

An Irwestor and It Associate or criginally mtended o be

Joirit Venture affective for annual pariads

beginning on or after

1 Jancaty 2016, The

effective date has now

b deferred.
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For the year erded 31 Decembss 2009
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basic of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted before their effective dates in 2019 (Continued)

(1) Amendments ta IAS 1 and 1AS 8: The Definition of Material

The 1ASE issued amendments to the definiton of material in 1AS 1 and 1A5 8. The amended
delinition is: “Information s matesial if amitting, misstating of obscuning I could reasonably be
expected 1o Influence decistons that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the baus of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a

specific reporting entity.”

The amendment clanfies: that the reference to obscuring infosmation addresses situstions in
which the effect Is similar to emitting or misstating that information. it also states thal an enlity
asseises materiality m the context of the linancial statements as a whole,

The amendment also clarifes the meaning of ‘primary users of general purpose financial
statements' to whom those financial statements are directed, by definirg tham as 'existing and
patential Imvestoss, lenders and other crediiors’ that must rely on general purpose financial
staterments for much of the financial information they need. The Group anticipates that the
adoption of the amendments will mat have a significant impact on the Group's comsalidatad
fimancial statements

{2) Amendments ta IFRS 3: The Definition af A Business

The 1458 ssusd amendments to the definition of a business in KRS 3. To be considered a
business, an acguisition wouwld have 1o include an'input and a substantive pracess that together
significantly contribute 1o the ability 10 create outputs. The definition of the term ‘outputs’ is
narrowed to focus on goods and services provided 19 customers, generating investment incomse
and other income, and it excludes returns in the form of lower costs and other economic
benefits. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amandments will nat have a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(3) Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 and IFRS 7: Interest rate benchmark reform

The 1ASE has issued amendments to IFRS 9, |AS 39 and IFRS 7 that provide certain reliefs
in connection with interest rate benchmark refoem. The amendments apply 1o all hedging
relationships that are directly affected by Interbank oifered rates ("IBOR") reform. The releds
relate to hedge accounting and have the effect that IBOR reform should not generally cause
hedge accounting to terminate. However, any hedge inetfectivencss should continue to be
recarded in the income statlement. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments
will mot have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements,

{4) IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 was ssued in May 2017 as replacerment for IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. |t requires a
current measurement model where estimates are re-measured each raporting pericd. Cantracis
are measured using the budlding blocks of. discounted probability-welghted cash Hows, an
explicit nsk adjustment, and a contractual service margin {"C5M”) representing the uneamed
prafit-of the contract which s recognized as revenue over the coverage poriod.

The standard allows a choice between recognizing changes in discount rates either in the
income staterment o directly in other comprehensive income. The choice is likely to reflect how
Iresurers account for their financial assets under IFRS 9,

An optional, simplified premium allocation approach is parmitted for the Hability for the
remaining cowverage for shon duration contracts, which are often written by non-life insurars.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1 Basic of preparation {Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments refevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted before their effective dates in 20019 (Continued)

{4) IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts {Continued)

There i5 a modification of the general measurement model called the “vanable fee approach®
for certain contracts wilten by Bfe msurer: where policyholders share in the returns fiam
underlying items. When applying the variable fee approach the entity’s share of the fair value
changes of the underlying items is included in the contractual service margin, The results of
insurers using this model ara therefore likely to be less volatile than under the general modal.

The new rules will affect the financial staternents and key performance indicators of all entities
that issue insurance contracts or investment contracts with discretionary participation features

The Group has pot completad its asdedarment af the impact on the Group's oparating results and
financial position of adopting IFRS 17,

The standard s cumently mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021, However, the IASE decided to defer the effective date of IFRS 17 1o annual
reparting pericds beginming on o after 1 lanuary 2023 on 17 March 2020, and expacts 1o (ssus
the amendrments 10 IFRS 17 |n the second gquarter of 2020,

(5) Amendments to 1AS 1 Classiffeation of Liabilities as Current or Nen-current

Thia |ASE issuad a narrow-scope amendment 1o 145 1 to clanfy that kabilites are clasufied as
either current or non-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting
perad, The amendment reguires the following:

*  Liabilities are classified as non-cument (f the entity has a substantive right to defer
sattlement for at least 12 months at the end of the reporting panod. The amendment no
longer refers to unconditional rights, snce loans ade rarely unconditional (for example,
because the loan might contan covenants),

*  The assessment determines whether a right exists, but it doss not consider whether the
antity will exercise the night. 50 management's expectabions do not affect classification

+  The rght 1o defer only exists if the entity complies with any relevant conditions at the
reporting date. A liability is classified as current if a condition is breached a1 or before the
reporting date and a walver (& obtaned after the reporting date. A loan B classfied as non-
current if a covenant |5 breached after the reparting date.

«  “Spitlement® B defined as the extinguishment of a labdity with cash, other econcmic
MESCUICEs O an entity’'s own eguity instruments. There 5 an exception for conwvertible
instruments that might be converted into equity, but ondy for those instruments where
the conversion option i dassifled as an equity instrument as a separate component of a
compound financial instrument

The amendment changes the guidance for the classification of Habilites as current or non-
current. 1t could affect the classification of habilities, particularly for entities that previously
considared management's intentions to determine classification and for some liabilities that can
be converted into eguity All entites should reconsidar their exsting classification in the light of
the amendment and determine whether any changes are required. The Group anticipates that
the adoption of the amendments will not have a significant Impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1 Basic of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective and have
not been adopted before their effective dates in 2019 (Continued)

(6) Amendments to IFRS 10 and JAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assetr between An Investor
and lts Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address an inconsistency between (FRS 10 and IAS 28 in the sale and
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.

A full gain or loss is recognized when a transaction Involves a business. A partial gain or boss Is
recognized when a Uansaction imaolves assets thal do not constitule a business, even il those
A4s815 are in & subsidiary,

The Group antcipates that the adoption of the amendments will nol have a significant impact
o the Group's contalidatad financial statemants.

2 Consolidation
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financlal statements of 1the Bank and its subsidiaries
a5 well as structured entities controlled by the Group, The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed 1o, or hos rghts 1o, vatiable returns from its invelvemient with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Income and expense of subsidianes acquired or disposed of during the year are Included |n the consolidated
incame staternent from the date of acquisition or up to the date on which control ceases, respectively,

Adjustments are made 1o the financial statements of subsidiaries, where appropriate, to consistently reflect
the accounting policies of the Group '

All intra-group transactions, balances and unreslized gains on transactions are elimnated. Unrealived losses
are akso eliminated uniess the transaction provides evadence of an impairment of the transferred asset

Men-cantrolling mterests of consclidated subsicanes are presentad separately from the controlling party's
equity therain,

Thie carnng amount of non-controlling intenests is the amount of those mierests 8t inibal recognation plus
the non-cantrolling interests” share of subsequent changes i equity. Further, total comprehensive Incodme
of a subsdiary s attnbuted, based on the proportion of their respective holdings, to the equity heldars of
the Bank and 1o the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

In the Bank's statement of financial posdticn, its investments in subsidiaries are stated a1 cost, less
impairment kosses, i any.

Business combinations

Acguisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method, The consideration transferred
in @ bisiness combination s measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date
fair value aof the assets transferred by the Group, labilities incurred or assumed by the Group, and any

equity interests issued by the Group, Acquisition refated costs are recognized in the consolidated income
statemneni as incurred.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2 Consolidation (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisiton date, irespective of non-controling nterests, the identifiable assets acquired and
habilities and contingent liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair values; except that deferred tax
assets of liabilities, and assets or liabilities related 1o employee benefit arrangements are recognized and
measured in accordance with 145 12 — Income Taxes and 145 19 — Employee Benefits, respectively,

Goodwill 15 measured as the excess of the difference between (i} the consideration transferred, the fair
value of any non=controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair valus of the Group's prewously held
equity interest in the acquiree (il any) and (i) the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and the
fabilities and contingent habibties incurred or assumed.

MNon-controlling Interests that represent ewnership Interests In the acquiree, and entitle their holders to
a proportianate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of hgwidaton are accounted for at either fair
value of the non-controlling interests’ proportionate shafe i the recognized amounts of the acqulnes's
identifiable net assets, The choioe of measurement bass s made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Goadwill

Goodwill reprecents the excess of the cost of an acquisition less the fair value of the Group's share of
the net identifiable assets ol acquired subsidiaries and associates at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquutions of subsidiaries s presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial position
Gaodwill an scquisition of assoclates is included in investrent In associates.,

For the purposes of impairment 1esting, goodwill is allocated o each of the Group's cash-generating units
{"CGU" ) or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination.

A CGU 5 the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that ane largely indapendent
of the cash inflows from other asseis or groups of assets,

A CGU ta which gocdwlll has been allocated s tested for impalmment annually of more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the secoverable amount of the CGU, which is the
higher of fair value less costs 10 sell and value in use, i less than its carnving amaount, the defiat, reflecting
an impairment loss, Is allocated first to reduce the carmyng amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU
and then to the other assets of the CGU an & pro-rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the CGU. Any goodwill impairment loss is recognizad directly in the consolidated Income statement. An
ampalmment loss recognized Tor goodwdll B mot reversed in subsequent pertods.

Investment in aszociate and faint venture

An associate 5 an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that & neither a subsidiary
nof an inleest in a joint venture. & joinl venture s an arrangement whereby the Group and othei parties
contractually agree 1o share contred of the arrangement through a separate entity, and have nights 1o the
met assets of the arrangement based on legal form, contract terms, and other facts ond circumstances.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
mvestes but does not constitule control or joint control over those policy decisicns. Joint control s the
contractually agreed sharing of control over an activity, and exists only when the decisicns relating to the
activity require the unanimous corsent of the Group and other parties sharing the contrel.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2 Consolidation (Continued)
Inwestment in associate and joint venture (Continued)

The post-acquistion profit or boss of an associate or a joant venture 15 incorporated in the consolidated
financial statemants using the equity method of aceounting. Under the equity method, investment in an
asscclate of a joint wenture is initlally recognized at cost and adjusted thereafler 10 recognize the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or jomnt venture. When the
Group's share of loss of an associate of a [oint venlure equals of exceads 18 nterest (A that associate of
jfoint venture (which includes any long-lerm interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of furthar loss.
Additional loss is recognized only 1o the extent that the Group has incurred legal or consiructive obligations
or made payments on behall of that associate oo joint venfure.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group considers whether there are circumstances that indicate the
possibility of impairment of the Group's investmeant in an associate or a joint venture, when that & the case,
the entire carrying amount of the investment (ncuding goodwill) 15 tested for Impairment in accordance
with 145 36 — impairment of Assets, as a single assel by comparing its recoverable amount (the higher of
fair value less costs to sell and value in use) with its carrying amount, any impairment loss recognized forms
part of the carrying ameunt of the Investment. Any reversal of an impalrment lods is recognized, 1o the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases,

When an entity in the Group tramsacts with the Group's assoclate or joint venture, profits and fosses
resulting from the tramsaction are recognized in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
oxtont of the interest in the Hsociate o jownt venture that are not related 1o the Group, Unrealized lessas
are aliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transierred,

3 Interest income and expenses

Intesest income and expenses of financial instruments are calculated using the effective interest mathod
and included in the current profit and loss.

The Group uses the effective intenest method to calculate the interest (ncome and expenses of financial
assets and labilities measured at amortized cost, presented as “interest income™ and “interest expenses”
respactively. For specific accounting policies, please refer to the Note Il 8.4 subsequent measuremnent of
financial instrumants.

4 Fee and commission income

Fee and commission incorme 15 recognized when the Group fulfills s performance obligation, either over
tirme of &t a paint in time when 3 custemer abtaing controd of the senice

For the performance obligations satisfled at a point in time, the Group recognizes revenue when control
s passed to the customer at a certain point In tme, ncluding insurance agency lee, merchant acgquiring
service fee, settlerment & clearing serdces and bond underwriting fee, etc. For the performance cbligations
salisfied ower time, the Group recognizes revenue according to the progress toward satisfaction af the
abligation over the time, including consultancy and advisory fée and custodial fee, eic.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
5 Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Domestic Operations is RMB. The presentation currency of the Group and
the Bank is RMEB.

in preparing the financal statements of each indwidual Group enbtity, fransachions in currencies other
than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded In the respectve functional
currency (e, the currency of the primary economic environment m which the entity operates) at the rates
of michange prevailing at the dates of the transactions, Al the end of the reporting penod, monelary ilems
denominated in forelgn currencies are retranslated at the rates prevalling at that date. Non-manatary (tems
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. Nan-manetary ltems that are measured at histerical cost in a
fioreign currency are not retranstated.

Exchange differences arising on the seltlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
iters, are recograzed in the consolidated income statement in the pericd in which they arise, excapt for the
following:

(i} exchange differences arising on a manetary item that forms part of the Bank's net investment in the
Cherseas Operations;

(i) changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency classified a5 financial
irmeestments a1 fair value threugh comprehensive income are analyzed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortized cost of the monetary assets and other changes in the carmying
amount. Translation differemces rolated 1o changes In the amorized cost ané recognized in the
consolidated income statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in other
COMPIBNBnsive INCome,

Exchange differences arsing on the retrarslation of non-monelary items carmed at far value are included
in the comolidated income statement for the period excepl for exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of pon-monatary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognized directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange differences ame also recognized directly in other
comprehensive IRCome.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated finencal statements, the assets and labilites of the
Group®s Overseas Operations are franslated into the presentation currency of the Group at the rate of
exchange provaling at the end of the reporting penod, and thair income and expenses are translated at
oxchange rates at the date of the transactions, or a rate that approximates the exchange rates of the date
of the transaction. Exchange differences arising, i any, are recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the foresgn currency transiation resenve and non-controlling interests, as
apprapriate. The accumulated foreign currency translation reserve related to the Cvorseas Dperations will
be reclassified from equaty to the consolidated income statement on disposal of all or part of the Overseas
Operations.

& Taxation
income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax
The tax currently payable is basea on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated income statement becawse it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in ather years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for

cument tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
6 Taxation (Continuad)
Deferred tax

Ceferred tax s recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the conenlidated fmancial statements and the comesponding tax base wsed in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax fiabilities are generally recognized for all taxable tempaorary differences, Deferred tax
assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those daductible termporary differences can be utilized,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized for temporary difference related to goodwill or the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination} of other assets and llabilities in a tramcaction that
alfecis neither taxable prafit ner accounting profit

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and asseclates, except where the Group is able to controf the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temparary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arsing from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
intenests ane only recognized 1o the extent thal it = probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foresecable future.

The carrying amaount of defarred tax aseets is reviewed a1 the end of each reporting period and reducad
to the extent that the tempaorary difference wall not reverse in the foreseeable future or it & no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset 1o be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the perod in
which the llabdity is settled or the asuet realized, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have boen enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reparting period.

The measuternent of deferred tax liabifities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the mannay in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting persod, to recover or saitle the carrying
amaunt of s assels and liabdites. Current and deferred tax is recognized in the comsolidated income
statemenl, except when it relates to items that ane recognized in other comprebensive Income of directly
in egquity, in which case the current and deferred 1ax B also recognized i other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceabbe right to set off curment tax
assels against curnent tax liabilities, when they relate to income taxes kevied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its curment tax assets and labilites on a met basis,

Value-added Taxes (“VAT®)

Thi Group™s Interest income, fee and commissson income, trading gain on financial products and insurance
premium income are presented net of their respective VAT In the consolidated financlal statements.

In accordance with “Circular regarding the Value-added Taxes Policies for Finoncial, Real Estate
Development and Education Ancillary and Other Services™ {Cai Shui [2018] Mo, 140}, the “Supplementary
Circu‘ar regarding Issues concerning Valwe-added Taxes Policies for Asset Manzgement Products™ (Cai
Shiui [2017] Mo, 21 and the “Circular on the Relevant lsues concerning Value-added Tax Levied on Asset
Management Products™ (Cai Shua [20017] No. 56), the Group shall pay VAT a1 3% for taxable asset
managemeant activities undertaken after 1 January 2018, '
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
7 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given and other relevant expenditure incurred by the
Group in exchange for services rendered by employees or for termination of the employment contracts.
These benefits include short-term employee benefits, post-employment benefits and early retirement
benafits.

Short-term employee benefits

In the reparting period n which an employee has rendered senices, the Group recognizes the short-term
amployee benafits payable for those ervices as a Rability with a cormesponding increase in the expentes
in the consolidated Income statement. Shon-tasm employee benefits inchude =alaries, bonuses, allowance
and subsidses, stafll welfare, medical inswance, employment injury insurance, matemity msurance, hausing
funds as well a3 labor unbon fees and stalf education expenses,

Post-employment benefits

The Group®s post-employment benefits are primarity the payments for basic pensions and unemplboyment
msurance related to government mandated socisl welfase programs, as well as the annuity scheme
established. All these post-employment benefits are defined contnbution plams, under which, the Group
makes fixed contributions mio a separate fund and will have no legal or constructive obligation 10 make
further contributions if the fund does not hald sufficient assels 1o pay all emploves benalits relating 1o
employee services in the current and prior periods,

Contributions to the bosic pensions and unemployment insuranee plan ae recognized in the consalidated
income statament for the period in which the related payment abligation is incurred.

The employees of the Bank's head office and domestic branches (*Domesiic Institutions”) participate in
an annuity scheme established by the Bank (the “Annuity Scheme®), The Bank pays annuity contributions
with referance to employees’ salanes, and such contributions are expensed in the consolidated income
statement whan Incurred. The Bank has mo further obligation if the Annuity Scheme does not have
sufficient assets for the payment of any retiement benefits to emphoyees funded by the Annuity Scheme.

Early retirement benefits
Early retirement benefits have been paid to those employess whe accept voluntary retirement before the
normal retirement date, as approved by managemant. The related banefit payments are made from the
date of early retirement to the nomal retirement date.
The accounting treatment of the Group's early retirernent benefits 5 in accordance with termination
benofits as dotermined in IAS 19. The lability i recognized for the carly retirement banelit paymants from
the date of early retiremant to the normal retirement date when the criteria for recognition as termination
benefit is met with a cormesponding charge in the consolidated income statement. Differences arising
from changes in assumptions and estimates of the present value of the liabilities are recognized in the
consolidated income statement when incurred,

B Financial instruments
B.1 Initial recognition, classification and measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial Habilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the
contraciual provissons of the instrument.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continuad)
8.1 Initial recognition, classification and measurement of finandal instruments (Continued)

At imtial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial fabifity at its fair value plus
or minus, in the case of a financal asset or financial labidity net at fair value through profit o loss,
transaction costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acqusition or lssue of the
financial asset or financial habitity, Transaction costs of financial assets and financial labslites carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit oF bass.

(1) Financial assets

Financial assets are classified i the followang measurement calegones based on the Group's
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asets:

{iy  Armortized cost [TACTE
i} Fair walue through other comprehensive incame (“FYOCI®), or
{ifi} Falr value through profit or loss {"FVPL").

The bBusiness model reflects how the Group manages the awels in order o generate cash
flews. That is, whether the Group’s objective i solely to collect the contractual cash flows from
the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale
of assots. I neither of these = applicable {o.g. financlal assets are held for trading purposes),
then the financial assets are classified as part of “other” business model and measured at
FWPL. Faclors considarad by the Group in determining the business modal for a group of assets
include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the asset’s
performance is evaluated and reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed
and managed and how managers are compensated.

Where the business model 15 1o hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or 1o collect
contractud cash flows and sell, the Group assesses whether the financial struments' cash
flows represent solely payments of principsl and imterest (“SPA"), In making this assessment,
the Group considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending
arrangement Le. interest Includes only. consideration for the time value of money, credit risk,
other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement.
Where the contractual terms infroduce exposwre 1o risk or volatility that are inconsistent with
a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset b classified and measured at fasr value
through profit or loss,

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirely when determining
wihether their cash flows are SFP1.

The classification requirements for debt instruments and equity instruments are described as
below:

Dabt nstruments
Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial Rability from
the Bsuer's perspective, such as lcans, covernment and corporate bonds. Classfication and

measurement of debt instruments depend on the Group's business models for managing the
assat and the cash flow charactenistics of the asset
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.1 Initial recognition, classification and measurement of financial instruments (Continued)
(1) Financial assets (Continued)
Detit fmstruments (Continweed)

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debl instruments inta one of the fallowing three
measurement categories:

(i} AC: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows whene those cash flows
represent SPP, and that are not dessgnated at FYPL, are measured al amortized cost

(i) PVOCI: Financlal assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flews and for selling
the assets, where the assets” cash flows represent SPPI, and that are not designated at
FUPL, are measured at FVOCL,

{iiil FWPL: Assets that da not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOC! are measured at
FVPL

The Group may alse irrevocably designate financial assets at FVPL If doing so significantly
reduces or eliminales a mismatch created by assets and [iabilities belng measured on different
bases.

Eqquity instrurnents

Equity Imstruments are instruments that meet the definitien of equity from the |ssuer's
perspective; that s, instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that
ovidence a residual interest in the issuer's met assets. Examples of equity. instruments include
basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at FYPL, except where the Group's
management has elected, 3 initial recognition, 1o irrevecably designate an equity investment at
PYOCI,

(£) Financial ltabiiities

The Growp®s financlal Rabilities ame cdassified into financial labilities a1 FYPL and other financial
liabalities carried at amortizec cost on initial recognibion. Financil labilities at FYPL 5 applied 1o
dernvatives, financial llabilities held for trading and fimancial hakilitees designated &5 such at initial
recognition.

The Group may, ai initizl recognition, [revocably designate a financial Habilily as measured at
fair value through profit or loss when doing so results in more relevant information, because
cithes:

() it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurament or recogmtion Inconsistency that
wiould othenyise arise; or

(il a group of financial liabilities or financial assets and financial liabilities s managed and
its performance s evaluated on a falr value basis, In accordance with a documented
risk management of investment strategy, and information about the Group 5 provided
internzlly on that basis to the entity’s key management personnel.

(i) The financial lizbikty contains one or more embedded dervatives which significantly modify
thie cash flows othenwise required.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.1 Initial recognition, classification and measurement of finandal instruments (Conbinued)
{2} Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities arising from the transler of financial assets which did not qualify for
derecognition, whereby a financial liability & recognized for the consaderation received for the
transfer, In subsequent periods, the Group recoghizes any expenses incurred on the financial
[iability.

8.2 Reclassification of financial assets

When the Group changes the business model for managing its financeal assets, it shall reclassify all
affected financlal assets, and apply the reclassification prospectively fram the reclassification date. The
Group does nat restate any previously recognized gains, losses {including impairment gains or losses)
of interest, Reclassification date (s the first day of the first reparting penod fallowing the change in
busireess model that resulls in the Group reclassifying financial assets.

8.3 Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an ascet or paid 1o trander 3 liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal for most advantageous) markel at the measwrement date under
current market conditions (e an ext price) regardless of whether that price is directly obsarvable or
estimated using another valuation techrigue.

For financial instrements traded in active markets, the determinaton of fair values of financial asseis
and financial liabdliiles & based on quoled market prices. This Includes listed equity securities and
quoted debt instrements on major exchanges.

A financial instrument & regarded as guoted in an active marketl i quoted prices are readily and
reguiarly available from an exchange, industry Qroup, prcing service or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actuad and regularly occurnng market ransactions on an arm's length basis. I the
above critera are nol mel, the market s regarded a5 being inactive, Indications that a marke1 is
inactive are when there s & wide bid-offer spread or significant increase in the bid-offer spread or
there are few recent fransactions.

For financial instruments not traded in active markets, fair value is determined using approgriate

valuation technigues, Valuation technigues Include the use of recent transaction prices, discounted

cash flow analysis, option pricing models and others commonly used by market participants. These

valuation technigues include the o of chservable andfor unobservable inputs.

£.4 Subseguent measurement of financal instruments

Subsequant measurement of financial instruments depends on the categornes:

{1} Amortized cost
Thie amortized cost ks the amount 3t which the financial asset or financial liabdity is measured
at initial recogmition: (i} minus the principal repaymants; (i) plus or minus the cumulative
amartization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity ameunt; (il for financial assets, adusted for any loss allowance,

Interest income and intengst expenses from these financial assets s included in ° Interest income”
and *Imterest expenses” using the effective interest rate method,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
B.4 Subseguent measurement of financlal fnstruments (Continued)
(1) Amortized cost (Cantinued)

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liabality to the gross carmying
amount of a financial asset (i.e. its amortized cost before any impairment allowance) o 1o
the amortized cost of a financial liability. The calculation does not consider expected credit
Iosses ("ECLT) and includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees and points paid
or received thal are inlegial 1o the effective interest rale. For puichased or onginaled credit-
impaired ("POCIY) financial assets, the Group caloulates the credit-adjusted effective interest
rate, which is calculated based on the amortized cost of the financial asset instoad of its gross
carryling amaunt and ncorporates the impact of expected credit lesses in estimated future cash
flewws.

Interest Income & caloulated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amaunt
of financial assets and is included in “Interast income”, except for:

iy POCI financial assets, whose interest income is calculated, since inftial recognition, by
apphpng the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to their amortized cost; and

() financial asssis that are not POCI but have subseguently become eredit-impaired, whose
mierest income 15 caltwated by applying the effective inteves! rate 1o their amortized cost
{ie. net of the expected credit kass provision). i, in a subsequent penod, the financial assets
improve their qualities so that they are no longer credit-impaired and the improvement in
credit quality s refated objectively to & certan event occumng after the application of the
above-mentianed rules, then the interest incoms & caloulated by applying the sffactive
mterest rate (o el gross carmying amount.

(2)  Fair value through ather comprehensive income
Dbt irstrufients

Movements In the carrying amount ame taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impalrment gains or losses, interest revenue and forelgn exchange gains and losses on the
Instrument’s amartieed cost which aie recognized in profit of loss. When the flinancial asset s
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previousty recagnized in OC i reclassified from equity
to profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in “interest income”
using ihe effective interest rate method.

Equity instrurnents

The equity instrument imvestmants that are not held for trading are designated as PYOCL When
this election is uwsed, fair value gains and losses are recogmized in OCI ang are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss, ncluding on disposal. Dividends, when mepresenting a retum on
such investments, continue 1o be recograzed in profit or loss as Imvestment income when the
Greup's right to receive payments s established,

(3} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt instruments
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss and 5 not part of a hedging relationshdp is recognized in profit or loss and presenied in the
prafit or boss statermnent within “Net trading gain® in the period in which it arkees, unless it arises

from debt instruments that were designated at fair value or which are not held for trading, in
which case they are presented separated In ~Net galnon financial investments®.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.4 Subseguent measurement of financial instruments (Continued)
{3) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
Equity instruments

Gains and losses on equity investments at FUPL are Included in the “Net trading gain™ in the
consolidated income stalement.

{4} Finarcial labilitles at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured at fair value with all gaans o losses recognized m the
profit or loss of the current period, except for fimancial Babiities designated as at fakr value
thraugh profit or loss, whare gains or losses on the financial iabilties are treated as follows:

{i)  changes in lair value of such financial liabilities due to changes in the Group®s own credit
risk are recognized in other comprehonsive income; and

(i) other changes in far value of such financial kabilties are recognized in profit or loss of
the curment patiod. If the accounting of changes i the credit risk of the financial liabilities
in accordance with (i) will create or enlarge accounting mismatches in profit or loss, the
Group recognizes all gains or losses on such financial kabilities (ncluding amounts arising
from chamges in it own credit risk) in the profit or loss of the current period

When the labilities designated as af fair value through profit or loss 5 derecognized, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized In other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity 1o retained eamings.

8.5 Impairment of financial instruments

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basls the ECL associated with its delt instrument assots
carried at amortioed cost and V0D and exposunes arsing from same boan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts,

ECL 15 the weighted average of credit losses wath the respective risks of a default occurring as the
waeights. Credit loss s the difference betweon all contractual cash flows that are due 1o the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects 1o receive, which ane all
cash shoctialls, discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-acjusted effective interest
rate for POCI financlal assets)

The Growp measures. ECL of a financial mstrument reflects:

{iy an wnbiased anc probability-weighted amount that 5 determined by evaluating a range of
possible cutcomes,

(i) the time value of money; and
(i) reasonable and supportable information that i available without undue cost or effort at

the reporting date about past events, currént conditions and forecasts of fulure economic
conditions,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B Financial instruments (Cantinuad)
8.5 Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)

For financial instruments whose impairment losses are measured usmg the ECL models, the Group
assesses whather their credit risk has increased significantly since their initial recognition, and applies
a threa-stage impairment model 1o calculate thelr impairment allowance and recognize their ECL, as
Teillonrs:

—  Stage I: If the credit rsk has not increased significantly snce its initial recognition, the finandal
a5sel 5 included in stage |

— Stage Il If the credit risk has mcreased sigmificantly since its imitial recogmition but s not yet
deemed to be credit-impaired, the finarcial instrument is moved 1o Stage Il. The description of
hew the Group delermines when a significant Increase in credit risk has occurmed s disclosed in
Hote 1V 44,1,

—  Stage 0l If the firanci instrument & credit-impaired, the financial instrument s then moved 1o
Stage IIl. The definition of credit-impaired financial assets is disclosed in Note IV 44,1,

Financial instruments in 5tage | have their ECL measured at an amount equivalent to the ECL of the
financial asset for the next 12 months (" 12m ECL™). Financial instroments in Stage || ar Stage (| have
their ECL measured a1 an amount equivalent to the ECL over the [ifetime of the financial instruments
(“Lifetime ECL"). The description of inputs, assumptions and estimation technigues used in measuring
thie ECL i disclosed in Note IV 44,1,

The Group applies the imparment requirements for the recogmition and measurement of a loss
allowance for debi Instruments that are measured at FVOCI The loss allowance |s recognized in
other comprehensive income and the impairment boss is recognized in profit or loss, and it should not
reduce the carrying amount of the financial aiset in the statement of financial pesition.

if the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financal instrument other than POCIH at an
amount equal to lifetime expectad credit losses In the previous reponing period, but detesmines at
the current reporting date that the credit risk on the financial instruments has increased significantly
since initial recognition 5 no fonger met, the Group measures the foss allowance at an amount
equal 1o 12-month expected credit losses at the current reporting date and the amount af expected
credit losses reversal is recognized in profit o loss. For POCH financial assets, at the reporting date,
the Group only recognizes the cumulative changes in Metime expected credit losses since initial
recogniton.

B.6 Modification of loans

The Group sometimes rensgotiates or otherwise maodifies the contractual cash flows of loans to
custommers, When this happens, the Group assesses whether the new terms are substantially different
12 the original terms.

if the terms are substantially ditfereni, the Group derecognizes the original financizl asset and
recognizes a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset
The date of renegoliation is consequently considered to be the date of initizl recognition for
impairment calculaton purposes, mcluding for the purpose of determining whether a sagnificant
increase in credit risk has occurmed. However, the Group also assesses whether the new financial
asset recognized & deemed fo be credit-impaimd at mitia! recognition, especially In circumstances
where the renegotiation was driven by the debior being unable to make the originally agreed
payments. Differences in the carming amount are also recognized in profit of loss as a gaéin or |oss on
derecognition,
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.6 Modification of loans (Continued)

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in
derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross carrying amound based on the revised cash
flows of the financial asset and recognizes a medification gain or loss In profit or loss. The new
gross carrying amaunt is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the onginal effective
interest rate {or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for POC| financial assels).

8.7 Derecognition

The Group derecognizes.a financial asset only when the contractual nghts to the cash flows from
the asset eapire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of 1he asset 1o another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of cwnership and continues 1o control the transfarred asset, the Group continwes 1o
recognize the adsat 1o the aaent of its cantinuing involement and recognifes an asociated lability. If
the Group refains substantiaily all the raks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues {o recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralead borrowing for
the proceeds recelved.

On derscognition of a financial ascet in s entirety, the difference between the assat’s carning
amount and the sum of the consideration received and recelvable and, where applicable, the
cumudative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity i recognized in the consolidated income statemant.

Financial Wabilities are derecognized when the related obligation s decharged, s cancelled or
explres. The difference baiween the camying amount of the financial llakdlity derecognized and the
consideration paid and payable i recognized in the consolidated income statement.

8.8 Equity instruments

An equity instrument 18 any contract that evidences a residual intenest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its labalitves,

A financial instrument is an equity instrument if, and only if, both conditions (i) and (i) below are met:

iy The financial instrument includes mo contractual obligation 10 delver cash or another financial
assel to another entity, or to exchange financial assets or financial labilites with another entity
under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the Group; and

(i} i the financial instrument will or may be settled in the Group’s own equity mstruments, it is &
non-derivative instrument that includes no: contractual ot¥igations for the Group to delver a
vanable number of its own eguity instrumenis; or a derivative that will be settled only by the
Group exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of its
oW aguity instruments.

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received, net of
diract ssuance expenses.

8.9 Derivative financial instruments
Dervatives are initially recogrized at fair value at the date a dernvative contract is entered into and ane

subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or
larss is recognized in e consoldated income statement.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B Financial instruments (Cantinuad)

8.9 Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

Certain derivatives are embedded in hybnd contracts, such as the conversion option in a convertible
bond. If the hybrid contract contains 2 host that i€ 3 financial asset, then the Group assesses the
entire contract as dewcribed in the financial assets saction above for classification and measurement
purpases. Otherwise, the embedded derivatives are treated as separate derivatives when:

(i)  Their economic charactaristics and risks are not chosely related to those of the host contract;

fill A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the definition of a dervative; and

{iii)  The hybrid contract & not measured at fair value through profit or loss,

These embedded denvatives are separately accounted for at fair value, with changes in fair value

recognized in the statement of piofit o loss unless the Gioup chocses 1o designate the hybed
contracts at fair value through profit or loss,

B.10 Offsetting financial assets and financial labilities

Financial assets and habilities are offcst and the net amount presented in the conselidated statemont
of financial pesition when bath of the lollowing conditions are satisfied: (i} the Group has a legal
right to set off the recognized amounts and the begal nght is currently enforceable; and (i) the Group
intends sither to settle on 3 net basis, or 1o realize the financial assel and setthe the financial labillity
simultanecusly, The legally enforceable right must nat be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankrupicy of
ihe Group or the counierparty.

8.11 Repurchase agreements and agreements to resell

Financial assets transterred as collateral in connection with repurchase agreements, invalving foed
ropurchase dates and prices, are not detecognized. They continue 1o be recorded as Investments
classified as held-to-maturity Iimestments, available-for-sale financial assets or debt instruments
classified as receivables as appropaate. The cormesponding lability i included in financial assets sold
under repurchase agreements. The items which are not derecognized are disclosed in Note IV 42
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral,

Consideration paid fod financial assets held under agreements to resell ane recorded as Financlal assets
held under resale agreements, the related collateral accepted is not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements (Mote IV £2 Contingent Liabllities and Commitments — Caollateral),

Thie difference between the purchase and sabe price & recognized as interest eXpense or INCome in the
consolidated income statement over ihe term of the agreemenis using the effective Interest method.

9 Insurance contracts

Insurance contract classification

Insurance confracts are those contracls under which the Group has accepted significant insurance risk,
relative to an insured event or occurrence. The Group ssues primanly life insurance contracts, which
imsure events associated with mortality over a long duration, The Group also ssues non-life insurance
contracts, which cover short-term casualty and health insurance risk. When necessary, the Group enters
nto rainsurance contracts 1o transfer (nsurance risks 10 the reinsurer. A significant insurance risk test s
performed at inception of the insurance contracts,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
9 Insurance contracts (Continued)
Insurance contract classification (Confinued)

Some insurance contracts cantain both an msurance component and a deposit companent. The Group
unbundles thote components, if the insurance cemponent and the doposit component are separately
measurable. The unbundled insurance component ks accounted for according 1o IFRS 4 — Insurance
Centracts and the unburdled deposit component & accounted for as a financial liability under investment
contract habilities.

Insurance income recognition

Insurance pramiurm income s recognised when the following conditions are met: the insurance conbract s
issued and miated msurance risk is undertaken by the Group, the related sconcmic benefits are likely to
flow to the Group, and the related Income can be rellably measured.

Insuranee contract llabilities

Insurance contract liabalities are measured based on a reasonable estimate of the amount of payments that
the Group will be required to make to fulfill its obligations under the Insurance contracts, which represents
the difference between expecied Tuture cash outflows and inflovws related 1o such contracts. A reascnable
ostimate of expected future net cath flows is determined based on nformation currently avallable as at the
end of the reporting period. The Group has considered the Impact of time value in the liability calculation
for long-term life inswrance.

The Group performs lability adequacy 1ests based on information currently available, as at the reporting
date. Additional insurance contract llabilities will be recorded if any deficiency exists

10 Precious metals
Pracious metals comprise geld, silver and other precicus metals

Precious metals that are not related 1o the Group's wading activities are initially measured at acquisition
cost and subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Precious metals that are
related to the Group's trading activities are initially recogrized at fair value, with changes in fair value
arising from re-measuremant recognzed directly In the consolidated income statemant in the period in
which they arise,

11 Property and equipment

Property and equipment including buildings held for e in the supply of services, of for administrative
purpose (other than constructicn in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairmant losses, if any.
When the costs attributable to the land use rights cannot be refiably measured and separated from that
of the building at inception, the costs are included in the cost of buildings and recorded in property and
equpment,

Subsequent expendifure incurred for the properly. and equipment {other than construction In progress) 5
included in the cost of the property and equipment {other than construction in progressy if it & probable
that economic benefits associated with the asset wall flow to the Group and the subsequent expenditure
can be measured, and the carrying amourt of the replaced part & derecognized. Other subsequent
expendiiure is recognized In the consclidated Income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation & recognized as a component of operating experses in the consolidated income statement
50 a5 to recognize the consumption of the economic value of property and eguipment (other than
construction in progress), less their estimated residual values, over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-ling maethod. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation rates ara reviewed at the
end of each reporting pencd, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

11 Property and aquipment (Continuasd)

The useful lives, estimated residual value rates and annual depreciation rates of each clasws of property and

squipment are as lallows:

Classes Usaful lives
Buildings 550 years
Electronic equipment, furniture and fixiures 3-11 years
hatar vehicles 5-8 years

Annual

depreciation
rates

1.94%-19.40%
B.82%-32.33%
12.13%-19.40%

EDINETOOOO
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Properties in the course of construction for supply of services or administratve purposes are carried at
cost, as constructhon in progress. less any impairment loss. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate categary of property and equipment when completed and ready for intenced use Depreciation
of these assets, on the tame bass a5 other property and equipment, commences when the assels are ready

for thair intended use.

An Hem af property and equipment is derecognized upon deposal of whan no future sconomic Banafits are
expacted 10 arise from its caontinued use. Any gain or loss arng on the deposal or retirerment of an item
of property and equipment is determined. a5 the difference between the sales proceeds and the cammying
amount of the asset and i recognized in other operating income or aperating expentes in the consolidated
mcame statement. The accounting policies of impairment of property and equipment are included in Note I

19 Impairmant of Tangible and Intangible Assets other than Goodwill
12 Land use rights

Land use rights are classified in other assets and amortized over a straight-line basis over their authorized

usaful lives.

13 Foreclosed assets

Foreclosed assets are initially recognized at falr value and subsequently measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value, less costs to sell, at the end of each reporting pencd, Whaen the fair value,

loss costs 1o sell, is lowar than a foraciosed asset's carrying amount, an impabrmant lkoss 5 recognized in the

comsolidated income statement

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the foreclosed asset |s included n the consolidated Income

statement in the period in which the item s disposed,

The Group disposes of foreclosed assets through various means, In principle. foreclosed assets should
mol be transferred for own use, but, in the event that they are needed for the Group®s own business or
management purposes, they ane trarsferred at their net cammying amounts and managed as neely acquined

property and equipment.
14 Investment property

Irvestment property is property held to earn rental income or for capital appeeciation, or bath,

Imvestment property is initkally measuned at its acquisiion cost, Subsequent expenciture incurred for the

myastment property is included in the cost of the investment property if it is probable that sconomic
penefits associated with the asset will flow 1o the Group and the subsequent expenditure can be measured
reliably, Other subsaguent expenditure & recognized in the consalidated income statement in the period in

which they are incurred,

Irvastmant progeriios are measured using the cost model. Depraciation and amortization i recognized the

same way as property and equipment and land wse rights.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
14 Investment property (Continued)

The accownting policies of impairment of investment property are included in Note || 19 Impaiment of
Tangible and Intangible Assets other than Goodwill.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reversss. the carrying amount of the investment property is
increased to the revised estimate of (15 recoverable amount, 10 the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount had no impainment [oss been recognized. A reversal of an
impairmient ks is recegnized in the consalidated incorme statemant.

When an investment property is sold, transterred, retired or damaged, the Group recognizes the amount
of any proceeds on disposal, net of the carrying amount and related expenses, in the cansolidated income
stalemenl

15 Leasing — Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019

Leaxts & & contract oF part of 3 contract that cofveys the rght 1o use an asset for a penod of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group recognized the nghl-of-use adeets at the commencement date, and recognized the lsase
liabdities at the present value of the outstanding lease payments. Lease payments include fixed payments,
the amounts expected to be payatle by the group if the group is reasonably certain fo exercises a purchase
aption of a option 1o terminate the lease. Varable lease payments that are based on an index of 4 fate are
recognized as an expense in profit or fose when incurred.

The Group's right-of-use assets mainly include rented houses and bulldings. The right-of-use assets are
measured at costs, which include the amount of the initial measurement of lease liabalities. any lease
payments made at or before the commencermnent date, any cnitial direct costs and less any lease incentives
recelved. If the Group could reasonably determine the ownership of the leased asset when the lease term
expires, the right-of-use assets are depreciated over the asset’s remaining useful life, Othenwise, the right-
of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. When the recoverable costs of right-of-use assets ase [ower than the carmying amount,
the value of right-of-use asets will be decreased down to the recoverable costs

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-ine basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases ane leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Leasas of low value assets
are the underlying assets are of low value wien new.

The Group as lessor

When the Group 5 the lesser in a finance lease, a finance lease receivable as an amount equal 1o the net
lease investment & recognized and the finance lease assel s derecognized at the commencernent dale.
Thie finance lease receivables are recarded in the consolidated statement of financial position as Loans and
dVances 1o customers.

When the Group 15 the lessor in an operating lease, rental iIncome from operating keases 15 recognized as
other operating income in the consolidated income statemant on a straight-line bass over the term of the

related lease. The imitial direct costs are inchuded in the carrying amount of the underiying assets and ks
recognized as expenses over the lease term on the same basis as tha lease income.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
16 Leasing — Accounting policies applied prior te 1 January 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the 1erms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of cwnaership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

When the Group i5a lessee under finance leases, the leased assels are capitalzed under property and
aqupment initially at the falr value of the assal or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liabdity to the lessor is included in other liabilities. Finance charges are
charged over the term of the lease uming the effective nterest method and recognized in the consolidated
income staterment, The depreciation policy for depreciable leased asse1s k& consistenl with that for
depreciable assets that are owned,

When the Group is the lessee in an operating lease, operating lease payments are recognized as an expense
and charged 1o operating expenses in the comolidated income statement on & straight-line basis over the
lease term_ Comtingent rentals arsing under operating leases are recognized a3 expenses in the periods in
which they are incurred. In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating beasas, such
mcentives are considered in determining the amount to be recognized over the lease term.

The Group as lessor

When the Group is the lessor in a finance lease, an amounl representing the minimum lease payment
receivables and unguaranteed residual value, net of initial dwect costs, all discounted at the implicit lease
rate (he "net lease investment”) & rocorded in the consolidated statement of Tinancial position o5 Loans
and advances 1o customers. The difference between the met lease imestiment and the undiscounted
amount is recorded as uneamed finance income, amortizing cver the 1erm of the laase using the offective
interest method and recognized in the consolidated income statemeni.

When the Group i4 the lessor in an operating leass, the assets subject 1o the cperating lease continue (o be
recognized as the Group's property and eguipment. Rental income from operating leases is recognized as
other operating incomea in the consolidated income statement on a sirasght-line basis over the term of the
redated loase.

17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term and highly liquid assets, which are readily coniertiole into known
amountsof cash and subject 10 an insignificant risk of changes In value, Cash and cash equivalents include
cash and assels with orlginal maturity of three monihs or less under cash and balances with central banks,
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, placemants with and loans 10 banks and other financial
institutions and financial assets held under rosale sgieamants.

18 Intangible assets
Intangible assets acguired separately and with finite useful fves are camed at cost less accumulated
amariization and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortization for intangible assets wath findte useful
lives s recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated usetul lives which generally range from 5 1o
20 years.

intangible assets with indefinite wseful lives are mot amorized, but are subject 10 annual impairment
ASEETEMENT.

Gains or losses arsing from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net dsposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated
ncome statement.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
19 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its 1angible and intangible
assets 1o determine whether there s any indication that thase assets have suffered an impairment loss.
It any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 5 estimated in ordeér to determing the
extent of the imparrment loss, if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of the aseet's fair value less
costs 10 sell and value in use,

If the recoverable amount af an asset |5 estimated 1o be [e4s than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced 1o its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the consalidated
income statement.

Where an impawrment loss subsequently reverses, the camying amouwnt of the asset is increased o the
revised sstimate of s recoverable amount, 1o the extent that the incressed carrying amount does not
exceed the carnpng amount had no impairment loss been recognized. A reversal of an Impairment loss is
recognized in the consolidated income statement.

20 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution o the Bank's ordinary equity holders s recognized as a llability in the Group’s and
the Bank's financial staternents in the pariod in which the dividends are approved by the ordinary equity
hetdars in the annual general mesting of the Bank

As authonzed by the ordinary equity holders in the annual general meeting, the Board of Derectors has
the sole decretion to declare and distribute dividends on preferance shares. Preference share dividend
distribution is recognized a3 a liabdity in the Group's and the Bank's financial staterments in 1he pericd in
which the dividends are approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank:

21 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event. and it is
probable that the Group will be required to sattle that obligaticn and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the abligation

Prowisions ane measured a1 the best estmate of the consderation required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporiing period, taking inio account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation, Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated 1o settle the present obligation,
its carrying ameunt is the present value of those cash fiows.

22 Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as a custodian, trustee and in other fiduciary capacities {o safeguard assets for customers
in accordance with custody agreements between the Group-and securities investment funds, social security
funds, imsurance companies, trust compandes, gqualified foreign institutional invesiors, annuily schemes
and ather institutions and individuals. The Growp receives fees in return for its services provided under the
cusiody agreements and does net hawe any interest in the cconomic risks and rewords reloted o assels
under custody. Therefore, assets under custody are not recognized in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial pasition.

The Groug conducts entrusted lending arrangemenits for i1 customers. Under the terms of entrusted loan
arrangements, the Group grants ioans 1o borrowers, as an imtermadiary, according to the instruction of its
customers who are the lenders providing funds for the entrusted loans, The Group s responsible for the
arrangement and collection of the enfrusted loans and receives a commission for the services rendered. As
the Group does not assume the economic risks and rewards of the entrusted loans and the funding for the
conresponding entrusted funds, they are not recognized as assets and labliities of the Group,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
23 Financial guarantee contracts and loan eammitments

A financial guaraniee contract is a confract that requires the issust to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor falls to make payment when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognized at fair value on the date the guaraniee was given. Subsequent
1o mitial recogrition, the Group's Babilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
amaunt, less amortization of guarantee fees, and the expected credit [ods provision required to attle
the guarantee. Any mcrease in the liability relating to guaraniees is taken to the consalidated income
statement

The impairment allowarke of foan commitments provided by the Group s measured using ECL models. The
Group has not provided any cammeitment 1o provide loans al a below-markel interest rate, or that can be
settled net in cash or by delksering or issulng another financtal Instrument.

For loan commitmants and financial guasantee contracts, the loss allewance s recognized a5 a provisson.
However, for contracts that include both a boan and an undrawn commmitment and the Group cannaot
separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment component from those on the
loan component, the expecied credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognized together with
the loss allowance for the laan. To the extent that the combined expected credit losses exceed the gross
carrying amaunt of the loan, the expected credil losses are recognized a5 3 provision.

24 Contingent liabilities

A contingent Habdity is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whase existence will only be
confirmad by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one of mome uncertain fulure svents not whally within
the central of the Group. It can alse be a present obligation arising from past events that i not recognized
because it 5 not probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
abligation cannat be measured reliably.

A contingent lability & nol recognized, but disclosed, wnless the possibility of an outflow of resources
ambodying economic benefits s probable. The Group's contingent llabilities are disclosed in Mote N 42
Contingent Liabalities and Commitments.

A provision is recognized when it meets the criteria as set forth in Note I| 21 Provisions.
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

I the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in Nole i, management is required
o make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The
estimates and related assumptions are based on historical experience and other relevant factors including
reasonable expectations for future events.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are teviewed an an ongoing basts, Revisions to accounting estimatas
are recagnized in the penod in which the estimate & revised and in future periods as approprate.

The follewing are the critical judgments and key estimates management has made in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies that have a significant nisk of causing a matenial adjustment o the carrying amounts
of 2ssets and liabilities within the next twebse months.

1  Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for fnancial assets measured at amortized cost and
PVOCH and for exposires armdang from some loan commitments and lnancial guarantes contracts, B an adea
that reguires the use of complex madels and significant assumplions about future economic canditions and
credit behavior (the Rkelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs,
assumpthons and estimation technlgues used In measuring ECL fs further detalled in Note IV 44.1 Credit
risk.

2 Classification of financial assets

The critical [udgmants the Group has made in determining the classification of financial assets include
analysis of business models and characteristics of contractual cash flows.

The Group determines the business model for managing financlal assets at the level of financial asset
portioho, The factors considered include how the asset's performance 15 evaluated and reported 1o key
managemant parsonnel, kow risks are assessed and managed and how managers are compansated,

When assassing whether the contraciual cash flow of financial assets 15 consistent with the basic lending
afrangement, the Group has the following masn |edgnments: Whether the principal may be subject to
change in the duration of amount of money due to prepayments dunng the duration, whether interests
only included time value of money, credit risk, other basic borrowing risks, and considerations for costs
and profits, For example, whether the amount paid in advance reflect only the outstanding principal and
intevgst on the outstanding principal, as well as reasonable compensation or early termination of the
contract.

3 Fair value of financial instruments

The Group uses valuation techneques to estimate the fair value of financial imstruments which are not
quoted in an active market. These valuation technigees include the use of recent transaction prices of the
same of simslar instruments, discounted cash flow analysis and generally accepted pricing models. To the
extent practical, markel chservable inputs and data, such as interest rate yield curves, foreign currency
rates and implied option volatilities, are used when estimating fair value thraugh a valuation techmigue.
Where market observable inputs are not available, they are estimated using assumptions that are calibrated
a5 closely a5 possible to market chservable data. Howewer, areas such as the credit rsk of the Group and
the counterparty, Hguidity, volatilities and cosrelations require management 1o make estimates. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the estimated fair value of financial instruments.

With respect to PRC government obligations related 1o large-scale policy directed financing transactions,
fair value & determined using the stated terms of the related mstrument and with reference to terms
determined by the PRC govemment in similar transactions engaged in or directed by the PRC government.
In this regard, there are no other relevant market prices or yields reflecting arm’s length transactions of a
comparable size and tenor,
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4 Taxes

There are certain transactions and activities in the ordinary course of the Group's business for which the
ultimate tax effect is uncertain. The Group made certain estimation and judgernent for items of uncertainty
in the application of tax legelaticns, taking into account existing tax legislation and past practice of tax
autharities. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is differant from the amounts that wete initially
estimated, based on management’s assessment, such differences will affect the current income tax and
delerred income tax dising the period in which such a delesmination is made.

5 Consolidation of structured entities

Where the Group acls as asset manager of or inweston i structured entities, the Group makes sagnificant
judgement on whether the Group conftrals and should consolidate these structured entities. When
performing this assessment, the Group assesses the Group's contractual rights and cbligations in light of
the transaction structures, and evaluates the Group's power over the structured entities, performs analysis
and tests on the vanable retufns from the structufed entities, ncluding bt not imited 1o cammBsion
mcome and assel management fees earned as the asset manager, the retention of residual income, and, if
any, the lquidity and other suppodt provided to the structured entities. The Group also assesses whather
it acis a5 a principal or an ageni through analysis of the scope of iis decisien-making authority over the
structured entities, the remuneration to which it & entitled for asset management services, the Group's
srposure to vanahility of returns from its other interests in the structured entities, and the rights hald by
other parties in the structured entitles,

6 Derecognition of financial assets transferred

in s normal course of business. the Group transfers its: financial assets. through vanows types of
transactions including regular way sales and transfers, securlilzation, financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements, secunties lending. The Group applies significant judgement in assessing whether it has
transfarred these financial assets which qualify for a full or partial derecognition,

Whare the Group enters info structured transactions by whach it transfers: financial assets to structured
antities, the Group analyzes whether the substance of the relationship between the Group and thess
structured enbities incicates that it contros these structuned entities 1o determine whether the Group needs
1o consolidate these structused entities. This will: determine whether the following derecognitson analysis
should be conducied at the consolidated level or at the entity leve! from which the financial assets are
transferred.

The Group analyzes the contractual rights and obligations in connection with such translers 1o determine
whether the derecognition Criteria are met based on the following considerations:

+*  whether it has transferrad the rights to receve contractual cash flows from the financial assets or the
fransfer gqualifies for the " pass through® of those cash flows 1o indepemdent third parties.

* ihe extent to which the associated nisks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are
transferred. Significant judgment is applied in the Group®s estimation with regard to the cash flows
before and after the transfers and other factors that affect the outcomes of Group's assessment on
the extent that risks and rewards are transferred.

* where the Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards
associated with their ownership, the Group analyzes whether it has relinquished its controls over
these financial asseis by assessing whather the transieree has the practical ability 1o sell the asset In its
entirety to an unrelated thind party and is able 1o exercise that ability unilaterally and without nesding
10 impose additional restrictions on the transfer, and if the Group has continuing involvement in these
transferred financial assets, Where the Group has not retained control, it derecognizes these financial
assets and recognizes separately as assets or liabilities any rghts and obligations created or retained
ini the transfer, Otheneise the Group continues to recognize these financial azsots to the extent of its
continuing invokament in the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decembes 2019
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 NET INTEREST INCOME

Year ended 31 Decamber

2019
Intarest income
Loars and advances to customers 565,465 502,616
Including: Corparate loans and advances 326,409 303,054
Personal loans and advances 227,251 191,775
Discounted bills 11,805 7.787
Financial investments
Debt instrument investments at amortized cost 172,710 157,909
Othar debt instrument at fair value through
other compreharsve income 59,E61 58,209
Balamces with central banks 35,024 40,701
Placerments with and lcans to banks and other financiad institutions 13,585 14,442
Financial assots held under resale agreemants 8,047 9,025
Deposits with banks and other financial instiutions 3,549 1,822
Subtadal B5%,141 784,724
Interest expense
Due to customers {279,737) {227,819)
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions {33,728) {28.303)
Dbt secuitios issued {31,375) (23,094)
Borrowings from central banks {16,164) (15.823)
Placements from banks and other nancial imstitutions {9.441) (8,E88)
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements (g5  30an
Subtotal (372,270) (306,964)
Mt Interest Income 486,871 477,760
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 3019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2 NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Year ended 31 Dacamber

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

2013 Z
Fea and commission income

Bank cards 30,181 25,586
Electranic banking services 25,209 19,540
Agency services 19,801 10,929
Settlement and clearing services 11,443 10,680
Consultancy and advisory services 10,109 B.876
Cistodian and other fiduciary 3,899 3,593
Credit commitment 1,895 1,782
(thers a7a 434
Subtotal 103.011 91,525
Fee and commission expense
Bank cards {9.543) (7.323)
Electranic banking services {3.992) (3.193)
settlement and clearing services (1.770) (2.004)
Others (780} (864)
Subtotal {16,085) {13,384)
Met fee and commussion income E6,926 T8,1411

3 NET TRADING GAIN

Year ended 31 Decembar
2019 2018
Met gain on debt instruments held for trading 11,095 14,253

Mel gain on precious metals {1} 4,304 2.666
Mt (lossigain on foreign exchange rate derivatives (571} 1,487
Met {lossigain on interest rate derivatives (1.421) 516
Others 5.660 {2.853)
Total 19.067 16.063

] Net gain on precious mefais consits of net oan on precious metals and precious mefal related dervative
products

4 NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Year ended 31 Decembaer

2019 2011
Met gain on debt secunties at FWPL 5,274 2,179
Met gain on debt instruments measured at FWOCI an 304

Mgl gain on underlying assets and liabilities related to
principal guaranteed wealth management products designated

&5 at FvPL 36 5,984
Others 12 (7}
Total 5,793 8,460
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For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Insurance premium

Ket gainfloss) on foreign exchange

Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Rantal incorme

Government gran

Others

Total

Year ended 31 Decamber

2019
12,938
2,804
1.07
EB3
824
2,247

30,693

17.365
{726)
1,104
THS
1.018
2,551

22,097

& OPERATING EXPENSES

Year ended

31 December

2019 2018
Suafl costs {n 124,267 123614
Genesal aperating and administrative expenses {2) 48,246 47,173
Insurance benefits and claims 23,349 17,652
Depreciation and amartization 1871 16413
Tax and surcharges {3} 5,688 5.330
Others 3,835 3,781
Total 224,096 213,963
(1) Staff costs

Shart-term employes benafits

Year ended

2019

31 December

Salanes, bonuses, allowance and subsidies 79,835 75,976
Housing funds 8,524 8,328
Sacial insurance 5450 53N
Including: Medical insurance 4,502 4,829
Maternity nsurance 407 381
Emplayment injury insurance 141 161
Labor umcn fees and staff education expenses 3,534 3,365
Others 9,464 12,469
Subtotal 106,807 105,509
Defined contribution benefits 17,399 17,848
‘Early ratirement banefils &1 257
Total 124,267 123,614
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 Decermnber 2019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
6 OPERATING EXPENSES (Continued)

(2) Included in general operating and administrative expenses s auditor's. remunesation of EMB157
millian for the year, consisting of RME136 million for financial statements audit service and RMB21
million for non-awdit professional service. (2018: RMB197 million, consisting of RMB130 million for
financial staterments auda serace 2nd RMBET million for non-audit professional service).

(3} From 1 May 2016, the Group & subgect to value-added taxes on its income from credit business, fee
Incoma on fnancial serviced, income from mnsurance business and trading of finandal products at 6%.

Pursuanl 1o the “Circular regarding Further Clariication of Refevant Polickes Applicable to the
Financlal Secior In the Comprehensive implementation of the VAT Pilol Programs” (Cal Shul [20186)
Mo 46), the Bank elecled to adopt a smplified methodology to caloulate value-added taxes at 3%
on interest income derived from loans granted to farming households, rural enterprises and other
rural institutions by county-level sub-branches included in the Bank's pliot programs of the Sannong
Finance Division, including those under the Bank's provincial branches in provinces, autonomous
regions, municipalities directly undsr the eantral government and municipalities with independent
budgetary status as well a those under the Xinjiang Production and Construction Corps Branch.

City construction and maintenance tax s caleulated al 1%, 5% or 7% of VAT for the Group's
Domestic Operations.

Educatbon surcharge is calculated at 3%, while local education surcharge is calculated at 2% of VAT
for the Group's Domestic Operations.

7 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISDRS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(1) Detms of the Dweciors’, Supenisors' and Semior Management’s emoluments are as follows (n thousands
of AME

Year ended 31 December 2019
Cantribution Crither

benefits
in kind
aviii)
Executive Direclors

Zhoa: Mubing = 579 6 T8 T
Zhang Kequu i - 521 B2 7% 679
Independent Mon-Exeeutive Directors
*iao Xing 280 - - - 380
Wang Xinxn 367 - - - 367
Huang Zhenzhong 267 - - - 36T
Ms. LEUNG KO May Yes ] 145 - - " 145
Lius Shaying (i) 146 - - - 146
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 FEHEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Continued)

(1) Detais of the Directors’, Supenisors” and Servor Management’s emoluments are as follbows fin thousands
of RMEBL (Continued)

‘rr.".l_r ended 31 December 2079
niribution Other

Basic to retirement benefits

salaries and benefit  in kind
allowrance schemes (vl Total
Non-Executive Directors
U landong - - - - -
Chen lianbo - - - - -
Liao Lumeng = = = - =
Li Qéyun - - - - -
L Wi i = = = = =
Wi Jiangtao v - - - - -
Supervisons
Wang lngdang - 579 BE 76 Ta1
Wang Xingchun - - - -
Xia Taili 50 - - 50
Shaa Likeng S0 - - - 50
Wiu Gang {wil 13 - - - 13
Li Wang 280 - - - 280
Zhang ke 310 - - - 310
Lii Hongda 300 - - - 300
Sankor Managﬁ_mml
Zhang Qingsong v} o 145 Fi 13 185
Zhang Xuguang (i} - 43 7 7 57
Zhan Dongsheng [ - a78 75 64 622
Cui Yong [x} - I 65 58 514
Li Thicheng = 574 147 76 1157
Zhou Wanfu et} - 974 142 76 1152
Executhe Director resigned
Wang Wei (x] e 478 76 69 623
Cal Dang (i) - 304 47 a4 355
Non-Executive Directors resigned
Hii Kok (i) - - - - -
Wen Tigjun (xv) Firs - - - 72
Yisan Tianian fxvl 152 = - = 152
Supervisorns ressgned
Liu Chengeu (o] A0 - - - 40
Senior Management resigned
Gong Chan (] = 43 8 5 56
Tatal 2972 5,500 B2 651 9,974
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 3019
{amourits n millioes of Benminks, unles olheosise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 ?CEHEFI'E:dA.HD INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS ANMD SENIOR MANMAGEMENT
{Cantin )

(1) Detads of the Direciors’, Supenisors' and Semor Management's emoluments are as follows fn thousand's
of AMEB) (Continued)

[

§TE E2RE TTE=2EE

i)
el
b

Fhang Kegiu was slected Executive Director effective 1 Apnl 2015

M Leung Ko May Yes was slected Independant Non-Execuive Directar affective 20 kiy 2079
Liv Shouping war eleced independent Non-Exeeutive Director effective 20 July 2019,

Li Wes was eleched Non-Executive Director effective 21 May 20715

Wu Nangrao was elected Non-Executive Director effective 209 fuly 2019

W Gang was efected Sipenisor Representvng Emplayees effective § October 2019,

Zhang Cingsong was. elected Pregident affective 17 Movernber 2019 and Vice Chairman af the Boand of
Directors and Executive Director effective 14 January 2000,

Jhang Xuguang was afected Executive Vice Presidant effective 23 Decamber 2070,
Zhan Dongsheng was elected Executfive Vice President effectve 29 Apnl 2079,
Cuil Yong was elected Executive Vice President effactve 10 May 2019,

Zhow Wanfu ceased fo be Secretary fo the Board of Directors and the company secretary effective 24 March
2020,

Wang Wer ceased to be Executive [iecror effective 28 Novemnber 2018,

Cai Dong was elected to be Executive Vice President effective 10 May 2019 and Executive Durector effective
28 June 2019, ceased o be Executive Dirsctar and Executive Vice President effective 14 October 2016,

Hu Kok coased to be Non-Executier Director effective 9 January 2019,
Wen Trajun and Francis Yoen Tran-fan ceased to be Non-Executive Director effective 30 August 2015,
Liv Chengay ceased fo be Supenvsor represanting emplogees effectve § Octaber 2019,

fevill Gong Chao ceased fo be Secrotary of the Party Disciplne Committes effective 2 fanuary 2019,

favid] Other benefits in kind inclvde the Bank’s contnbufions fo medical fund, nowing fund and other socal

insurances, which am payabie to bbour and secunty authovties based on the kower of cortain pecentage
of the salares and allosvance or the prescribed wpper limits as nequined by the relevant regulations issued by
the govemment awthorities,

The total compensation packages for the abowe Executive Directors, Supenasors and  Senior
kanagement for the year ended 31 December 2019 have not yet been finalized in accordance with
regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC at the date of this consolidated financial statements.
Thie final compensation will be disclosed In a separate announcement when determined,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 FEHEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Continued)

(1) Detais of the Directors’, Supenisors” and Servor Management’s emoluments are as follows fin thousands
of RMEBE (Continued)

s
54

Wang Wel m = B 9 LE

indzpandent Nan-Brecutive Directan
Woe Tirfun 410
Framas Yuen Teefan 360
Xag Xng 380
360
360

.
L=

Wang Xnzn
Fuang Thenzhong

Non-Executive Direclors
Hu Xiaohis [}
¥4 Jiandang
Chen Eanbo
Liatr L Leming
Li Qepan {i}

Saperitas

Wang Singdcng ] > o] 36 28 318
Wang Xingchun - .

Liu Chengey 50 -
xaTal 7] 1 -
Shaa Lihang W 21 -
Lb Wang [} 180 -
Tharg lie [} F 2] -
L Hongeia [} 41 -

Sensor Management
Gong Chao (i}
Thang Kegu
Li Zhicheng
Zhou Wanfu il

EEEE

LR IO R D I

129 7 BT
1,945 146 1 165
.57 g4 50 1,441

8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 Decermnber 2019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 HENEm‘SdA.HD INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(1) Detads of the Direciors’, Supenisors' and Semor Management's emoluments are as follows fn thousand's
of AMEE (Continued)

Executree Director resigned

Thao Huan i) - 51 [ 55 20

(un Kingning i = M 4 2] 07
Non-Executeee Diractors resgned

Thao Chao (] = = - - -

hang Dingiang {xi) - - b = =
Suoenine resigned

iz Tongyu ] EL] - - S 33

Lv Shegny [x) 41 . - - 241
Senior Managzment retgred

Kang i L] - 55 I 9 T
Total 1EN 7510 £41 510 11,541

) Wang Wev was elected Executie Director effectne 13 Felruny 2018

W) My Kisohui ceased o be Non-Evecutive Direcior effective 9 Ganuary 2079, and it emoluments dickosed
above only include those for sendoed rendered by him as the Senior Management far the year ended 31
Docember 20TE

i) L Qhan was slected Non-Execuflive Director effechive | June 2018,

i) Wang Nogdong was eechd Supenaior representing  sharetolders effective 17 Nowvember 2018 and
Chadrman of the Board of Superiions effective 13 Nowember 2018

el Xia Taili and Shao Lihong wire elecieg Supendor rapnisealing omplopees effecie 21 August 2018
il L Wang, Shang Jae and Lo Hongsa wee elected External Supenaiars effectne 12 November 2078
el Gang Chao ceased fo be Secrefary of the Party Ditepline Committee affective 2 fanuay 2019,

it Zhou Wanfu was elected Secretory of the Board of Directors effectve 12 March 2018

fix)  Thaa Huan cased o be Vice Charman, Exbeutve Director and President effective 29 Ssprember 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year erded 31 December 2009
(Amaunts in milkor of Renminbl, whies olbenwie stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 I[llEI'.llEFI‘I'S:l:i.?lﬁ.l"ulI:!r INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Continue

(1) Detais of the Directors’, Supenisors” and Servor Management’s emoluments are as follows fin thousands
of AMBE (Continued)

e} Guo Magning wasr slectsd Evecutive Dvector effective 13 Febrwary 2008 She ceased (o be Executive
Director effective 22 Ootober 2018

() Thao Cheo ceased to be Non-Executive Direclor effective 28 Febwuary 2018

(o) Shang Dinglong ceased fo be No-Executve Durector effective 11 May 2018,

i Xia Zongyu ceazed ro be Supendsor representing empajpees effective 22 August 2018
i)

Ly Shuagin resigned as Supenvior due 1o the expiy of her term of office in 29 June 2018, Lv Shugin il
confiue o perform her disly as Supendsor until mee! the requirament that the Supervisors shall represent
at least one-third of the Board of Supervisars. She ceased 1o be Supenisor efiective 12 November 2018

fow)  Kang ¥ ceased to be Vice Chadmman effective 22 January 2018,

fowit Other benefits in kind include the Bank's contnbutions fo medical fundl housing fund and orher social
Inmurances, which am payabde fo labour and secunity authonbes based en the lower of certain parantage
of the salares and alowance or the prescnbed waper fmiits as requined by the refevant reguiations Isswed by
the povarmment authorities

As of the approval date of 2013 consolidated financial statements, the above compensation packages
for the Directoss, Supervisors and Senior Management for the year ended 31 December 2018 ware
not finalized and the amount of remuneration of Directors, Supenasors and Senior Management
recagnized and disclosed in the consolidated incomae statement for the year endod 31 December 2018
wis RMEBB.SE millioa, Supplementary announcement on final compensation of RMET1.54 million
was released by the Hamk on 30 August 20139 and the comparative figures for the year ended 31
December 2018 have been restated acoodingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 HEHEF’ITSdA.HD INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

{2) Five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group

(i) Of the twe individuals with the highest emoluments, none of them are Directors, Supervisors
or Senior Management whose emoluments are disclosed above The emoluments of the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 and 31 Decermber 2018 were as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2019 2018
lEasic salaras and allowance 13 14
Discretionary bonuses 14 10
Contribution (o retirement benefit schemes and athes 1 1
Total 28 25

it The number of these five indaviduals whose emaluments fell within the followmng bands are as
foilows:

Year ended 31 Decamber

2019 ;

FMB4, 000,007 10 RMB4, 500,000 yuan
RMB4,500.001 1o RMBS, 000,000 yuan
FMBS,000,001 10 RWMES5, 500,000 yuan
EMBES5,500,001 1o RMBE, 000,000 yuan
RMEBR, 00,007 o RMEE, 500,000 yuan
RMBE,500.007 10 RWET, 000,000 yuan
RMB7,000.001 1o RMET, 500,000 yuan
RMB7,500,001 to RMEE, 000,000 yuwan

(I O O e e,

] o | ol R

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, no emolument was pakd by the
Group o the five highest paid individuals a5 an inducement o join or upon jainng the Group or
25 a compernsation far loss of office. For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 Decemnber
2018, none of the five highest paid Individuals waived any emolument.

{3) Other benefits and interests of Directors and Supervisors pursuant to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap.622).

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, no emclument was paid by the
Group to any of the Directors and Supanvisors as an inducement to join of upon jeaning the Group
of a5 a compensation for loss of office. Except for the Annuity Scheme and Pension Scheme (Note
Il 7 Employee Benefits), there were no other retirement benefits for Direclors of Supervisces, of
consideration proviced 1o thind parties for making availlable Directoss' or Supervisors' services, and
none of the Directors or Supenisors waned amy emolument, or had material interests, whether
directly or indirectly, in any matenal transactions, amangements or contracts in relation to the Group's
business for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2018,

The Group enters inte credit transactions with the Directors, Supervisors or cartain controfled body
corporates and connected entities of the Directors or Supervisors at arm's length in the ordinary
course of business, For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 and as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the respective balances of loans and advances from the
Group to Directors, Supervisors or certain controlled body corporates and connected entities of the
Directors- ar Supervisors. were not significant. The Group did not provide any guarantee o security
o the Ddrectors, Supervisors or cerfain controlled body corporates and connected entities of the
Directors of Supervisors in respect of their bbans, quasi-loans or cradit transactions
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Year ended 31 Decamber
2019 2018
Loans and advances to customers 131,833 EIVRER

Financlal rvestmeonts

Debt instrument investments at amortized cost 30 1,384

Dther debt instruments at fair value through

othes comprehensive Mcome o085 2575

Provision for guarantees and commitments 3,990 1,533
Placamants with and laans to banks and other financlal institutians 30 (41)
Financial assets held under resale agreements 409 1393}
Oihiars 1.057 1,478
Total 138,605 136,647

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Year ended 31 December

2019 018
Current moome tax

— PRC Enterprise Income Tax 62,674 63,111

— Heng Kong Profits Tax B24 04

— Other jursdictions 15 211
Subtotal 63,713 64,126
Deferred tax (Note I 22) (10.061) (15083}
Total 53,652 49,043

PRC Enterprise Income Tax |5 calculated at 25% of the estimated taxable profit for both years, and also
includes supplementary FRC 1ax on Owerseas Operations as determined in accordance with the relevant
PRC ncome tax rules and regulations. Pre-tax deduction items of enterprise income tax ane govermnad by
the relevant tax regudations i the PRC. Taxation arsing m other urisdictions (including Hong Kong) is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant junsdictions

The tax charges for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 37 December 2018 can be reconciled 1o the
prefit per the consolidated income statement as Tollows:

Year ended 31 December
2019

Profit before 1ax 266,576 251674
Tax calculated at applicable PRC statutary tax rate of 25% 66,644 62,919
Tax effect of income not taxable for tay purpose i (31,575) {26,202}
Tax effect of costs, expenses and |osses not

deductible for tax purpose 18,684 12,345
Effect of different tax rates in other jurisdictions {101} (19
INCOME tax Papense 53,652 49,045

(1) Non-taxable income prmanly neludes interest income from PARC treasivy bonds and municieal government bonds
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{Amourits i millions of Renminks, ke olhsosise vated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
10 DIVIDENDS

Year ended 31 Dacambar

Dividends on ordinary shares declared and paid

Cash dividond related 1o 2018 (1) E0,862 -
Cash dividend related to 2017 {2} = 57,911

B0.862 57.811
Dividends on prelerence shares declared and pasd {3} 4,600 4,600

1) Distribution of final dividend for 2018

A cagh dindend of RAMBO. 1739 per ordinary share relsted to 2018, amounting fo RAEG0 852 million in tofal
was appnoved, after the required appropriations for the statutory surplus reserve and the general resenve for
2018 as defermined in accordance with the refevant acoounding rules and firanclal eguilations applicable fo PRC
enterpyrses (the “PRC GAAPTY at the annwal general meating held on 30 May 2019

Tho above dividend was recognined a5 dissnibution and distributed diving the yoar onded 31 Decomber 2015,

@) Duinbuton of final dnidend for 2007
A cath divdend of BMED 1783 per ordmary share related fo 2017, amounting to RMESZ, 917 milion in total
was approved, affer the required appropristions for the statutary =vplus reserve and the general resorve for
2017 az determingd i accordance with the relevant accoumting rules and finandal reguiations spplicable fo PRC
anierpiises fthe “PRC GAAFRTL at the annual general meeting held on 11 May 2078
The above aividend was recognined as digtrbution and distmbuted duning the year ended 31 Decomber 2018

(@) Detrbution of devidend on preference shares for 2019
A cash civdend at the dividend rate af 5 5% per annum related o the second tranche of prefersnce shares of
2018 13 2019 amounting to AVBE2, 200 million in total was approved at the Board of Diroctors” Meoting hold on
11 Januwary 20719 and distributed on 11 Manch 20719
A cazh dividend af the divdend rate of 6% per annum related to the frst tranche of preference shares of 2018

o 2019 amounting fo RMEZ 400 milion n fodal was aporoved att the Board of Dwectors” Meeling held on 30
August 2019 and drstrbirted an 5 November 2019,

) Dutnbution of dhvidend on preference shares for 2015
A cath dindend at the diwdend rate of 5 5% per annum related fo the second tranche of prefermnce shanis

ampunting o RMB2.200 milion fn roral was aporoved at the Boad of Dyvectors’ Mesting held on |1 January
2018 and distriwted on 12 March 2018

A cash oivicdend at the diidend rate of 6% per annum mined fo the first ranche of prefermnce thares amonnding
1o AMB2.400 milvon n fotal was approved af the Board of Directars’ Meetmg held on 28 August 2018 and
duinbuted on 5 Novembar 2018

A final disdend af AMBO. 1215 per ardinary thare in respect of the yoar ended 31 Decermber 2079 totalng

HME63, 662 mullion has bean propased by the directors and 5 sulyect fo approval By the ardinary eguity halders i
the annual general meeting.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2019 s
Earnings.
Profit for the year attributable 1o equity holders of the Bank 212,098 202,783
Less: profit for the year attributable 1o preference shareholders
of the Bank (4.600) (4,600)
Prafit for the year attributable to ordinany equity holders
of the Bank 207,498 198,183
Kumber of shares:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in Bsue [millan) 349,983 337423
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB yuan) 0.59 0.59

For the wears ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Bank isued non-cumilative
preforence shares, respoctively, and the specific terms are included in Note IV 33 Other equity instruments.

For the year endad 31 December 2019, the Rank msued non-cumulative undated tier 1 capital bands, and
the specific terms are included in Note IV 33 Other equity instruments. The Bank has not declared any

distribution for the year ended 31 December 2019,

For the: purpose of calculating basic eamings per share, cash didends of RMBA 600 million of non-
cumulative preference sharas declared in respect of the year of 2019 was deducted fram the prafit far the

year attributable 1o equity holders of the Bank (2018; RMB4,600 millian).

The conversion leature of preference shares & considered to fall within contingently =suable crdinary
shares, The tnggering events of comversion did not occur for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
31 Decernbar 2018, and thersfore the conversion feature of preference shares has no dilutive effect on

easnings per ¢hare caleulation,
12 CASH AMD BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

As at 31 Decombor

2019 2018
Cash 92,928 98,089
Mandatory reserve deposits with central banks )] 2,018,692 2312116
Surplus resenve doposits with contral banks 2 393,607 223,555

_Other deposits with central banks i3} 193631 170,187
Subtotal 2,698,858 2,803,947
Accrued inlerest 1,037 1,160
Total 2,699,895 2,805,107
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12 CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS (Continued)
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1) The Groue places mandatory resene deposits with the FROC and overseas regulstory bodies. These inciude RMME

recene depasits and foreign owrency reserve depadits. According to the

s of “Notie on

Reducing
Deposit Resenve Ratio for finandal nstitutions fssued by the People’s Bank of China™Ymfa (2019 No.4l RME
deposir reserve ratio for financial msbnriions is reduced by 1%, of which, by 0.5% from 15 Janvary 2019 and
25 lanuary 2019 respectively, And according to the “Nohce of Dynamic Aceionent Rewtt of rampeted culs fo
required reserve ratios of financial nstitutions” Ssved by Business Adminstration Depactment of the Feopla’s
Hank of Ching, AME depgosit resene ratfo is reduced by 7% from 25 lanuany 2019, According o the requireiments
ol “Matice on Reducing Depast Resenve Rathe for Finanoa insiifutions isued by the Peopla’s Bank of China *(Yinfa
[20719] Mo 2231 RMB deposit resenve ratio for financal instituthons & redeced by 005% on 16 September 2019,

for Domeste Operations of the Bank which mest the requirements of “Notice on Perfarmance Apprasal Hesults
of the Sannong Banking Qeeratrons of Agrcwitural Bank of China Limited for 2019 fssued by the People’s Bank of
China™ {Yanbanfa [20719] No. 601, effechive 25 March 2019, RME mancatory resere depasits with the FBOC are
hased on 8.5% of qualified AME daposits (31 Decernber 2018: 12%). Far the remaining Domestic Operations of
the Bank, M mandatary reserve depasits ame based on 11.5% of qualfied AVE deposits (31 December 2078!
1d%) For the owerseas participaning banks and cleaning banks with elipible AME deposits, AME mandatony esene
deposits are based on 11.5 % of gualified AME deposits (31 December 2078 14%), Foveign currency mandalory
resene daposits are hased on 5% (31 December 2018: 5% of qualfied foreipn curency deposits from customers.

Mandatary resene deposits

paced by the Bank’s Cvevseas Operatlons are defermined based on respective

avevseds requiatony eguirerrents, The forelgn owrency resenve deposils placed with the PBOC are non-interest
bearing.

@) Surplus resenve deposits primany
resenve dieposits and mainly for the purpose of clearing,

represent deposils mamtdined with the PROC in addition fo the mandatony

@) Other deposits with central banks primavily represent fiscal deposits and foreign exchange nisk resene placed
wath the PBOC that are not wailable for use in the Group’s daily operations. Fscal deposits ane non-inferast
bearing from povernment and the interest rate for foreign exchange nsk resenve s currently set at zero. The
fomeign exchange risk resernve i mamtained with the PROC in acoordance with the “Notice on Reinfoncing the
Macro Prudential Managemant of Foreign Exchange Transactions”® (Yinfa [2015] No 273 isswed by the PROC on
It August 2015, From & August 2018, the forelgn exchange risk reserve rare was adiusted o 20% according fo
the “Notice on Adurstment of Foreign Exchange Ak Rererves Polcy” (Yinda [2018] No, 190) fsued by PROC an 3

August 2018
13 DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

2019

Daposits with:
Domestic banks 185,905 54,075
Other domestic fimanciz] institutions 14,252 12,296
Overseas banks 34,493 43,711
Gress carmging amount 234,650 110,082
Accrued interest 2,118 196
Allowance for impairment losses (1,066) (5500
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions, net 235,742 100,728

As at 31 December. 2019, the carrying amount of deposits with banks and other financial institutions which
have been pledged as security was RMB14,670 million (31 Decermber 2018 RMB 13,080 million), These

deposits were mainly security deposits pledged with clearing house and exchanges.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
14 PLACEMENTS WITH AND LOANS TO BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 Dacember

2019

Flacements with and loans to:

Damestic banks 162,772 193,744

Other domestic fmancial institutions 252,498 256,887

Overseas banks and cther financial mstitutions 106,047 99,172
Gross carmying amownt 521,317 549,803
Accrued interest 3,289 3,594
Allowance for impairment losses (1,423) (1,384}

Placements with and loans (o banks and other
fimancial institutions, net 523,183 552,013

15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Group primarily enters into foreign exchange rate, interest rate and precious metal cerivative cantracts
ridated to trading, asset and liability managemant, and customer initiated transactions.

Thie contraciualnotional amounts and fair values of the dervative financial instruments entered into by
the Group are set out in the following lables. The contractualmotional amounts of dervative financial
instruments provide a basis for comparison with fair values of instruments recognized on the comsalidated
statement of financial positon but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash fiows involved or
the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicata the Group's exposure fo credit or
market risks. The fair value of dervative instruments become favourable {assets) or unfavourable (labilities)
a5 a result of Muctuations in market interest rates, foveign exchange rates or precious metal prices
relative to their terms, The aggregate falr values of derivative financlal assets and liabilities can fluctuaie
sagrificantly.

Certain financial assets and financial llabilities of the Group are subject 1o enforceable master netfing
arrangements or similar agreements, The agreement between the Group and the counterparty generally
allows for net settlement of the relevant financial assets and financial liabilities when both elect to setile
on a met basls. In the absence of such an election, financial assets and financial labilities will be settled
on a gross basis. However, each party to the master netting arrangements or similar agreements: will
have the aption fo settle all sich amaunts on 3 net basis in the event of default of the ather party. As
8t 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018. the amount of the financial assets and financial liabilitkes
subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar agreements ase not materal to the Group,
The Group did not elect to ofiset these financial assats and financial labilities on a net basis. The Group
does not hold any other financial instruments, other than derivatives, that are subject to master netting
arrangemeants or similar agreements.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

31 Decamber 2019

Contractualf
Fair value

notional
amaunt Assets Liabllities

Exchanoe rate dervatives
Cuwrrency forwards and swaps, and

Cross-curmency interest rate swaps 2,751,623 23,588 (19.835)
Currency options 108,691 540 (547)
Subtotal 24,128 (20,382}

Internst rate dervatives
Interest rate swaps 225,976 340 (1.676)
_Precious metal contracts and others 95,328 476 (7.490)
Total dervative financial assets and liabilities 24,944 (28,548)

Exchange rate desivatives
Currency farwards and swaps, and

Cross=CURMency interest rate swaps 2,850,770 34,202 (30.657)
Cuitency oplons 75226 BBG (738}
Subtota 35,0E8 131,305)
Interest rate dervatives

Interest rate swags 418,445 1.654 (839)
Precious metal contracts and others 76,631 202 (2,3200
Total derivative financial assets and liabilitles 36,944 {34,554)
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
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Cradit msk weighted amount for derivative transaction counterparties represents the counterparty
credit risk associated with derivative tramsactions and ks caleulated in accordance with the "Capital
Rules for Commercial Banks (Prowvisional)” issued by the CBIRC which was effective 1 January 2013 and
“Messurement Rule of Counterparty Default Risk Weighted Assets on Denvatives™ isued by the CRIRC
which was effective 1 January 2019.and t5 dependent on, among other factors, creditwonhiness of
customers and maturity chasacterstics of each type of contract, As at 31 Decemnber 2019 and 31 December
2018, the credit sk weighted amount for derivative transaction counterparty was measured under the

Internal Ratings — Based approach.

A at 31 Decembar

2019

Credit risk wedghted ameunt for counierparty 90,486

17,336

16 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

A5 at 31 December

019
Analyzed by collateral type:

Debt securities 681,891 343,571

Bills 27,958 27475
Subrotal 709,849 371,046
Accrued interest 08 1,152
Allowance for impalrment losses {1.608) {1,197
Financial assets held under resale agreements. net 708,551 371.001

The collateral received in connection with financial assets held under resale agreement is disclosed i Note

Iv 42 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments — Collateral.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
17.1 Analyzed by measurement basis

12,279,223 11,027,381

Measured at amortized cost [i]]
Measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income 2
Measured at fair value throwgh profit or loss {3}
Total

As at 31 December
2019

540,387 433,912
- 249

12,819,610 11,461,542

{1 Measived ar amortired cose

fs at 31 December

EDINETOOOO
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Corpovate loans snd achvances

2013

Loans and advances 7,381,532 & BO2 200
Przoral loany snd sdvance: SM0TE2F  AGTT A6
Taral 12,789,159 11,479 464
Acerued intersst 30,642 27,060
Alowance for impairment losses {540,578) (7R 143
Carmping amount of loans and advances fo cusiomens

meagred af amortized cost 12,274,223 11027 387

(2]  Measwed af fair value through ather comorehenthe incame

As at 31 December

Meazived ar falr vale through othey comprefense income

Corperate lnans and advances
Loans and advances
Irscocmted Bills

2015

Cavnping amount of loans and advanoes

118,997 89,957

421,390 4T 96T
1o customers measured ar fair value through

540 287 4339172

—Diher comprehengive inpme

(3  Medswed ar far vake Nrough profit or foss

Az at 31 December

Corporate lnans and advances
Lowas and dovanced

2019
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
17.2 Analyzed by assessment method of ECL

d 31 December 2019
el Stage I (i)

Grods loans and advances measursd
at amartized cost (accrued interest

not included) 12,281,653 320,316 187,190 12,789,159
Allewance far impalrment losies (351,550) (57,693) (131,335) {540,578)
Loans and advances to customers, net 11,930,103 262,623 55.855 12,248,581

Loans and advances measured at
fair value through other
comprehensve income 540,068 299 20 540,387

Allowance for impairment losses of
loans and advances to customers
measured at fair value through
ather comprehensive income {12,4595) (27) (15) {12,537)

Gross loans and advances measured
at amonized cost (accrued interest

not included) 10,929,528 359,934 190,002 11,479 454
Allowance for impalrment losses (261, 704) {58,455} {148,984) {479,143)
Laans and advances to customers, net 10,667,824 291, 479 41,018 11,000,321

Loans and advances measured at
fair value through other
comprehensive income 433.4E8 424 - 433,912

Allowance for impairment losses of
loans and advances to customers
measured at fair value through
othar comprehansive iIncome [7.460) {9) - (7.469)
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
17.2 Analyzed by assessment method of ECL (Continued)
The ECL for corporate loans: and advances in stage | and stage N, as well as personal loans and
adwances, were measuned in accordance with the sk parameters modalling method. The ECL for

corporate boans and advances in Stage Il were calculated using the cash flow discount model. For
dietails, see Note IV 44.1 Cradit Risk,

)

At 31 Decemnber 2018 the Group's eposure of cedil-impained Stage W foans and advances covered by
collateral and pledige of the Group was RMEIT 7d5miilon (31 December 2018 the Group's exposure of
cracit-impaired Stage W joans and advances covered by collareral and pledpe of the Group was RMEID 599
millicin)

17.3 Analyzed by movements in loss allowance
The movements of loss allowance = mainly affected by

212 | @ruxean

Translers between stages due to financlal instruments experiencing significant increases (or
decreases) in credit risk or becoming credit-impaired,

Alowance for new financial Instruments recogrized,

Remeasurement Includes the impact of changes in model assumptions, updates of model
paramelers, changes in probakalty of default and loss given defaull; changes in ECL due 1o
trancsfer of financal assats between stages; changes in ECL due 10 unwinding of discount over
time; changes in foreign exchange translations for assets denominated in foreign currencies and
Otver movements; and

The reversal of aliowances caused by repayment, write-affs and transfer of financial assets,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
17.3 Analyzed by movements in loss allowance (Continued)

The foliowing table shows the impact of above factors on the allowance for impasrment losses:

Year ended 31 December 2019

Staga | Staga 11 Stage |iF
Corporale loans and advandes 12m ECL {i) Lifetime ECL [ii)
31 December 2018 191,146 63,973 128,611 383.730
Tramifer
Stage | to s1age 0 (B,267) 6,261 - -
Stage |l 1o stage B - {19.356) 18,356 -
Stage Il o stage | 5,948 {5, 948) - -
Stage Il to stage B - 3390 {3,390) -
Originated or purchased financial
ASLRS 72,673 - - 12,673
Rernaasutement 15,292 16,147 40,776 B2 115
Repayment and wansfer out {39,198) (11,078} (35,664} (85,938)
Write-oifs - - (39,209} (39,209
31 December 2019 245,600 53.391 110,480 413,471
Year ended 31 December 2019
Stage Il Stage |l
Personal leans and advances n EC Lifetime ECL (iv)
31 Decernber 2018 78,018 20,273 102,882
Tranafur:
Stage | to stage B {1,530) 1,530 - -
Stage Il to stags B = [5, 1200 5,190 -
Stage Il 4o stage | a713 {973) - -
Stage |0 1o stage b - 487 (482} -
Originated or purchased financial
asseds 50,904 - - 50,504
Rerneasurement 12311 5119 13,406 30,846
Repaymant and tranfor out (28,231) (1,140 {5,428) (32,799)
Write-olfs - - (12,189 (12,189)
31 December 2019 114,445 4,319 20,870 139,644
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continuead)

17.3 Analyzed by movements in loss allowance (Continued)

The followang table shows the impact of above factors on the allowance for mpairment losses
(Continusad).

1 Jamsary 2018 160,902 53285 126,922 341,109

Transfar:

Stage | to stage Il (5,105) 9,105 - -

Stage |l to stage N - (22.224) 22,124 -

Stage |l 1o stage | 3,048 (3,548] - -

Stage lll to stage Ii - 2217 {2,217 -
Oniginated or purchased financial

assnts 48217 - - 4317
femeasurement 21,108 19,648 62,168 112,944
fepayment and transfer out (33,024} 4,110 (26,945) [54,980)
Write-offs - - 53,560 53,560
31 Decamber 2018 191,146 63,973 128611 383,730

1 laniary 2018 B0.853 35924 13,383 50,166

Transler:

Stage | to stage Il (1,124) 1124

Sraga |l o stage Hi - {1,248 1,248 -

stage i o stage | 1,139 {1.139) = -

Stage Il to stage | - 4mn 411) -
Originated or purchased financlal

a350ts 35,789 - - 35,789
Hemeaiurement (2,634 3750 10,441 11,557
fepayrment and transfer out (16,005) (2,331 3.291) 21,627
Write-offs - - {13,003 (13,003
31 December 2018 78,018 4,491 20,373 102,882
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)

17.3 Analyred by movements in loss allowance (Continued)

Gl In 2019 the changes of the Growp's lags allowance of carporate foant and advances in Stage | were mandy
dimhrboﬂramrﬁm'eauufmm}'”%h the correspanding gross amount and an MCredss i prowon

fi} In 2079 the providon rate of the Group’s corpacale loans and achances i Srage I remadnd stabile. The
changes of the Group's Ioss allosvance of corporate loans and acdvances in Stage I were mainly drven by a
nat gecrease of neany 13% in the comesponding Qross amount;

In 2019, the changes of the Group’s corporate lbans and achances in Stage M were manly driven by the
net transfer i from Siage ¥ and swhsequent remeasarement. This impact was netied off by the repayment,
transfer out and write-offs of Stage W carpevare loars and advances. There was po sgnificant charge in the
grost amodnt of Stage M corparate laans and advances as of 31 Decamber 2018 and 71 Decamber 2019,

i} In 2019 the changes of the Group’s koss affowance of personad loans and advances in Stage | were maundy
driven by both a net increase af neatly 16% in the caresponding gross amount and an (MCBEse 11 Brosion
rate.

fiv] In 2019, the proviseon rate of the Group’s persanal loans and advances in Stage I remans stable. Thene was

no significant change in the gross amount of Simge ¥ personal lbans and advances as of 31 Decemnber 2018

and 31 December 2019, Transfer batween stages led to net increase In the gross amount of personal foans

and advances m Stage i this 5 maindy driven by the nel transfer i from Stage | and the transferred amoabnt

is approwimately 1% of the beginning balance of Stage I personal foans and agvances. The impact an the

loss allowsances for the gross amount mcmease due [o transfer belween stages was nelfed off by the transfer

to Stage W and the repayment of Stage I personal foans and advances. The transferred amount to Stage

Il is mearly 70% of the Stage ¥ balances as of 31 December 2018. Repapment amount of Stage Il personal
Inans and adances is aboul 2% of the Stage I balances a5 of 3T Decemnber 2018,

In 2018, the changes in loss allowance of the Group's pesonal leans and advances in Stage W is maindy
driven by the pet transfer in fram Stage ¥ and suhsequent remeasirement. This impact was netied off by
the repayment, transfer out and write-offs of Stage I persona! loans and advances There was no significant
change in the gross amount of Stage IT personal ioans and acances as of 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2019

ful I 2018 the provision rate of the Group's covporate loans and advances in Stage | remains stable, The
changes of the Grow's foss allowance of corporate foans and advances in Stage | were mainly driven by a
net increaze of neary 12% in the comesponding gross amount

W) In- 2018 transfer between stages led fo net increase in the gross ament of corporale foans and adviances i
Stoge ¥, this s mainly drven by the net transfer in from Stage | and the fransferred amounst is spprosimadoly
3% of the baginning balarce of Stage | corporate loans and arvances The mpact an the loss allawances
for the gross arrount incesse dire 10 rarafer betwesyt stages was netied off by the repayiment of Stage
Il corpovate foans and advances. Ropayment amecant of Stage i corpovate foans and advances is about
30% of the beginming Stage I batances. There was no sgnificant change m the gross: amount of Stege §
corporate loans and advances ad of | lanuary 2018 and 31 Decomber 2018 The changes in loas allowance
is mainly driven by the changes in provision rales;

In 2GI8 the prowison rafe of the Group’s corporate foans and ecvandes i Stage M revmains stable.
The chaiges in loss alowance i manly diven by the net bansfer in from Stage I and subsequent
revreasurement. This impact was merted off by the repayment. transdfer ol and write-offs of Stage W

corporate foans and advances, There was no siqoificandt change in the gross amount of Stege [ corporate
Joans and advinces as of 1 dauay 2018 and 31 Decernber 2018,

fwi) In 2018, the prowision rate of the Group's personal loans and advances remains stable. The changes of the
Groun's fox afowance of personal koans and acvances in Stage | woe manly deven By & oet mcrease of
approgmalely | 7% i the corresponding gross amonl.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 Decermnber 2019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)
17.3 Analyzed by movements in loss allowance (Continued)

fell I JOVE, franifar between stages ked fo nel incrsase in the gross armount of personal loans and advances i
Stage N this is mabnly driven by the pat transfer i frovn Stage [and the transfered amount is approsimatisly
1% of the beginning Balance of Stage | personal loans and advances. The impact on fhe loss allowances
for the grass amount merease due fo ransfer behwean stages was netted off by the repayment of Stage i
persanal loans and advances. Repayment amouwnt of Stage it personal loans and sdvances i3 about 50% of
the Stage ¥ balances as of | fanuary 2018, There was no ugnificant change i the gross amount af Stage i
personal loans and advances as of T January 2018 and 31 December 2018. The changes in foss allewance &
marnly driven by the changes in provision rates;

in 2018 the proviwon rate of the Group’s personal loans and advances in Stage W remans stable
The changes in loss allowance & mainly deven by the net trandfer i from Sioge U and subsequent
remeanrement. This impact was netred aff by the repapment, trandfer out and write-offs of Sfage W
persor foan and advanices. fn 2018, the ner decrease of the gross avmount of the Group's pevsomnal pam
and advances in Stage W & approamaloly 12%.

18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

A% at 31 December
2019

Financlal assets at fal valee through prodit or loss 18.1 801,361 54.245
Debt instrument investments at amortized cost 18.2 4,946,741 4,503,698
Other deit instrument and cther equity investments

t fair value through other comprehensive Income 183 1,674,828 1,738,132
Total 7.422,930 G, 885,075

18.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December

2019
Financial asots mandatarily measured at fair value
through profit or loss:

— Held far rading {n 240,281 246,788
— Other financial assets at fair value through
prafit or loss {2} 216,052 129,725
Financia assets. designated at fair value through
profit or loss (3} 345,028 266,732
Total 801,361 643,245
Analyzed as;
Listed in Hong Kong 3,695 4,101
Listed outskde Hong Kong i) 481,884 519.076
Lrnlisted 315,782 120,068
Taotal B01.361 643,245

W Debt secuvities traded on the China Domesti inder-hank Bond Market are inciuded v “Lisred adiside Hong
Kurag™

216 (@rureurn
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decembes 2019
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]
IV MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continuad)
18.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss [Continued)

{1} Financial assets held for trading

Az at 31 December

1019

Debt securitles issued by

Governments 10,371 11,302
Public sector and quasi-governments 45,221 87 444
Financial institutons 102,650 62,506
Corporates 43,207 b, 156
Subtotal 201,459 214,008
Precious metal contracts 29,132 28139
Equity 2,354 1,986
Fund 7,336 2,655
Total 240,281 246,788

(2}  Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (i)

December

Dabt wecurnties issusd by

Fublic sector and quasl-governments 19,434 20,554
Financial irstiutions 72,334 51,547
Corporates 57324 4 385
Subtotal 47,492 76,886
Equity 95,183 33778
Furd and others 23,377 19,061
Total 216,052 129,725

W Crher financial assels af fair walue throwgh profit ar lods refer fo financial dsseds that da nat qualily
for msasurement at AC or FYOC and are not held for trading, focluding bond imestments, equily

inrerests, funds, frust plans and adsel managermen products, among other things, of the Group and
the Bark
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued})
18.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
{3) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or lass (iii)

As at 31 December

2019

Debl securitles issued by:

Goverrments 17,137 21257

Public sector and quasi-governments 19,790 33,399

Financial institutions 147,389 48,711

Corporates 17.334 38,537

Subtotal 211,650 142,504
Deposits with banks and other financal institutions 28,207 9,174
Macemants with and loans 1o banks and

other financial imstitutions 104,184 110,431
Others 9B 4,223
Total 345,028 266,732

g Financal assets desgnated af fair value prafit or Jess mainky inclede the financal asset

smested by the wealth managernent products WP with princioad guaranteed by the Group

218 @ruxeun
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year erded 31 Decembss 2009

[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.2 Debt instrument investments at amortized cost

As at 31 December

2019
Debt secunities ssued by
Governmenis 2,755,156 2,299,357

Public sector and quasi-govermments 1,278,027 1,255,738
Financial institutsons 302,220 300,010
Codporates 124,558 169,480
Subtatal 4,460,061 4,024, 585
Recenable from the MOF £ 290,891 250,87
Special government bonds (i} 03,352 93,358
Others {103 16,791 22,443
Total 4,861,085 4,431,277
Accrued interest 95,134 81,608
Allgwance for impairment losses (9,488) {9,187}
Dot instrument imvestments at amortized cost, net 4,946,741 4,503,698
Analyzed as:
Listad in Hong Kong 17,851 12,698
Listed outside Hang Kong (1] 4,567,976 4,116,972
Unlisted 360,514 374.028
Total 4,946,741 4,503 698

il The Group recensd a notice from the MOF in Janvary 2000, danifying that from T January 2020, the
intoresr rate of the wipaid payments will be venfied year by year based on the rate of retum of the fe-yar
treasury bond of the previous year,

i} Special gosermment bond refers 1o the non-transferable bond ised by the MOV in 1998 in the aggregate
pringipal amount of RMBES2.3 billen fo the Predecessor Entity for capital mplenshment. The bond vall
malire i 2028 and bears mierest ot a fived rate of 2.25% per amnum, starling from T December 2008

) Other oebd etrumends clssied o eceddables ane primanly related to investment B unconsoiicated
siructured entities held by the Growp (Note A 41 {2}

v} Debt securiines traced on the China Domest fnder-bank Bond Marke? ane fncluded i “lited oulude Hong
Kang®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 3019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)
18.2 Debt instrument investments at amortized cost (Confinued)
(1) Analyzed by assessment method of ECL

Year ended 31 Decombear 2079

Stage | Stage II Stage Il
12m ECL Lifetime ECL Total

Gross debt instrument
Investments at amortized cost 4,553,832 1,196 1.201 4,956,229
Allowance for impairment losses (8,409} {32) (1,047} (9.488)

Debt instrument investments
at amostized cost, net 4,945,423 1,164 154 4,946,741

Gross debtl instrument

investments at amorbized cost 4,509,520 1.043 2,322 4,512,885
Allowanee for impairment losses (6,691} (236} {2,260} (9187}

Debt instrument Investments.
at amortized cost, net 4,502 829 Ba7 62 4,503,698

Debt instrument investments at amoriized cost in stage || and stage Nl mainly included corporate
bond and other debt instruments investment.

220 @rureurn
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)
18.2 Debt instrument investments af amortized cost (Continued)
{2) Analyzed by movements in loss allowance (i)

Year eanded 31 Decembar 2019

Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
12m ECL Lifetimea ECL

31 December 2018 6,691 236 2,260 9,187
Transier:

Stage | transfer 1o stage Il (29) 29 -

Stage | transfer io stage (il (282) - 382
Driganated ar purchased financial

asiels 1.832 - - 1.832
Remeasurement 1,534 3 4 1.541
Maturitees or transter out {1,237) (236) (1.599) (3.072)
31 December 2019 B.409 32 1,047 9,488

1 January 2018 5,883 20 2261 8,164

Transfer:

stage | transfer to stage I {9 L - -
Origanated ar purchased financial

A55ELS 2,242 - = 2,242
Remeasurement {369) 227 233 9
Maturities or transfer oul {1,056} 120) (234) {1,310}
31 December 2018 6,691 236 2,260 9,187

i) A ar 31 December 20719, the increases of the Growp s foss alfmwance of debl instrument investrments
at amortiped cost were manly dve re the increate of debr Msbument fvestments and the
remeasurermant of remainad debit instremant investments in the year,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 3019
{Amaurits in milliors of Renminks, unless obenass saled)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.3 Other debt instrument and other equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Yoar ended 31 December 20719
i - Cumulative
amount of

change in fair

Amortized value that

cost of debt Is accrued
instruments/ to other Cumulative
cost of equity comprehensive amount of
Instruments Fair value income alrment

Debt instruments (1) 1,650,974 1,671,746 20,772 {6.697)
Equity instruments (2} 2,050 3,082 1,032 HiA
Total 1,653,024 1,674,828 21.804 16.,897)

Debt instrurments (1) 1.725.961 1,735,892 9,931 (6,327)
Equity instrumanis (2] 1,598 2,240 B2 NiA

Total 1,727,558 1,738,132 10,573 (6.327)

222 (Mruriurn
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decembes 2019
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continuad)

18.3 Other debt instrument and other eguity investments at fair valve through other
comprehensive incame (Continued)]

(1) Debt instruments

fa) Analyzed by measurement basis

As at 31 December

2019
Dbt securities wsued by

Governmants 744,035 TO7 g8/
Public sector and quasi-governmends 247,527 263,005
Financial instifuticns 478,172 544,934
Corporates 165,270 186,738
Subtotal 1,635,004 1.702 664
nhers 18,556 14,287
Subtotal of debt Instruments 1,653,560 1,718,951
Accrued intenast 18,186 18,941
Total 1,671,746 1.735.882
Analyzed as:
Listed In Hong Kong 107,437 98,119
Listed cutside Hong Kong 1,499,316 1,593,843
Linlisted 64,953 43,930
Total 1,671,746 1,735,852

0 OCrhers primanly include trust imvestment plans and debd irvestment plans invested by the
Group, which related fo iveitment i other unconsolidated structured entities hald by the
Grorp (Mate IV £ 1(2))
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 3019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

18.3 Other debt instrument and other equity investments at fair value through other

229 (@rukurn

comprehensive income (Continued)

{1) Debt instruments (Cantinued)

Analyred by assessment method of ECL

Year ended 31 December 2019

Stage Il 5I_.'|gr_| mn
Lifetime ECL

CriFser dibl insIrumadnts ol

falr value through other

comprehensive income 1,671,525 o . 67N T4G
Allpvrance for impament losses {6,874} - 123) [6,897)

Other debt instruments at

fair value through olher

comprehenivg income 1,730,932 4,783 7T 1,735,592
Allovrange for impaimrent losses {5.720) [FEH] {55} 16,327

Orther debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income in stage I and
stage |l mainly included corporate bond investments,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019
(A mounts in milkorm of Renminkl, whies otbeosse stated)]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
18 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continuad)

18.3 Other debt instrument and other eguity investments at fair valve through other
comprehensive incame (Continued)]

(1) Debt instruments (Cantinued)

fc)  Analyzed by movements in foss alliowance (i)

Skage | stage Il Stage Il
12m ECL Litatime ECL

31 Decambee J018 5700 552 55 B327
Transher

skage || Srarvser io stage | 6 (26) - -
Qriginated or purchasad

fimantial assets 1 = - 2,129
Reenaasunemient 126 - i 9
Maturites of transher out {1,187} (326) {59 1,768)
31 December 2019 6,874 - FE] 6,587

1 fanuary 2018 5290 125 186 5501

Tramsfer:

stage | transher o stage i {35) 35 - -

stage || transfer to stage | 51 51} = i
Originated or purchased

financial assets 1,958 - * 1,958
Remneasrement {143} 452 EL] 328
Maturities or fransher out (1,401} ful] (170 |1, 5800
31 December 2018 5,730 552 55 6327

fif]  Asar 31 Decomber 2019, the ncreases of the Group’s lois allowance of other debt inserument
investmenis af fair value throogh other comprehensiar income woave mainly due fo the increase
of debr imtrument imsestments and the demcagnition of defil wstrument ssvedimenrs in e
yar

(2) Equity instruments

As at 31 Decombaor

Other financial institutians 2,878 2,036
Other enterprises s 204 0 204
Total 3,082 2,240
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Far the year ended 31 Decermnber 2019

{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND STRUCTURED ENTITIES

(1] Investment in subsidiaries

226 (Mrureurn

The {allowang are the principa’ subsdianes of the Group as at 31 December 2019:

{[hing Agricufterd France | Mrerrber 1582 DL TH M0 000y D000 ivesment holdieg

Co, i

BT Intermafional Hodingt 1 Movernber 2008 HED4, 11338048 il B0000 Ivesimen Friding
Limitad

JBC Frunvid liasing 4 Seprember )1 FEMIZ3, 500000000 10008 0000 Fruaecal basing
(o, i

Fgroaltrd Bank of China (16 5 Novernber 1081 lordas,  USDADR00G,600 1m0 L] Barirg
Limfed Unted Kngdom

BBCCA Fund Managenes 18 March 1008 Sthrgghal, PO FME1,750.006001 SUE7 5167 Fand Mmatigement
Co, ind

A5T i ot Bark 17Aupat 008 e Mongoll,  RMBT9,500000 5100 1 Barking
Limited Ciabity Company e

AGCHoe Hanchan Roral ik () 17 Augist 1008 Pube, FEC RME31_DOG 000 11 [y Barking
Lirinend Lisbity Cornpuany

BB i Rarl Bk Limfied Lakibly & Wy 2080 Arba PRC RMEELEN 000 50 s Buritieg
Loy

MBS Ara Rurd ook Limeid 30 Wareh 2080 Shagewl PRC MBS 006000 50 £1.00 Bariieg
Ktaly Corrgaryy

B Dhugiare enwgtang Rl Baek i A Drejong PC INEN0,008,000 S 100 Barkieg
Limited Liabéy Cornpany

MBC Xiamen Tong ' Raral fank My 200 Fupas, R0 ANET00.000000 1M 4100 fanieg
Limifie) Liatsty Compiny

AL LBy lurancn (o, L4 f ¥5 Deoambae 005 Bebing PRC  RMED SHOBEATS 1M 00 L e
HAgscshrl Bask of Ching 1€ Moversbar 10104 lumroour,  EURILO0G 00 10006 00 By
(Lesmmboerg Limitad Lumeboury

Agsoshiral Bask of Ching W FDecembir 10M  Moscow, Rema  BUST 550,038 1T 10008 00 Barking
(Moo} Limsiad

BB Frucial e, bwesaman? 1 et 2007 Bsingy PRC - FAB10,000,006,000 10208 W00 Doblaoquty wap
o, Itd and reiatad Serces
Agonstrs ask of Chna Weath ) 15 Iy 2005 Bing, PRC RME12,000, 004,000 10000 L] Weath
Managenent (o, 1 Warapement

Durng the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, there were no changes in the
propartion of equity interest or voting rights the Graug held in its subssdiaries.

i} Two of the three directors on the board of ABC Hubel Hanchuan Rural Bank Limited Liabiiry Company were

appointed by the Bank. The Bank concluded that it has effective cantrol over and has inciudlad the entity in
its consolidition scope.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year erded 31 December 2009
(Amaunts in milkor of Renminbl, whies olbenwie stated)

IV MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES AND STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continuad)
(1) Inwvestment in subsidiaries (Continuwed)

i}  On 31 Decernber 2012, the Rank acquired 51% of the isued share apitad of Jahe Life Insurance Co., Led
and renamed it as ABC Life Insurance Co., Lid (FABC Life insurance”). The Group recogmnired poodieal! of
RMB1, 381 milion as & et of this sequisition. During the yewt ended 31 December 2016, the Group dnd
ather imeshon comnibuted additfonal caplital toraliing RMAE3, 76T mifon fo ABC Lifs insuyance, compvising
regisieved capital of RMES1 7 mion and capnial reserve of RVEZ 844 milon, After the capital infecition, the
propovtion of equity inforest and voting nights the Growp held in AFC Life inswonce remamed af 51%.

The Bank tests the impatrrent of goodvl annually, When performing the smpairment fest, the Bank

lmmmdmﬂmmmwwmm#mmm
xmmhuimruﬂimufmamm the recoveralie amount. The excess of camymg amount
over recoverable amount & recagnized in profit or logs of the curent penad.

The recoverabie amount of the assets 5 based on adjusted net assers value of in-force business, value of
ame year of new business new businmess multipler, and other data approved by the management of ABC
Life Insurance. The actuanal valuahion methad i appied and the rak discount rafe. refurn on investment,
valuation aiscount rate, and other assumphions adopted o foecast cash flows respectively reffect the
specific risks assocated with them.
As #f 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, there was no objeciive ewdlence noted for any goodil
impadrmant, and o impanment loss was recognized

) Dwwng the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group coniributed additional capdal totafing RAMBGT T
mithan to Agrcultural Bank of Ching (Moscow) Limited, which with 3 coremponding increase of RAMBET T
mifffon in the registered capital of Agriownural Bank of Ching (Mosoowd Limited. After the capifal injection,
the proportion of equity inferest and vating Aghts the Group held in Agricultural Sank of Ching Mascow)
[Lirnitand rermained at 100%.

) Duning the year ended 31 December 2018, the Bank establizhed Ageicuftural Bank of Chine Wealth
Management Co., Lid, as its wholly-owned subsiciany,

{2) Structured entities
The Group also consolidated structured entities as disclosed in Note [V 41 Structured Entities,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019

{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

(1) Investment in associates

Srelovplee Bk ol Wb @ M5 Eramadile Conge  NAFSE 302 B0G000 bl S fark

Eeing Guoka fam ngre sty () Fuil | e FRC RMBHATS 00060 na H NosSearies
It -l (b LP TR BV
nd mted

Fvsary HicE

T Hosgrzvmng ew il X9 M L RNENON.00A,000 Folo) 000 Noafearde
Enirgy Autnmctin Furd IreRt HhhES
Irepitrian! Aptacasiee! i il
Lenaar [# ) A

) On 28 May 2015 the Sino-Congalese Bank of Afrca (La Fangue Sino-Congalase pour FAfmgue. heveinafter
refierred to as B5CA Bank), esfablished by the Bank and ether investors with authorized capital denominated
in Central African CFA frane (“XAFT), was granied the required banking lcense by the Jocal regulaton
authority. The Bank holds 50% equily inferest and woling rghis in BSCA Bank, and has the nght fo
participate in the financial and operafing policy decizons of B5CA Bank, but does not constitufe confrol or
joint control over thase policy decrions

W The Bank's whol-owned subsidiary, ARC Financial Assets investment Co_ Lid, and other imesiovs invested
in the above mentioned entevpnses. The Group has the mght fo parficipate in the fnancial and opemading

poly decisons of these enferprises but the npht ooes not consiitule contred or foint conibrad over those
o co e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year erded 31 Decembss 2009

[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
20 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

{2) Inwvestment in joint ventures

Ermiimpde Micid Owrership Reform Detrao-Euety and
Frd P e REprng
BEC Gacrow [Hubs] Debt-in-Equty Fiill Fubel, L AVBSO0.00000 T £k
rupitrel fund IF Leloleicte i
it aed ot
iy s
SuaTing] mumstrant P WIE Dhwiang FEC RMET,200.0001000 k] am
BEC o Sk ! (e irwei g 00 Thewsq PR AME, 500000000 i 5100
fndlP
il TV
Sherchen Dhaping Sudi nvaitrient MU Ggdong L RME4D0DN000 W nn dstral
ot LP Wit aed
PVESATEN ki
Dhagang Wew Fomr Fud LF Wi Daiaeg RO AEDO0D000.000 500 8m Ppdsinal
ntmert sl
Uiy Evesaent
Cherexdy Chuaniryg Libium Eremy 200 Gobuin MO AMEZSX006000 k3 3 Hon patbely
Sty Irvesirmend fuied 1P Inded ety
rasine
e ahry
HIES
Yiwy Emetgng Power Enuity S Dheang RO RMEZO000000000 50 S000  Eonty inwesiment,
It fund Farinenhip dinbl-lz-agty WP
L Farmenti ¥ sgporeng
besnes
Shargfa oo (Nn A0 Shanghal FRC R 500000000 Ba6T SO0 oty etiment,
Sty inmesment Fund, 10d, Dbt ity 2nd
riEed sgpparing
SR
Norgyirhuan Jiaing ey Mk Telpg BC RUE00000 Tom 000 Ivestment aad
mesimest Farnenhip 1P e
Mraregmment
e Mogota Meeepingrhes MW e Margia, - RMER,000.000000 gim G100 Eouity bewestman,
Develogrmart fud Investrent L L
Citer LF Matagemert ind
Ve iy
b
Kareiriinion infracuctine Expity e Tanje JRC - RAZ3,500.000,000 bl 0N gy rvecimen
irwestrient (Tasjn Fand LF nd rvetmen
TS

The wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, ABC Financial Assets Inwestment Co., Lid. and other
jmvestors established the above-mentioned partnership. According to the partnership agreements,
matters considered at the Meeting of Partners or investiment decissor-meaking committee shall be
approved by the unanimous consent of all the partners or all the committee members. The Bank
constitutes joint control over the financial and operating policy decisions of these limited partnerships
with the other investors
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 3019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
21 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Electranic
equipment,
fumiture and Motor Construction
Buildings finturas vehicles in progress
Coft
1 January 2019 186,443 65804 11.097 7986 171,330
Addilkons 10,993 10,053 2,945 2,060 26,057
Trarsfers 5097 126 1 (5.324) -
Disposals [0,074) {8,967) (673) (401) {19,121)
31 December 2019 193,485 67,116 13,364 4,331 278,266
Accumulated depresation
1 laruary 2019 (67,584) (47,735) (3,258) - (118,577
Charge for the yea (6,613) (5,919) (345) - {13,017}
Disposals 583 5.189 410 - 6,187
31 December 2019 {73.609) (48.465) (3.393) B (125.467)
Allowance for mmpairment loises
1 January 2019 27 21 () (8) 1301)
Impairment loss - - - (26} {25)
Disposals 5 5 1 - i
31 December 2019 {265) (16} - {34) (315)
Carrying value
31 Decomber 2019 119,591 18,635 9,971 4,287 152,484
1 lanuary 2019 118,588 18,048 7838 7,978 152452
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
21 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continusd)

Cost

1 January 2018 174,802 B4, Ba6 10,009 16,170 264, E27
Additions 3,512 5,310 1,613 4,904 15,359
Transfers 12,210 236 121 (12,567) “
Disposals 13,101} [4,588) {45} (521} 18, 856)
31 December 2018 186,443 65,804 11,087 7.936 271.330
Accumulated depreciation

1 January 2018 (51,235} {44,500) 3.m2 - {109.157)
Charge for the year {7,048) (B,442) {14} - (14,104
Disposals 689 3,607 78 - 4. B84
31 December 2018 67,584) A7.735) (3.258) = (118.577)
Allowance for impairment o

1 January 2018 {294) (8] L] {109) (412)
Irparirment foss EH] {13) - - (1863
Dispasals ik - - 101 127
31 Cecernber 20138 271} {21} {1} (81 (201)
Camyng value

31 December 2018 118,588 18,048 7,838 7978 152,452
1 lanuary 2018 112,273 19.938 6,986 16,061 155,258

According 1o the relevant Lws and regulations, subsequent to the Bank's transformation into a pxnt stock
company, the legal title of properties previously held by the Predacessar Entity are 10 be transferad te the
Bank. As at 31 Decamber 2019, the registration transfer process of these transferred properties and other
ceain properties have nol been completed. Management believes that the incomplete registration transfer
process does not affect the rights of the Bank as the legal successor to those assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 3019
{Amaurits in milliors of Renminks, unless obenass saled)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
22 DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated staterment of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset when there is a legally enforceable right 1o offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilibies and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
following & the analysis of the deferred tax balances:

As at 31 December

2013 2018
Dreferrad tax assets 120,952 113,253
Deferrad tax labiities (520} {13%
MNet 120,432 113.154

{1} The following are the movemnents and major deferred tax assets and Habilities recognizad.

Alowarcy for Early
pakment b relitpmant
lesvy benefits Y (ithen ata
31 December 2152 1A : Lo & [ATL] Lt 16,18
Credifchime) o e omidaed
noome seement Lk .1 1o {16 Lia§ 1L ] ] 0061
{redt 12 cther comprehense inome - - - - L - i c 1
31 Decornber 2005 TH.H0 EALH 53 7,640 (130 18 1841

31 Ducember 2017 3% z J
_Chinge i oustng ey 1265 = .. 16 = 38
1 sty 218 #590) 1306 W A ) B s
Credtrharne) 1o Be comliditd
income stztmen 11513 148 o] i [sdl) (1@ 15,083
et 1 sthér corprehetrng oo = = = : aan -
31 Decerber 2018 1045 ] M en fasm W1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
(Amaunts in milkorm of Renminbi, whies olbensne stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

{2} Deferred income 1ax assetsiliabilities) and related temporary differences,

amounis, are attributable o the following items:

11 Decembaer 2019
[i'n-julr'llhln.-' )

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
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before offsetting qualifying

{taxabla) Deferred
lemporary tax assels’
difference (liabilities)
Daferrad tax assots
Allgwance Tor impalrment losses 456,559 114,140 413,742 103,435
Fair value changes of financial
instruments 23,426 5,856 29,070 1.268
Accrued but unpasd staff cost 36,700 9,175 35,462 B.BGS
Prowvision 30,558 7,640 25E83 6471
Early retirement borefits 2,133 533 2,883 120
Cthers 1.019 253 1,041 i
Subtotal 550,395 137,599 o8 111 127,027
Daferred tax liabilities
Fair value changes of financial
instrumeants (68,635) {17,158) {55,392} {13,847}
Others (35) (9 (104) (26)
Sulstotal (68,670) {17,167} (55,496} {13,873
Nt 481,725 120,432 452,615 113,154

23 OTHER ASSETS

As at 31 December

2019

Accounts receivable and temporary payments {1 78,132

Land use rights [P} 19,889 20,804
Right-of-use assets (3 10,805 WA
Intangible assets 3,229 2N
Interest recevable 3,030 2,993
Investment properties 2,730 2,894
Long-term deferred expanses 1,792 2196
Value-added tax receivable 1,173 1,079
Fareclosed assets 594 &67
Premiums receivable and reinsurance assets 564 &08
Others 9,843 7.341
Total 131,881 9% 662
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{Amourits i millions of Renminks, ke olhsosise vated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
23 OTHER ASSETS (Continuad)

(1) Account recervables and femporary payments, which include recevables from sefffement accownts and iguidaton
account, amourt recevabies from the MOF other recsivables, ate.

Far accounl recevables arisng from revenue recognzed in accordance wath IFRS 15, the enfity measures the koss
allewance 4t amount ecgual to fetime ECL wsing & umplified approach. Ar 71 Decemnber 2019, the principals of
these acoount recelirabves was AMBEZ 658 million (31 December 20018 RMET0, 592 million), and the ks alfowance
&0 ot equad fo Betime ECL was RVBASS melfon (3T Docember 2018 RMEE 10 millonl

For other accownt recenalees, the ennty measures ECL usmg relatnely simple ECL models, by which The Group
PrEpaes @ prowion malnis incorparaning current corditon and future forecast fo measwre fogs alfowances. Ar
1 December 2079, the gross amount of thess account recenvalnies was HAME /B 994 millon (71 December Z018!
AMEE, 852 milfan), and the foss allowance was RMEZG6T mihon (31 December 2018 AMBZ, 635 mildon],

2)  According fo the mlsvant laws and regulations, subsequent fo the Bank's tansformation mta a pint stock
company, land use rights previousl hald by the Predecessar Ennity ane fo be transfermed fo fhe Bank. As at 31
December 2019, the registration transfer process of certain land use righis has rot been completed, Management
belfeves that the incomplete regisfration iransfer process does not affect the rmghis of the Bank as the legal
siceesior to those land use rights.

@) Asaib 31 December 2018, the right-of-use sssels recognized by the Group are maimly include operation bulldings,
and are mainly wsed for dody business. The depreciaton expenst in the year of 2019 war amounting fo AVES, 700
melian, and the accumulated depreciation amadnting fo AMET, 700 millan
24 BORROWINGS FROM CENTRAL BANKS

As at 31 December 2019, borrowings from central bank mainly included Medium-1erm Lending Facilities
from FEOC amounting to RMESS96, 500 million (31 December 2018: RMESS 1,500 million)

25 DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December
2019

Deposits from:
Domestic banks 100,894 47,202
Other domestic financial institutions 1,339,628 1,016,565
Crverseas banks 3,242 8,206
Other overseas financal institutions 55.438 44,280
Subtotal 1,459,202 1,116,953
Accrued interest 4,707 7.369
Total 1,502,909 1,124,332

234 mrExann
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
26 PLACEMENTS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

As at 31 December

2019

Placements from:

Damestic banks and other financial institutions 148,603 137,555

Overseas banks and cther financial instiutions 175,124 185,870

Subtotal 323,727 323,825
_Accrued interest 1636 1716
Total 325,363 325,541

27 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December

019
Financial Kahilities held for trading

Precious metal contracts 14,147 17,188
Financial kabilities designated at fair value through

prafit or boss

Principal guarantead wealth managemant products (4] 312,975 265,715

Overseas debt securithes 3,50% 3,400

Subtotal 316,480 269,115
Total 330,627 286,303

1) The Group desipnates WMPs with principal guavandesd by the Group as fnancial habiities at faw value through
profit o loss. The covresponding imestments ae designated as finandial assers at fair value through profit or
fass. As af 31 Decermber 2019 and 31 Decernber 2078, the difference behween the fair value of these products
frsud by the Group and the contraciual amount payable To the bolders of these products dpon matunty was nod
ol

Far the cument and pror pear, there wene no ggrificant changes o the fair valve of the Group's fnancial Rabiies
desgnated at far value through profif or lass atirbutadle to the changes in the Group’s own edif msk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 3019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
28 FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

As at 31 December

2019
Analyred by type of collateral:

Debt secuntios 50,805 156,741
Bills 1,970 =
Subtotal 52,865 156,741
Accrued inferest | 332 _3E0
Total 53,157 157101

The collateral pledged under repurchase agreement is disclosed in Note IV 42 Contingent Liabdlities and
Commitments — Collateral

29 DUE TO CUSTOMERS

As at 31 December

2019

Demand deposits

Corporate customers 4,902,237 4 677,155

Individual customers 5.659.615 5.318,511
Time deposils

Corporate customers 2,061,676 1,941,564

Individual customers 4,960,436 4,479,483
Pledged deposits (4} 250,847 283,530
Others 480,403 440,403
Subtotal 18,315,214 17,145,646
Accrued nfefest 227,647 200,644
Total 18,542 861 17,346,290

{1} Analyzed by acivity to which pledged deposits are related to:

As at 31 December

2019 3
Guarantee and lerers of guaranise 68,694 78,850
Trade finance 75,808 92,555
Bank acceplance 49,904 52,055
Leters of cradi 17,51 12,463
Others 38,870 52,508
Total 250,847 288,530
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

2019

As at 31 December

282,880

Baneds issued (1) 349,978

Certificates of deposit issued (i} 267,307 240 897
Other debl securities ssued (3) 482,345 251,253
Subtotal 1,089,630 775,030
Interest payable 8,582 5,643
Total 1,108,212 TBOETI

As at 31 Decernber 2019 and 31 December 2018, there was no default related to any debt securities issued

by the Group.

(1) The carrying vahse of the Group’s bonds ssued are as follows.

As at 31 December

2 75% USD fixed rate Green Bonds

2019

maturing in October 2020 (i 3,488 3,432
4.0% subordinated fixed rate bonds

maturing in May 2024 (i - 25,000
5.3% subordinated fixed rate bonds

maturing in June 2026 il 50,000 50,000
4.99% subordinated fixed rate bonds

maturing in December 2027 fivh 50,000 50,000
5.8% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing in August 2024 (v = 30,000
4.45% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing in October 2027 (vl 40,000 40,000
d.45% Tier-lwo capital fixed rate bonds

maturing in April 2028 (it} 40,000 40,000
d_28% Tier-two capital fived rate bonds

maturing in March 2029 {viin} 50,000 -
4 3% Tier-two capital fived rate bonds

maturing in Apnl 2029 {ixh 40,000 -
4.53% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing in March 2034 () 10,000 -
4.63% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing in Aprl 2034 (111 20,000 -
Medium term nates issued (=i} 35,458 41,070
3 68% CHY fixed rate Green Bonds

maturing in June 2022 {xii} 3,000 -
3.3% fixed rate financial bond

maturing in September 2022 (xiw} 2,890 -
3.4% fi=ed rate financial bond

maturing in September 2024 ] 1,880 -
5.55% fixed rate capital replenishment bond

maturing in March 2028 (i) 3,500 3.500
Total neminal value 350.216 283,002
Less: Unamortized sswance cost and discounts (238) {122}
Total 349,978 282 B8O
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For the year ended 31 Decernber 3019
{amourits n millioes of Benminks, unles olheosise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continuad)
{1} The carrying value of the Group’s bonds Bsuved are as follows: (Continued)

Pursuant to the approval by relevant regulatory authonties, the bonds issued by the Group are set cut
a5 balow:

@ The USD green bonds issued in London m October 2015 have a tenor of 5 pears, with a fiaed coupon rare
2. 75%, payable semi-anmually.

W The subardinated fired rate bonds fssued m May 2005 have & tenar of 15 years, with a fived coupon rate of
o (¥, payable annually. Ar af 20 May 2019, the Fank has redeamed all of the bonds ar face value

) | The subardinated fised rate bonds ssued i June 2017 have a renor of 15 pears, with a fed coupon rafe of
5 3%, payabie annualy, The Rank has an opion fa redeam all af the bonds ar face value on 6 fune 2021 §
the Bank ol not exercise this aption, the coupon rale of the bonas would remain at 5.3% per anmen from
¥ lune 2021 omvands,

) The suborchinated fired rare bonds msued 0 December 2017 have a tenor of 15 pears, with & fixed' coupon
rate of 4.99%, payable annually. The Bank has an opdion ro redeem all of the bonds & face value an 179
Decembear 2022 If the Bank did not exercise this option, the coupon rate of the bends weuwld remain at
4 99% par anrwm from 20 December 2022 ormwards

fwl  The Trer-nwo capital bonds lsswed w August 2014 have a renor of 10 pears. with a fived coupon rane of
5.8% payable annually. As at 19 Awgust 2015, the Bank has redeemad all of the bond's ar face value.

fwll  The Tier-two copiial bonds issvied & October 2017 have a tenor of 10 pears, with a fised coupon rate of
4.45% payable arcually. The Bank has an option fo redeem part or ol of the bonds ot face valise on 16
Octobar 2022 if specified redempiion conditions a5 stipilated in the offering dacuments were met, subject
to regpudatony approval, I the Bank oid red exevcne this aplion, e coupon rale of the bords would remain
at 4 45% por anneem from 17 Oclober 2022 onwards. These Tier-two capital bonds have the wiite-gdlown
feature of a Ter-two capdtal snstrument and they are gualified as Tier-two Capatl inshrumeands in accordance
with the CERC requinsments.

vl The Terhwo capital bonds ssued in Aol 2018 have a tenor of 10 pears. with a fieed cotpon rate of 4.45%
payable annually. The Bank has an opfaon ta redeem part or all of the bonds af face value on 26 Apnil 2023
if specified redemption condiions as stipulated in the offering documents were met, subjoct to requistory
aporoval. i Bhe Bank did not exercise this oplion. the colipon rate of the bonds would remain at 4.45% per
annum from 27 Aprl 2023 onwards. These Tier-two capital bonds have the write-dowr feature of a Tier-
twe capital (nstrument, and they ane qualified as Teer-teo Capifal instruments in actordance with the CHRC
requiemeans.

il The Trerwo capital bands fsmd in March 2019 have a tenor of 10 pears, with a fared coupon e of
4.28% payable annually, The Bank has an opbion fo redeem part or af of the bonds at face valve on T8
March 2024 if specifiod redemption conditions as stipulated in the offoring docurments woene met, subject fo
raguilataory approwdl. if the Bank ol not exercise tha option, the coupon rate of the bonds woidd ramam at
4. 2B% per ahoum from 19 Manch 2024 onwards. These Tier-two capital bonds have the wiite-dlowm featune
of a Tror-two capital instrument, and’ they ae quaiified as Trer-two Capital insfruments in accordance with
the CBIRC requirements.

fix)  The Tror-two capital bands ssued in Apnl 2019 have a fonor of 10 years, with a fired coupan rate of 4.3%
payable annually, The Bank has an oplan to redesn part or all of the bonds at face valwe on 10 Aprif 2024
if 1pecified redermption conditions as stipulated in the offering documents were met, subject to reguistory
aporeval, if the Bank dhd Aot exercis this aotion, the coupan rate of the bonds woald mvmain a8 4 3% per
annum from 1 Aprdl 2024 onweards. These Tier-nwo capiral bonds have the write-down feature of @ Fier-
twor caprtal instrument and they are gualified o Trer-tvo Capvtal Instruments i accordance wath the CERC
[T L e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continued)
{1} The carrying value of the Group's bonds issued are as follows: {Continued)

b The Tier-two caovtad bonds soed m March 20018 have a tenor of 15 years, with a foed coupon e of
4.53%payable annually. The Bank has an option fo redeem part or aif of the bonds ar face valve on T8
Mareh 2029 f specifed redemption conditions as stipulsted i the affering decuments were mel, subect o
regulaiony approval i the Rank did not exercice this opan, the coupon rate of the boands would remain ar
#.53% per amnurn from 19 March 2029 orwards. These Tier-tweo capia! bonds have the wnine-down fealure
af a Ter-two capital instrumant, and they are guaiified as Trer-twe Capitad instrumants in aocordiance with
the CHIRC meguairerments.

(e} The Trer-two caputal bonds ssved in Apedl 2019 have a tenor of 15 years, with a fived coupon rate of 4.63%
payable annually, The Bank has an option o redeem par or all of the bonds ar face value on 10 Aprd 2029
if specifed redemption conditions as stipulated in the offering documents were met, sublect fo reguiatony
approval, i the Bank oid nor exercise this opiion, the oupon @he of the boands would remain ar 4.63%
per annum from 11 Aprll 2029 onwards These Tier-hwo capital bonds have the wite-gdobwn feature of a
Tar-two capdial instrument, and they ae gualified as Tier-two Capital tnstruments in accordance with the
CAAC requirements

fwi}  The medium ferm notes MTNST) were ssved by the Domestic and Overseas Operatons of the Group and
are meatived at amortized codt. The face valie details of medium ferm potes fsued were as follbws

Af af 31 Dacamber J015

Cowpan rates [ %)

Maturity dates ranging from

Finef rade AT AT Mareh 2021 ta August 2021 4745

Fonesed sandie WD MTIs August 2020 to January 2021 218252

Floatiur rate HED BTN September 2020 ta 1 manths Hibars T0bps
Feptember 2027

Foeg rate LEE0Y MTNE Seprember 2020 ta 2.50-3.88 2,089
Feptember 2027

Flaating rate LSO AT Febrwary 2020 to 7 months Libor: 58 2.6
November 2023 to Bibps

Fotal 35,458

Fined rate RAEE MTNS Abgust 2019 fo March 2021 3848 EETL

Fiaed rate EUR AT Maniuary 2089 - 7ad

Fiwed rate HED MTNS March 2019 fo danuary 021 218252 1489

Flaating rate HKD MThs Septomber 2020 -l KD MIBOR 250

pit .70

Fived rate U0 MTIS Januay 2019 fo 1.88-3.88 15620
September 2021

Floatimg riate LISD ATHS March 2015 fo J-maith U50 LEOR 18512
MNovember 2003 pis 040 to 0.80

Total 41,0709
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{Amourits i millions of Renminks, ke olhsosise vated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
30 DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED (Continuad)
{1} The carrying value of the Group’s bonds Bsuved are as follows: (Continued)

fonie)  The CVY green bonds msued in June 2019 have a fenor of 3 peavs, with a fived coupon rate 3.68%, payable
annualfy,

i) The fived rate Financial bonds sed by ARC Financial Assers fvestment Ca, Lid in September 2019 have 4
tenor off 3 pears, with a feed coupan rate of 3.3%, payalle annually,

() The fived rate Financial bonds Ssued by ABC Finanoal Assats investment Co. Lid in Sentember 20719 have a
tenor of § years, with a feed coupon rate of 3 4%, payabile anoally

fewi)  [he fixed rate Capiad replenishrment debt issued by ABC Life Insprance wan March 2018 have 3 tenor of 10
yoars, with a fised coupon rafe of 5.55%, pavable annually. ABC Life Insurance has an aption fo redeam aff
of the bonds at face value on 4 March 2023 i ABC Life fnsurance oo not exercise this option, the coupon
rate af the bonds woulkd increase o 6.55% per annum from 5 March 2023 onveavds

{2} As at 31 December 2019, the ceriificates of deposit were issued by the Overseas Operations of the
Group and wede measured at amonized cost. The terms of the certificates of deposil ranged from one
manth 1o teven years, with interest rates rangang from -0.23% to 3.66%. As at 31 December 2018,
the terms of the centificazes of deposit ranged from two monihs to seven years with Interest rates
ranging from 0% 10 4.60% per annum.

{3} Other debt securithes ssuad by the Group and bank

) As ar 3] December 2019, the commercial papers were (ssued by the Owverseas Operations of
the Group and were measured af amorfized cost, The ferms of the commencial papers ramged
from three months fo one year, with inferest rates ranging from -0.22% to 2.85%. As al 31
Decomber 2018, the terms of the commercial papers ranged fram twe month (o one year, with
interast rates rangrng from 0% o 3.22% per annum.,

i} As at 31 Deceymbser 2019, the interbank cerliffcate of deposit were msued by the Bank's Head
Office. The term f the interbank certificate of deposil ranged from one month o one yaar,
with inlerest rates ranging from 2.7% fo 3.24%. As at 31 December 2018, the terms of the
interbank certificates of deposit ranged from three months to one year, with inferest rales
ranging from 3.20% to 4.40% per annum,

31 OTHER LIABILITIES

As at 31 December
2019 F -
Clearing and sattlement 105,682 53.578

Insurance llabilities 73,588 68,351
Imcoane taxes payable 59,286 48,2438
Staff costs payable {1 50,471 45,285
Prowision ) 30,558 25,883
Lease liabilities 10,280 HA
VAT and other taxes payable 8,541 7.568
Dormant accounts 4,579 4,249
Amount payable to the MOF 561 1.567
Imterest payable 114 238
Others 72,003 62 509
Total 415.753 318,566

240 @emrenn
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 OTHER LIABILITIES (Continuea)

(1) Staff costs payable

As at 31 December
2099 2018
1] 43,130 39,698

shart-term employee benefits

Definad contribution benefits {i) 5,208 2,704
Early retirement berelits {hla 2,133 2,883
Total 50,471 45,285

(i) Short-term employee benefits

2019
1 lanuary Increase Decrease 31 December
subsidies fak 29,559 79,835 (73,047) Nz
Hiewusansg fLins fa} 186 8,524 (8,528) 184
Social imsurance ncluding: {a) 255 5,450 15.373) 332
= Medical insurance 235 4,902 (4,826) n
— Matormity mturance 13 407 {407) 13
— Ermployment irpury insurance 7 141 {140) 8
Labor union fees anc staff
ehucalion expanhes 65.206 3,534 [2,691) 7.049
_Dthecs 34n 2464 (8,739 4218
Total 30,698 106,807 {103,375) 43,130
Lalanies, bonuses,
allowance and subsidies {d) L 75,976 {73,248) 29,559
Housng funds lak 157 B 328 (8,299} 186
Social insurande ncluding; {ak 171 5371 (5,287) 155
— Medical insurance 159 4,829 {4,753) 135
= Maternity mdurance T 381 (375} 13
— Employment ingury insurance 5 161 {159} 7
Labor union faes and statf
EduCalicn expentes 3344 3,365 {2,503) B, 200
Dthers 3.353 12,469 112,370} 3452
Total 35804 105,509 1101,705) 39,608

fa)  Sadanes, bonuser, allowwsnce and subsdbed, housing funds and socal inswrance ane imely distrbuted
and pad in aceordance with the relevant v and regulabions and the Graup’s policy.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)
(1) Staff costs payable (Continued)}

(i) Defined contribution benefits

EDINETOOOO
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oOoOooodn

1019
1 lanuary Increase Dacraase 31 Decamber
Baic pensians 518 10,825 {10,891) 452
Unemploymeant insurance £ 349 (346) 34
Annuity Scharma 2,155 6,225 (3,658) 4,722
Taotal 2,704 17,399 [14,895) 5,208

518

527 11,808 111.817)

Batic pansions

Lnemployment insurance 2 ELE] (320} 3
Arinity Scheme i 5,721 (3,573 2158
Total 566 17,848 {15710) 2,704

The defined contribution benefits are timely distributed and paid in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations and the Group's policy.
{iii) Early retirement benefits

1019

31 December
2,133

Dacreasa

811}

Intrease

61

1 lanuary

1,883

Early retirement berelits

Early retirement berpfits 3.762 257 {1,136} 1 ER3

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations vare as follows

As at 31 December
2019 2013
3.00%

Discount rate 2.80%
Annual average medical expense growth rate B.00% B.00%
Annual subsidies growth rate B.0O% B.00%
Mormal retirement age
— Male 6O &0
— Female 55 55

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are hated on the China Life Ensurance
Maortality Table (year 2010-2013) (published historical statistics in Chinal

Any difference arising from the actual result or changes in assumptions may affect the amaount
of expensa recognized in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
(Amaunts in milkorm of Renminbi, whies olbensne stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
31 OTHER LIABILITIES (Comtinued)
{2) Pravision

As at 31 December

2079

Loan commitments and financial

guarantes cantracts {1l 252113 20,523
Litigation provishon 4,450 4,438
Others : B55 922
Total 30,558 25,883

(i} Analyzed by movements in loss allowance for loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts

Stage | Stage i Stage (Il
12m ECL ~Lifetime ECL

31 December 2018 17,797 2,006 720 20,523
Transier:

stage | transfer 1o stage il {1.072) 1,072 - -

stage Il transfer 1o stage i - {319) 319 -

stage Il ransfer 1o stage | 13 {13) - -
Increass fa) 14,751 - - 14751
Remeasurement {118} (78) 16 [166)
Decrease ia) (8,537) {628) (7200 {9.895)
31 Decembar 2019 21,836 2,032 345 25,213

1 lanuary 2018 17,204 1,519 175 18,898

Transfer:
stage | transfer 1o stage 0l (1,209) 1,200 - -
stage Il transfer to stage Nl - (728) 728 -
stage Il wransfer 1o stage | 21 {21} - -
InCreass [E1] 9,373 1.013 - 10,386
Remeasurerment (313} 54 &) {268)
Decrease {al (7.279) {1,040) [174) {8,493}
31 December 2018 VE el 2,006 120 20,523

fa}  The rrpect of ks sllweance drven by new lpan commitments and financal guaraniee confracts
signed W 2019 and 2018 ix discioted a3 “Increase”, The impact of loss alowance driven by
withdrawals, advances or expiration of loan commifments ard financial guarantee contracts
2019 and 2018 are disclowsd as “Decregse”, The changes of oor sllowance Tor loan commitments
and financial guarantee confracts are marly deven by the met increase in the exposure of joan
cormimitments and financial prarantes confracts
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 3019
{Amaurits in milliors of Renminks, unless obenass saled)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
32 ORDINARY SHARES

31 December 2019
Number

of shares Nominal
{millions) value

Domestic listed A shares, par valus

RIE .00 por share 319.244 319,244
Overseas |sied H shanes, par value

RMEB1.00 per share 30,739 30,739
Total 349,963 349,983

Domestic listed A shares, par value

RME1.00 por share 319244 319,244
Ohverseas [sted H shares, par value

RMB1.00 per share 30,739 30,739
Total 349,983 349,983

{1} A shares refer 1o the ardinary shares ted in the Mainland China. They are allered and traded in AME. H thares
tedier 1o the ordinasy shares 1sted in Hong Kang. Their par vadue i denominatod in BMB when they s initially
alfered and are currently traded in HKD.

2y The Bank had receved the Approval on Frivate Placerment ol Agncultural Bank af Ching Limated on & shanes {Yin
Beo lian Approval No. [2018] 248) from CBMRC and the Appioval Regarding the Private Flacement of Agricultural
Bank ol China Limited (Zheng lan Approval No. [2018] 936) frem the Chins Securitied Regulatory Commissian,
which apprewed the Bank's private placemnent of A-thane cedinary shases In June 2018, the Bark isued 2519
billlon A shares 10 specilic mvestons with issuance price of RMBI.27 per share. The gross carrying amount of
proceeds from the fund-raltng was RMB100 billlon. The net procesds from the fund-rasing after deducing
Iesuance cost and related Taxes was RMBO9.97 billion, of which RMB25,19 billion was recorded in share capital
and AMBET4.7E billion was recorded in capital reserve. The lock-up perod for the shares subseribed will last for
thiee or froe years respeciivedy,

Prieewatarhouweloopers Zhong Tian LLP Ras vesdied the fedesaid non-public offenng and miued the capital
verificatian repart PrcewaterhouseCoopeds Zhong Tian Yan D (2018) Mo 0411 for the abave shares issued

{3} Asat 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Bank's A Shares and H Shares were not subject 1o lack-up
restrictson, except for the 2519 billian erdinary shares issued theough a private placement in June 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year erded 31 Decembss 2009

[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

[ | laburity dats Converso

&% per anrm for She At 5 yeans Mo mauntydite  hio conveneon

abier Ruanes, and nepriced durieyy iha year
ey 5 veun i stated Below

Paafiranatn shares 5.5% e i for the fiik 5 pn i i} 0 4000 MNomaturtydsts W oonveron

~inrd rasche™ aar muange, and nepriced during the
sy 5 v a6 Lhaed Below

Liscited] Tier § Captal Bonds 4.39% per s Jor e it S yean 10 B30 BS000 MNomaturiycel o converson

Mg 19 et Bance, and et ey the wear
iy 5 yeans s shated bvlow

Uscitec] Tiew | Captal Borsls  2.20% por anum dov e first 5 ymars 1m0 30 35000 Nomatursica Mo ComeMTon

e Her nante, and et dharing the yer
iy 5 vt i 1ted Buekow

{11 The Bank was authorized to issue 800 million preference shares of RMB1D0 each, pursuant to
the approval by its ordinary equity holders and relevant regulatory authorities.

The first tranche of 400 milllon preference shares was Bsued at par in November 2014, The camrying
amount, net of direct issuance expenses. was RME3%,944 million as at 31 December 2019, The first
tranche of preference shares bears a dividend rate of 6% per annum; dividends are non-cumulative
and where payable, is paid annually, for the first five years from issuance. The dividend rate will be
re-priced every five years thereafier with reference to the fve-year PRC treasury bonds yield plus a
fixed premium of 2.20%. The first five-year dividend period expired from 1 November 2019, During
the second dividend penod beginning from 5 November 2019, the base rate and fixed premium is
3.03% and 2.29%, respectively, and the coupon rate is 5.32%. The dividend is paid annually.

The second tranche of 400 million preference shares was issued at par in March 2015, The carrying
amount, net of direct issuance expenses, was RMB30.955 million as at 31 December 2019, The
second franche of preference shares bears 3 dividend rate of 55% per annum; dividends are
non-cumulative and where payable, is paid annually, for the first five years from issuance. The
dividend rate will be re-priced avery five years thereafter with reference 1o the five-year PRC treasury
bonds yield plus a fixed premium of 2.24%, The first five-year dividend period expired from & March
2020. During the second dividend persod beginning from 11 March 2020, the Dase rate and fixed
prémium is 2 60% and 2 24%, respeclively, and the coupon rate is 4. 84% The dividend is paid
annually,

There were no changes in the carmying amounts of the preference shares since issuance

As authorized by the ordinary equity holders in the annual general meeting, the Board of Directors
has the sole discretion (o declare and distribute dividends on preference shares. The Bank shall not
distribule any dividends Lo i1s ordinary equity hodders befare it declares such dividends to preference
shareholders for the relevant period. The distribution of preference shares dividend is at the Bank's
discretion and is non-cumulative. Preference shareholders are not entitled fo participate in the
distribution of retzined profits except for the dividends stated abowve.

The Bank has a redemption opiion when specified conditions as stipulated in the offenng documents
are met, subject to regulatory approval, whereas preference shareholders have no right to require the
Bank to redeem the prefereru;i.l shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{amourits n millioes of Benminks, unles olheosise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Upon liquidation, the claims of preference sharehalders have priarity over ordinary equity holders
an the residual assets of the Bank, bul are subordinated 1o those of depositors, general creditors,
Tier-two Capital Instruments holders or any other subordinated debt hodders with equivalent nights.

Upon pccurrence of the triggering evenis as stipulated in paragraph 2{3) of the Guidance of the
China Banking Regulatory Commission on Commercial Banks' |nnovation on Capital fnstrurments
{CBRC Mo, 56 [20120 and subject to regulatory approval, preference shares shall be mandatorily
caonverted into ordinary A shares of the Bank at the conversion price agreed, partially or entirely.
The initial conversion price of the preference shares issued by the Bank was RME2 43 per share. The
conversion price of the preference shares will be adjusted where certain evenis occur including bonus
msues, rights issue, capitalizaton of reserves and newy issuances of ordinary shares, subject o lerms
and formulas provided for n the offering documents, to maintain the relative interests betwesn
preference shareholders ane ordinary equity holders. In June 2018, the Bank ksued 25.19 billlon
ordinary A shares to specfic imvestors, Uipon completion of the private placement ol ordimary shares
by the Bank, the mandatory conversion price of the prefersnce shares issued by the Bank wall be
adjusted from RMEZ2.43 per share to RMBEZ 46 per share,

These preference shares are classified as equity instruments, and presenied as equity in the
consolidated staternent of financial pesition, and are qualified a3 Additional Tier-one Capatal
irstruments in accordance with the CBIRC reguinsmants.

{2) With the authorization of the annual general meeling and the approval from regulatory
autharitics, the Bank was granted to issue undated additional tier 1 capital bonds (" Perpetual
bonds™ or the “Bonds”) of an amount no more than RME120 billion,

The Bank issued undated additional ter 1 capital bonds (first tranche) with the amount of RMBSS
ballion in the national interbank band market on 16 August 2019, and the ssuance was completed
on 20 August 2019, The denomination of the Bonds is RMB 100 each. The Bonds don't have any step-
up mechanism or any other incentive to redeem. The distribution rate of the Bopds will be adjusted
at defined intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a ficed spreadwith a distribution rate
adjustmant period every 5 years and the annual coupon rate for the first five years is 4 39%,

The Bank ksued undated additional tier | capital bonds (second tranche) with the amount of
RME35 billion in the national interbank bond market on 3 September 2019, and the issuance was
complated on 5 September 2019, The denomination of the Bonds s RMBI0D each. The Bonds don't
hawe any step-up mechanism of any other incentive to redeem.The distribution rate of the Bonds
weill be adjusted at definid intervals and determined by a benchmark rate plus a fixed spread, with a
distribution rate adjustment pericd every 5 years,and the annual coupon rate for thee fiest five years is
4. 20%,

The carrying amount net of direct issuance expenses. was RMEB119.987million as at 31 December
2018,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
33 OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS (Continuad)

The duration of the Perpetual bonds is the same as the continuing operation of the Bank. Subject to
the satisfaction of the redemption conditions and hawving obtained the prior approval of the CBIRC,
the Bank may redeem the Bonds in whaole or in part on each distribution payment date from the fifth
anniversary gnce the iseuance date of the Bonds. Upan the accurrence of a tngger event for write-
downs, with the approval of the CBIRC and withcut the need for the consent of the holders of the
Boneds, the Bank has the right to write down all of part of the aggregate amount of the Bands then
Bswed and outstanding. The claims of the helders of the Bonds will be subordunated to the clams of
depositors, general creditors and subordinated indebtedness that ranks senior 1o the Bonds, and shall
rank i pronty to all clases of shares hald by shareholders and will rank pan passu with the claims
ini respect of any other additional tler 1 capital instrumenis of the Bank that rank par| passu with the
Bonuds,

The distributions on the Perpetual bonds are pon-cumulative. The Bank shall have the right 1o cancel
distnbutions .on the Bonds in whole or in part and any such cancellation shall not constitute an
event of default. The Bank may at |18 decretion usa the procesds from the cancalled distribution
to meet other obligations as they fall due. Butl the Bank shall not make any distributlion to ordinary
sharaholdders until its decision to resume the distribution payments in whole to the holders of the
Bands.

The net procesds from the mauance of the Perpetual bonds after deducting affering related expanes
were used 10 replenish the Bank's additional tier 1 capital,

34 CAPITAL RESERVE
The capital resarve represents the premium related to ordinary shares ssued by the Bank in 2010 and
private placement of orcbnary shares to the specific siakehoiders in 2018, Shate premium was recorded In

the capital reserve after deducting direct msue expenses, which consisted primarily of underwriting fees and
profestional fees.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

35 INVESTMENT REVALUATION RESERVE

2019
Gross carrying
amount Tax effect Net effect
31 December 2018 24,996 {5,004} 18,992
Fair value changes on debt instrumants at fair
value through other comprehensive income:
— Amount of gains recagnized directly in other
comprefiensive ncome 14,921 (4,195) 10,725
— Amgunt removed from other comprehensive
incoma and recogrized in profit or loss (425) 107 (318)
Fair value changes on equity instruments at fair
value thraugh ather comprehansive inoome:
— Amount ol gains recognized directly in other
comprenensive income 383 (98) 2B5
31 December 2019 39,875 {10,191} 29,684

31 December 2017 (26,135}

6,445

" 119,690)

Change in accounting policy 13,003 (3.112) 9,891
1 Jlanuary 2018 (13,132} 3,333 (6,7949)
Fair value changes on debt instruments at fair

value through other comprehensive inoome:
— Amouni of gains recognized directly in other
comprehensive moome |2 {9,358) 28,854
— Amount removed from ather comprehensive
income and recognized in profit or loss {280) 70 (210}
Fair value changes on equaty instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income:
— Amount of gains recognized directly in other
comprehensive mcome 195 {49} 147
31 December 2018 24,995 {6004 18,992
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
36 SURPLUS RESERVE
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Under PRC Law, the Bank is required to transfer 10% of its net profit determined under the PRC GAAP
to a non-distributable statutory surplus reserve. Appropriation to the statutory surplus reserve may cease
when the balance of this reserve has reached 50% of share capital, Pursuant to the resolution of the
Board of Directors” Meating held on 20 March 2020, an appropriation of 10% of the profit for the cument
year, determined under the generally accepted accounting principles of the FRC, to the statutory surplus
reserve, in the amount of AMB20,623 million {2018: RMB19,B67million) was approved. In addition,
certain subsidianes and overseas branches alio appiopriated surplus reserves In accordance with local

requirements.

Subject to the approval of the ordinary equity holders, the statutory surplus reserves can be used for
replenishing accumulated losses or increasing the Bank's ordinary share capital. The statutory surplus
resgrves amount used 1o increase the ordinary share capital is limited 1o a level whera the balance of the

statutary surplus reserves after such capitalization = not less than 25% of the ordinary share capital

37 GEMERAL RESERVE

Pursuant to Caujin [2012] No. 20 “Requirements on impaisment Allowance for Financial Institutions™ (the
"Reguirement”) lssued by the MOF, effective 1 July 2012, In addition to impairment allowance, the Bank
establishes a general reserve within ordinary equity holders” equity through the appropration of profit to
address unidentified potential impairment risks. The general resarve shiould not be less than 1.5% of the
aggregate amount of risk assets as defined by the Reguirement. The general reserve includes regulatory

reserve appropriated by the Bank's overssas branches pursuant to local regulatory requiremants

Pursuant to relevant PRC regulatory requirements, some domestic subsidiaries of the Bank are required to

appropriate cortain amounts of their net profit as general reseres.

Curing the year ended 31 Decernber 2019, the Group transferred RMB3T.B26 million (2018: RMBB. 440
million) to the General Reserve pursuant to the regulatory requirements in the PRC and overseas
jurisdictions, Of this amount, RME37,626 milbon (2018: RMEB 380 milllon) related to the appropriation
proposed for the year ended 31 December 2018 which was approwed in the annual general meeting held

on 30 May 2019,

On 30 March 2020, the Board of Directors’ meeting approved & proposal of appropriation of RMB34,211
million o general mserve. Such appropriation will be recognized in the Group's consolidated financial

statements after approval by ordinary equity hotders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
38 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consclidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the
following balances with an original maturity of three months or less:

Az at 31 Decembar

2019 ;
Cash 92,928 48,089
Balance with central banks 401,632 230,450
Dreposits with banks and other financial insttutions 105,571 78,352
Placements wath and |cans to banks and

other financial institutions 150,495 221,495
Financial assets hald under resale agreemeants 703,955 350,055
Total 1,454,581 578,441

39 OPERATING SEGMENTS

Operating segments are identified on the basss of intermal management reparts with respect to the
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Board and relevant management commiltees,
which constitute the chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of allocating resources to segments
and assassing their performance. The Group's chief operating decision makers review three different sets
of financial mfarmation bazed on (i) geographical lacations, (il business activities and (iil) County Area and
Urban Area banking business.

The measurement of segment assets and habilities, as well as segment revenue, expense and resulis is
based on the Group's accounting pobcies. There is na difference between the accounting polices used
n the preparation of the consolidated financial staterments and thote used in preparing the operating
segment information.

Transactions between segments ara condutted under normal commercial terms and conditions. Internal
charges and transter pricing are determinad with reference 1o market rates and have been reflected in the
performance of each segment.

Segment revenue, results, assets and Habilities include items directly attnbutable to a segment as well as
thosa that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Geographical operating segments
The details of the geographical operating segments ane as follows:

Head Office

Yangize River Delta: Shangha, Jlangsu, Zhejang, Ningbo

Poarl River Delta: Guangdang, Shenzhen, Fujian, Xiamen

Bohai Rim: Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Shandang, Gingdac

Central China: shanai, Hubei, Henan, Hunan, Jiangxi, Hainan, Anbui

Westarn Ching: Chongaing, Sichuan, Guizheu, Yunnan, Shaanxl, Gansy, Qinghal,
Mingeia, Xinjlang (including Xinjiang Bingtuan), Tibet, Inner Morgolia,
Guangxd

Mostheastern China: Lisoning, Hellongpang, Min, Dalian

Overseas and Others: Subsidianes and overseas branches
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Cantinuad)

Geographical operating segments (Conbinued)
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1) Non-twrent assets inclrde property and egugement, imeslment propertie, righteofuse diats, lang we raphis,
intangible assels and other long-ferm amsefs
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continuad)

Geographical operating segments (Continued)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Business operating segments
The details of the business operating segments are as follows:

Corporate banking

Thie cofporate banking segment provides financial prodects and services o corporations, government
agencies and financial institutions. The range of products and services includes corporate loans and
advances, trade finance, deposit products, corporate wealth management services and other types of
corporate intermediary services.

Personal banking

The personal banking segment provides financial products: and senices 1o individual customers. The
range of products and sapvces includes personal loans, depotit products, card business, personal weealth
management services and other types of personal intermediary services,

Treasury operations

The Group's treasury operatons conduct money marke! and repurchace transactions, debl mstrumeants
invesiments, precious metal transactions and derivative transactions for its own accounts or on behalf of
custormers.

Others

Others comprise compenenis of the Group that are not attributable to any of the above segmenis, along

with certain assets, liabilities, income o expenses of the Head Office that could not be allocated on a
reasanable basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 Decermnber 2019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Business operating segments (Continued)

Treaswry Consolidated

aperations Ditkary tatal

For the year ended 31 Decembar 2019

External imerest income 340,666 127 AZ6 185,030 5,019 858,141
External intanest experise {113,620} (1B7,154) (E8,658) {2,708} {372,270)
Iner-segenint imterest (eapenselincoms {3, 204) 159 498 (156, 294) - -
Med indeieil mooine 223 842 198,770 0,008 31 AREETY
P and commison noome 53,640 a7 .467 152 1752 mw3en
Fee and N ST (1,652} [8,376) ) (55} {16,085)
Net fee and commission inoome 45,983 39.0M1 150 1,597 B6,916
Net trading gain - - 11,570 7497 19,067
Net geeviless) on financial imvestments a4 {445) 4438 1376 5793
b op 0 Entome 1,465 1,547 2,918 24,762 30,603
Ciperating inoome FEAM L) 139,963 19014 38,554 59,350
Cipetaling enrnss (7a.492) {97,241) (24.792) (27,571} (224,096)
Credit impaimment losses (86,174) {49,699) {1.407) (1,225) {138,805)
Irpaitrint lasies on other aiets [131} 53 (4) [EL] 1118}
Oparating prafic 110,922 93,076 a1 9,622 266,531
Share ol results of associates and jeirt ventures - - - 15 45
Prafit belore tax. 110931 93,076 SL11 9,567 66,57
Incore Lax experne {53,652}
Prafit for the yoar 212,924
Deprecution and amanization indudes

n operaling expendss 4,340 10,541 ER 364 18711
Capatal expendiine 5.042 14,667 5,134 LE37 17,480
At 31 December 2019
Segment asiets 1711316 5,626,636 10,771,924 447,460 24,757,336
Including; kreestment in assonates and

joint entures - - - 6,672 6ET2

Urallosated smets 120,952
Tctal assats 24,878,288
Sog liabildies (8,026,735}  (11.880,991)  (2.701.678) (249,313)  (21.858,720)
Unaliocabed 1abilities {59,806)
Tetal liatulities 21,918,525)
Laan ¢commitrmesits and financial

glaaranies conlracks 1,565,535 B44,403 - - 2,410,028
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year erded 31 Decembss 2009

[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continuad)

Business operating segments (Continued)

Far the year ended 31 Decernber 2018

External imerest incare 314,900 191,918 272,128 5767 784,724
Exteenal Imerest expense (92 866 (153,206 {58.006) 2 866} 1306, 964)
Inter-segment imleresl Incomedsapense) B 6ES 158 924 1167, 589 - -
Nt interest incame 730,700 197,636 45,573 2.501 477,760
Fes and commissian income 47,828 41,7197 13 1,887 91,525
Fee and commivsion expense {5, 730) 7 608 [E}] {3} (13, 3R4)
Ned fee and commissicn income 42,058 34,189 10 1844 TH.N41
Mt trading gain - - 11,283 4,766 16,062
Met fossiigain an financial investmants (63 451 T.874 1684 8,460
Net gain an derecagnition of financial assets
measured at amartized cost - - £ - 0
Other operating ncomedespanse) 1,923 1,515 {824 18751 212,097
Oiperating indome 274 658 1338010 55,628 28,470 502,557
Dperating expenaes {75,164} {93,304) 23,481} (22,04} 213,963
Credit imgarment lowes (106,947] [26,542) 3,253 4] 136,647
Impament hosses on other asets (224} (25) [Fi] - [251)
Oparating prodit 82,373 113,530 38 B52 £.551 151,606
_ Share of resalls of asonates and jornt venlees = = = @2 (22
Profid behare ta 33,323 113,930 34, f57 f.5249 251,674
IPComse A expere (49,043
Frofit for the year 202,631
Depreciation and amartization included
in aperating exparces 3742 9422 3,063 187 16,412
_Capiial expenditure 3480 10,068 35582 - 17,100
At 31 Datember 2018
SEMment assets 7,034,426 5,051,815 10,086,328 323599 22496,178
Irchidiesg; brvestment in adsociates and
joind ventures - - - 4,005 4,005
Unaflocabed avsets 113,203
Total assets 12 619 471
Segmont habilies (7, B29,685) (10,800,316 ROT7.681) AT7.615) (20,885,207
Unafiocated habilises (49, 387)
Testal liabilities. 120,934 GR4)
Loan commitrents and fnancal
Guamntee coalracts 1,338, 7e6 ET2.03% - - 2,010,805
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{amourits n millioes of Benminks, unles olheosise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
County Area and Urban Area segments

The Group's operating segments organized by County Area and Urban Area banking business are set out as
follows:

County Area banking business

The Group’s County Area banking business provides a broad range of financial products and services 1o
customers in designaied County Area, through its operating branches in the counties of county-level cities
throughout the FRC. The products and services mainly comprise loans, deposits, bank cards, and other
types of intermediary sernvices.

Urban Area banking business

The Groups Urban Area banking business comprises all banking activities outside of the Courty Araa
banking business, overseas branches and subsidearies,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019
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IV MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Urban Area banking business (Continued)

Urban &rea

banking Consalidated
busingss  Eliminations tatal

Far the year ended 31 December 2019

External intsrest income 199,258 659,883 - 859,141
External interest expense {116,959) (255,311) - (372,270)
Irter-sagment inberest incomedapense) 115,125 {115,125 - -
Met interest income 197,424 250,447 - 456,871
Fee and commission incoma 40,907 62,104 - 103,011
Fee and commission expensa (6,315) (5,770 - (16,085)
Met fee and commission income 34,542 52,334 - 86,926
et tradng gain 632 18,435 - 19,067
Met Dessbigain on Enanclal nvestments {5} 5,798 - 5,792
Othes operating incoms 4,087 26,596 - 30,693
Operating Income 236,740 392,670 - 620,350
Oparating experces {90,654) {133.442) - {224,096)
Credit impaimmant losses (48.228) {90.377) - {138,605)
Impairment losses on other assets (88) 132) - {118)
Dperating profit 97,772 188,759 - 266,531
Share of results of associates and joint ventures - 45 - 45
Profit befors tax 97,772 166,804 - 286,576
ir€ome tax expense (53.652)
Prolit for the year 212,924
Depeociation and amortization included

in operating expenies 7.533 11,178 - 18,111
Capatal expandiure ! 6,716 20,764 = 27,450

At 31 December 2019
Seqment asats B599.905 16,172,309 (114,878) 24,757,336

Inclugng: investment in asseciates and paint ventures = 6,672 = 6,672
Linaliocated assets o 1mes
Total assels 24,378,288
Segmient fiabelties (B,08S,616)  (14,887,982) 114,878 (22,358,720)
UnaFocated Eabiities (59,806)
Tatal habilities 22,918,526
Lown oommitments and firancial guarantes coniracts 729,244 1,680,784 - 2,410,038
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

County Area and Urban Area segments (Continued)

For year 31 December 2018
External interest income 175,438 609,266 - TE4, 724
External interest expense [93,233) (213, 741) - (306 964)
Inter-segment interest incomedexpense) 111,567 (111,567 & =
Het interest income 193,782 183978 - 477,760
Fes-and commission incoma 35221 56,303 = 81,525
Fer and commission experse 4817} {8,567 - 113, 384)
Met fee and commission income 30,405 47,736 - T3.141
Met trading (lossiigain (267) 16,336 - 16,069
Het gain on financial investmenis 5 8455 - 8460
Heet gain on devecognition of financial assets

measured 3t amostized cost - 30 - 30
Other operating income 4.515 17.582 - 2.097
Operating income 128.440 7417 - 602,557
Qperatng expenses (865401 27.421) - (213.963)
Credit impairment hosses {72,661} (63 ABG) = {136,647}
Impairment losses on other assets {am 4 E 251}
Operatng profit 689,100 1E2 556 - 151,656
Share of results of associates and joint ventures = Lri] == 2z
Prolit bedore tax 69,100 182 574 & 151,674
Inomse 13 g e [43.043)
Profit for the year 102,631
Depreciation and amortaation included

ift Dperalig sxpenses 7494 8919 - 16413

_Capital expenddure 413 12,977 = 17,100

At 31 Decembaer 2018
Segment asets BO67.3T4 14537570 (1oB76E) 22486178
Including: Imvestment m assoclates and paint ventunes - 4,005 - 4,005
Unallorated assets 113,293
Tatal assets 22,609,471
Segment liabdities [7,553.604) (13,440,459 108,766 (20,685 297)
Unallocated Rabiilities [49,367)
Total liabittios ko
Lean commitments and fimancial guarantes contracts 569,419 1,441,386 - 2,010,805
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
(Amaunts in milkorm of Renminbi, whies olbensne stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(1) The Group and the MOF

As at 31 December 2019, the MOF directly owned 35.29% (31 December 2018: 39.21%) of the
ordinary shares of the Bank.

The MOF & a Chinese government ministry, pimanly responsible for managing. state fiscal revenue
and expenditure, and establishing and enforcing taxation policies. |1 reports to the Chinese State
Council,

On 25 Seplember 2019, the Ministry of Finance transferred its 3.92% of the Bank's common stock
equity to the Mational Council for Social Security Fund of the People’s Republic of China for a one-
tirme transfer. As of December 31, 2019, the Bank's shares held by the National Council for Social
Security Fund of the Pecple's Republic of China accounted for 5.95% of the Bank"s total share capital.
The daily business transactions between the Group and the Social Secunty Fund Fund Council are
conducted on narmal commerclal terms.

The Group had the foflowing balances and transactions with the MOF in its ordinary course of
business under normal cammerc:al terms

As at 31 Decembear

2019

Assels
Treasury bonds and special governiment bond 643,568 655,946
Receivable from the MOF 307,723 298,734
Other accounts recoivablo 1.004 9,444
Liabilities
Amount payable 1o the MOF 520 1,487
Customer deporiifs 7.772 13,250
Other liabdlity

— redemption of treasury bonds on behalf of the MOF 4 41

— amount payable to the MOF 41 80

Year ended 31 December
2019 2018
Interest income 30,195 38,180

Interest expense (253) 0]
Fee and commission income 1,552 3,096
Gainfless) on financial investmient 162 174

Intarest rate ranges for transactions with the MOF during the year are as foliows:

Yaear ended 31 Decambear

019

Treasury bonds and recervable from the MOF 0.13-5.00 2.25-9.00
Customer deposits 0.00-3.41  0.00-3.37

The Group's redemplion cormmitment fod treasury bonds underwiiting & disclosed in Note IV
42 Contingent Liabilities and Commitmaents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 3019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(2) The Group and Huijin

Central  Huijin Investment Ltd, {“Huipn®} 1= a wholly-cwned subsidiary of China Investment
Corporation Limited, which s incorparated in Beljing, PRC. Huijin was established 1o hold certain
equity Interests in state-owned financial nstiutions as authorized by the Chinese State Council
and does not engage in ather commercial activities. Huijin exercises its legal rights and assumes
abligations related to the Bank oa behall of the PAC Government.

As at 31 December 2019, Huipn directly owned 40.03% (31 December 2018: 40.03%) of the
ardinary shares of the Bank.

Transactions with Hulfin

The Group had the following balances and transactions with Huigin in 15 ordinary course of business
under noemal commercial tarms:

A at 31 Decamibar

2019 2018
Asspts
Loans and advances to customers 22,024 28,034
Financial investment 68,455 37.438
Liaksilities
Db to CUSTOmPS 1,862 12.063

Year ended 31 December

2019 2018
Interest income 2,314 2,295
Interest expense (27a) (225)
Gainflcss) on financial investment 65 19

Interast rate ranges far transactions with Huipin during the year are as fallows:

Year ended 31 December

2019
Leans and advances 1o customers 3.92-4.35 3.52-435
Fimancial investment 2.84-5.15 2.75-5.15
Principal guatantead wealth managament products
issued by the Bank - 4.37=-4.41
Due to customers 1.38=-1.25 1.38-2.18
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
{2) The Group and Huifin (Continuesd)
Transactions with companies under Huijin
Huijin has equity interests in certain other banks and financial institutions under the direction af the
Chinese government. The Group enters inla transactions with these banks and financial institutions in

the ordinary course of business under nofmal commerclal terms. Corresponding balances with these
banks and financial imstitutions were as follows:

Assels

Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 63,637 31.990
Placerments with and leans to banks and

other financial Institutions 61,520 51,809

Denvative financiad assets 4,360 3,866
Financial assats held under resale agreaments 94,067 24205
Loans and advances to customens 53,117 59,338
Financial investrment T68,E00 785,135
Liabilities

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 157,640 91,880
Placements from banks and other financlal mstitutions 94,756 83,786
Denvative financial liabilities 5,518 71.920
Financial aszots sold under repurchase agrecments 1,309 360
Due to customers 1,428 -
Equity
Other equity instruments 2,000 2,000

Off-balance sheet items
Non-pnncipal guaranieed wealth management
products ssued by the Bank 5,002 1.556

{3) The Group and other government related entities

Other than declcaed above, a signifcant portion of the Gioup's banking transattions are entened inlo
with government authaorities, agencies, affikates and other State controlied enfities. These transactions
are enfered into under normal commercial terms and conditions and mainly include provision of
credit and guarantee, deposits, foreign exchange transactions, derivative bransactions, agency
services, underwriting and distribution of bonds Ssued by government agencies, purchase, sales and
redemplion of imvestmant securities isswad by govermment agencies.

Managament considers thal these transactions are activities conducted in the ordinary cowse of
busingss, and that tha dealings of the Group have not been significantly or unauly affected by the
fact that the Group and thase entities are government related The Group has alio established pricing
policies. for products and services and such pricing polickes do not depend on whether or not the
custamers ane government authorites, agencies, atfiliates and other State comrelled entithes.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continuad)
(4) The Bank and its subsidfiaries

The Bank had the following balances and tramsactions with its subsidianes in its codinary course of

business under normal commercial terms:

As at 31 December

2019

EDINETOOOO
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Assels
Placermnents with and loans to banks and

other financial institutions B8,805 29,761
Financial asets held pnder resale agroemants - 3,008
Financial investment 2,709 2.370
Loans and advances 1o customers - 1,022
Other assats 21 m
Liakmlities
Depaosits from banks and other financial institutions 10,895 4,039
Placernents from banks and other financial institutions - 63
Duie 10 CUStOmMNS 950 3,208
Other llabiities 1,040 Fdl
Off-balance sheet items
Letters of guarantee issued and guaraniees 12,557 16,267

interest income

Fee and commission income
Other operating Income
Interest expense

Dperating expensa

Othar Operating experse

Fee and ComIMIsSion axpense

As at 31 December

2019

Placerments with and loamns to banks and
other financial institutions

Financial assets held under resale agreements

Fimancial investment

Loans and advances 1o customess

Deposits from banks and other financial institutions

Placerments from banks and other financial institutions

Due to customers

0.50-5.25

4,00
4-38-4.70
3.92-4.79
0.01-3.20

0.30-3.85
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019
(A mounts in milkorm of Renminkl, whies otbeosse stated)]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Conmtinued)
{5) The Group and its associates and joint venture

Tre Growp had the following balances and ransactions with 15 associates and jolnt venture |n s
ordinary course of business under normal commercial tarma:

As at 31 December

1019

Placements with and loans to hanks and
other financial institutions - 157

Year ended 31 December

2019 2018

Placarnants with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions - a0

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, transaction profit or loss between the
Group and Its associates and joint ventures was nol mmricam.

{6) Key management personnel

Key management personned are those persons who have the authodily and fespondability 16 plan,
direct and control the activities of the Group. Key management personnel of the Group, their close
redatives, and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled, or significantly influenced by either the
key managament personnel of the Group or their close relatives, are considered as related parties
of the Group. The Group enters into banking transactions with abowve related partles in the normal
course of business. As at 31 December 2019, the balance of loans and advances 1o the above redated
partios s RMBS.54 hillion (31 Decamber 2018: RMBE. 24 milkon).

W extended loan and credit card business to related natural persons (as defired in the Adminstrative
Measures on Information Disclosure of Listed Companies issued by the CSRC) in 2019, As at 31
December 2019, the balance of such hoan amounted to RMET 49 milllon. (31 December 2018:
RMEBSE.54 millian),

The remunafation of Directors and other members of key management duting the years was as
fallgns:

Year ended 31 December

2019 201

Salaries, bonuses and staff wellare 9.97 11.54

According to the regulations of the relevant authorities o the PRC, the key management personnel's
final emoduments for the year ended 31 December 2010 have not been finalized. Managemant of the
Group balieves that the difference between the final emalumonts and that disclosed above will not
hawe significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The fingl compensation
will be disclosed in a separate announcement when determined.

The compensation of key management persannel for the year ended 31 December 018 was not
decided at the time when the Group’s 2018 consolidated financial siatements were released and
the amount of remureration of Directors and other members of key management recognized in
the comsolidated income statement for the year of 2018 was RMEB.S6 million Supplementary
announcement on final compensation of RME11.54 million was released by the Bank on 30 August
2019. The camparative figures for the year of 2018 have been restated accordingly
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For the year ended 31 Decernber 3019
{Amaurits in milliors of Renminks, unless obenass saled)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
{7) The Group and the Annuity Scheme

The Group had the following balances and transactions with the Annusty Scheme set up by the Bank
apart from the abligation for defined contnbution to the Annuty Schemea:

As at 31 December
2019 2018
Deposits from Annuity Scheme 3,196 3,197

Year ended 31 Decembaer
2019 2018
Interest expancse {157} {36}

Imterest rate range for transactions with the Annuity Scheme during the year s as follows:

Yoar ended 31 Decambar

Depasits from Annuity Schemea 0.00-5.00 0.00-5.00

(8) Proportion of transactions with major related parties
Related party transactions with subsidiarkes have been offset in the process of preparing consolidated
financial statements. When calcuiating the proportion of rofated party fransactions, related party
fransactions do nof include radated party transactions with subsidiasies.

Transaction Balance

As at 31 Decembor 2019
Related

party
trantactions Propartion

Deposits from banks and other

financial mstitutions 63,637 26.99% 31,990 29.15%
Placernenis with and loans to banks

and other financial institutians 61,520 11.76% 51,809 9.39%
Darivative financial assets 4,360 17.48% 3,866 10.46%
Financial assets held under

resale agregments 94,067 13.28% 24,205 6.52%
Loans and advances 1o customers 75,141 0.59% 87,372 0.76%
Fimancial investment 1,788,546 24,09% 1,777,253 25.81%
Othar assat 1,004 0.92% 9,444 13.10%
Depeosits from banks and other

financial institutions 157,640 10.48% 91,880 B.17%
Placernents from banks and

other financial Institutions 94,756 29.12% 83,786 25.74%
Derivative financial liabilities 5518 18.67% 7,920 12.93%
Financial assets sold under

repurchase agreements 1,309 2.46% 360 0.23%
Due 1o customens 11,072 0.06% 25,313 0.15%
Other liabdities 565 0.21% 1,608 0.84%
Cthar equity instruments 2,000 1.00% 2,000 2.50%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(8) Proportion of transactions with major refated parties (Continued!

Transaction amount

2019
Ralated

party

trantactions Proportion

Interest income 32,509 3.78% 40,475

Interest expanse (523) 0.14% {635} 0.21%
GainAloss) on financial Investment 217 1.43% 193 1.08%
Fee and commission income 1,552 1.51% 3,006 338%

41 STRUCTURED ENTITIES
{1} Consolidated structured entities

Principal guarantesd WMPs sponsored and managed by the Group

Principal guarantead WhPs sponsored and managed by the Group represent products to which the
Group has guaranteed the mvestor's principal investmant, regardiess of thair actual performance
Ivestments made by these products and the corresponding liabilities to the investors of these
progucts are presented im financial assets and financial labilities designated at fair value thiough
profit or loss, respectively.

Other consolidated structured entities

Other structured entities consolidated by the Group include certain trust mvestment plans, asset
management plans, funds and securitization preducts ssued, managed and'or imeested by the Group,
The Group controls these entities because the Group has power over, is exposed to, or has nghts to,
vanable returns from its involvement with these entities and has the ability to use its power over these
entities to affect the amount of the Group's returns,

As at 31 December 2019, the total assets of these consolidated structured entities were RMBJS4.477
million {31 Decemnber 2018: RMB363, 248 million),

(2) Uneconsolidated structured entities
Unconsalidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group

Unconsclidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group mainly include non-principal
guaranteed WhiPs, which are not subject to any guarantee by the Group of the principal invested or
Interest to be paid. The WhAPs invest in @ range of primarily fixed-rate assets, maost typically money
market instruments, debt securities and loan assets. As the manager of these WiMPs, the Group
invests, on behalf of the investors in these WMPs, the funds raised in the assets as described in the
mvestment plan related to each WHP and receives fee and commission income.

As at 31 December 2019, the tolal assets mvested by these WhPs amounted to RMEBI 960,701
millicn (31 December 2018: AMBI, 706,487 million) and the corresponding outstanding WIPs issued
by the Group amounted to RBAB1,727.3500 million (31 December 2018; RMB1,408,263 million).
During the year ended 31 Decermber 2019, the Group’s interest in thess WMPs included net fee
and commission income of RMBA,971 mallion (2018: RMBA, 784 million) and nel interest mcome of
AMBS74 milllion (2018: RMB1 664 millian), which related 1o placements and repo transactions entered
mio by the Group with these WMP Vehicles.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
41 STRUCTURED ENTITIES (Continued)
2) Unconselidated structured entities (Continued)
Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group (Confinued)

The Group enters (nto placements and repo transactions at market interest rates with these WPs.
The average balance during 2019 and the outstanding balance as at 31 December 2019 of these
transactions were RMB15.810 million iweighted average outstanding penod of 5.29 days) (2018
RMBS0,893 milfion and 9.20 days) and RMB116,900 milbon (31 December 2018: RMB142,914
millicn), respectively. The Group was under no obligation to enter into these transactions. As at 31
December 2019 and 31 Dacember 2018, the outstanding balance of these transacthons was presented
in placerments with and loans to banks and other financial institutions and financial assets held under
resale agreements, which represented the Group's maximum exposure to the WMPs.

There wene no contractual liquidity arangements, guarantees of other commitments among. or
betwesn the Graup, WMPS oF any third parties that cou'd increase the level of the Group's fisk
from WhiPs disclosed above duning the period ended 31 December 2019 and 31 Decernber 2018,
The Group was not required to absorb any losses incurred by WMPs. During the pericd ended 31
December 2019 and 2018, no lass was ncurred by these WMPs relating 1o the Group's Interests in
thesa WP, and the WhiPs did not experience difficulty in financing their activities

in addition, other uncorsolicated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group Included
funds and asset management plans. &s at 31 December 2019, the total assets of these products
amounted to AMB4TE, 330 milllon(31 Decamber 2018: RMBEE4,653 millonk Durirg the yoor snded
31 December 2019, the Group's interast in these products mainly included net fee and commission
incoms of RMBTSY milion(2018: RMB1,093 millon).

Qther unconsolida ted structured entities held by the Group

The Group invests in other unconsolidated structured entities which are sponsored and managed
by other entities for investment return, and records trading gains or bosses and infenest income
therafrom. These unconsclidated structumed entithes primasily nclude asset management plans, funds
and asset-backed securities. As ot 31 Decermber 2019, the related carrping amount of investments
and the maxmum exposure by the Group to these other uncomsolidated structured enfities was
AMB73.521 milllon (21 December 2018: RMBBD,563 milion), Included under the financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. other debt instrument imestments at fair value throwgh ciher
comprenhensive income and debt instrument Investments at amorized cosl categories in the
consolidated statement of financlal position as at 31 December 2019, The information on the size of
1otal assets of these unconsolidated structured entites was nol readly available in the public domain,

42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Legal proceedings and others

The Bank and. its subsidiories are involved a3 defendants in cortain lowsuits arising fram thear permal
business operations. As at 31 December 2019, provisions of RAMBA,490 million were made by the Group
{31 December A018: RMVIBA, 438 milon) based on court judgments or advice of legal counsel, and included
in Note IV 31 Other Liabilities. Management of the Group believes that the final result of these lawsuits will
not have a matenal impact on the financial position or operations of the Group.

On 28 Septembar 2016, the Bank and its Mew York Branch entered into a Cease and Desist Ordar with
the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System of the United States On 4 November 20016, the
Bank and its New York Branch entered into a Consent Order with Mew York State Depanment of Financial
Services (the *Depariment®) and paid a civil monetary penalty to the Department accordingly. As at 31
December 2016, the above-mentioned civil monetary penalty was paid and reflected in the consolidated
financial statemants for the vear ended 31 Decembar 2016,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued)
Legal proceedings and others (Continued)

The Bank and its Mew York Branch are taking affirmative actions to respond to other requirements
under thess two orders. A% at the date of these financial statements, the Group is of the view that i1 s
not practicable fo estimate whether there will be amy furthes regulatory actions undertaken by the US
regulators as this will be dependent upon the regulatory conclusion after the Bank's and its New York
Branch's actions towards the other requirements under theie two osders. As such, the Group did not
accrue any further provision over this matter as at 31 December 2019,

Capltal commitments

As at 31 December
2019 018
Contracted bul not provided for 2,606 2934

In addition, as at 31 December 2019 and 31 Decernber 2018, the Group did not have outstanding equity
irvestment commitments Tor its investes companies.

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

As at 31 December

2019
Loan commitments.

— With an original maturity of less than 1 year 149,602 178,564
— With an criginal maturity of 1 year or above 1 907,194 728,218
Subtonal 1,056,796 906,782
Bank acceptance 339,829 242 489
Credit card commitments Bd6, 134 L38,870
Guaraniee and letiers of guarantee 216,229 191,250
Letters of credil 151,040 131,414
Total 2,410,028 2,010,805

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts reprasent crdit cards and general oedit facility limits
granted 1o customers. These general cradit facilities may be drawn in the form of loans or through the
issuance of letters of credit, guarantee and letters of guarantee or bank acceptance.

Credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments

Cradit risk waighted amount for credit commitments: represents the counterparty oredit risk assocated
with credit commitments and Is calculated in accordance with the *Capital Rules Tor Commercial Banks
{Provisionall”™ ssued by the CBRC which was effective 1 January 2013 and is dependent on, among other
factars, the creditwerthiness of counterpartes and maturity charactonstics of aach type of contract. As
at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2018, credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments was
measured under the internal Ratings — Based approach,

As at 31 December
2019 2018
Credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments 1,063,652 950,593
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continusd)
Collateral
Assets pledged

At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amounts of assets pladged as collateral under repurchase
agreements are as follows:

As at 31 December
2019

163,937

Debt securitis 55,738
Hills 1978 -
Total 57716 163,937

As at 31 December 2019, the financial assets sold under repurchase agreements by the Group (disclosed in
Mote v 28) as al 31 December 2019 amounted to AMBS53.197 million (31 December 2018: RMB157,101
millian}, Repurchase agreements are due within 12 manths from the effective dates of these agreements

Financial assets sold under repurchase agresments included cestain iransactions under which, title of the
pledged secunties has been transferred to counterparties. These transactions have been disclosed in Note IV
43 Trarsferred Financial Assets.

In addition, debt sacurities and deposits with banks and other financial institutions pledged in accordance
with regulatory requirermnents or as collateral for derivative transactions and borrowings from central banks
eic by the Group as.at 31 December 2019 amounted 1o RMBEE3, 190 millon in total (31 Decemnber 2018:
AMEBB2E,551 million).

Collateral accepted

The Group recenved debt securities and bills as collateral in connection with the securities lending
transactions and the purchase of assets under resale agreements (Note IV 16 Financial Assats Held Under
Aesale Agreemenish The Group did not hold any collateral that can be resold or re-pledged as at 31
Decemnber 2019 and 31 December 2018,

Redemption commitment for treasury bonds

Thie Group & entiusted by the MOF 1o underwiile certain Weasury bonds. The investors of these tisasuiy
bonds have a right to redeem the bonds at par at any time prior %o maturity and the Group is committed
to honos such redemption requests. The redemption price is calculated as the par value of the bond plus
unpaid intarest In accordance with the terms of the related early redemption arrangement.

As al 31 December 2019, the nominal value of treasury bonds the Group was obligated to redeem prioe to
maturity was RMBT5, 735 milllon (31 December 2018: RMB70,702 million). The original maturities of these
bonds vary from 3 to 5 years. Management of the Group expects the amount of redemption before the
matiurity dates of these bonds will not be materal.

The MOF will not provice funding for the early redemption of these bonds on a back-to-back basis, but will
settle the principal and Intefest upon Matunty.

Commitment on security underwriting

As a1 31 December 20019 and 31 December 2018, the Group did not have uniulfilled commitment in
fpspect of seciites underwnting business.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMEMNTS (Continued)

43

Operating lease commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group, as a lessee, had commitments for future minmum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases, which include short-term lease and leases of low-value assets not
recognized as lease llabilities, and ako include the signed contracts not yet executed, amounting to RABIT
millian,

TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group enters info transactions in the normal course of business whereby It transfers recognized
financial axsels to third parties or to strectured entities, In some cases these transfers may give rise o full
or partial derecognition of the financial assets concemned. In other cases where the transferred assets do
not quakly for derecognition as the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these assets, the
Group continued to recognize the transferred assets.

Securitization transactions

The Group enfers into securitization transactions by which it ransfers leans to struciured entities which
issue assel-backed secunties 1o invesiors, The Group assessed, among other faciors, whether or not to
derecognize the transferred aswelc by evaluating the extant to which it me1ains the ks and rewards of the
assets and whether it has relinguished its control over these assets based an the criteria as detailed in Note i
8.7 and Nate [l 6.

As at 31 Decernber 2019, the total amount of wnexpired asset-backed securities included acoumulative
loans tranafecred by the Group before imparment allowance was RMEST, 016 million (31 December 2018:
RME3T, 378 million). AMEB11.855 millian of this balance (31 December 2018: RMB16,699 millon) was In
respect of non-performing loans and the Group concluded that these loans transferred were guabified
for full derecognition. The remaining balance of RMBSS, 161 million {31 December 2018 AMB20.679
million) was in respect of parferming leans and the Group concluded that it had continuing Invalvernent in
these assets. As at 31 December 2019, the Group continued to recognize assets of RMBG,923 milion {31
Decermber 2018: RMB2, 367 millicn) under loans and advances to customers. The Group ako recognized
ather assets and other labilites of the same amount arising Trom such continuing involvement.

Transfer of non-performing loans

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group transferred non-performing oans through disposal
to third parties or lssulng asset-back securities, with gross loan balance of RMEB3Z 414milion (2018
RME2E,151 million], of which RMB3,338 million (2018 RMB4,376 millkon) was through isswng asset-back
securities disclosed above, The Group carmed aut an assessment Based on the criteria as detailed in Note 1l
8.7 and Note il 6 and concluded that these transferred assets qualified for full derecognition.

Fimancial assefs sold under repurchase agreements

The Group did not derecognize financial assets transferred as collateral in conmection with repurchase
agreemenis. As at 31 December 2019, of these collateral pledged disclosed in Note IV 42 Contingent
Liabdlies and Commitments — Collateral, RMEBZ, 955 millbon (31 December 2018: KMBA5,250 million)
represented debt securities whareby hagal title has been transferred to counterparties.

Securities lending transactions

For debt securities lent 1o counterparties under securities lending agreements, the counterparties are
allowed to sell or repledge these securities in the absence of default by the Group. but have an obligation
to retum the securities at the maturity of the contract. The Group has determined that it retains
substantally all the risks and rewards of these securities and therefore has not derecognized them. As at 31
Decamber 2019, the carrying amount of debt securities lent to counterparties was RMB12, 268 million {31
December 2018; AMB43, 342 millson).
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Overview

The Group's primary risk management chjective s to maintain nsk within acceptable parameters to meet
the requirements of regulators, depositors and other stakeholders, as well a5 1o mawmize return for
imvestors within an acceplable level of risk.

Thee Group has designed sk management policies, which address, amang other things, the astablishment
of risk limits and contrals 1o identify, analyze, monitor and report risks. Relevant and timely information
used to conduct these risk management activities i provided through information systerms maintained
by the Group and is intended to address the Group's information needs in this area. The Group regularly
reviews ils risk management policies and systems o address changes in markels, products and emesging
best practices.

The most sigrificant types of rsk (o whach the Group is exposed are credit nsk, market risk and liguidiy
risk, Market risk includas foreign exchange rate fsk, intarest rate risk and other price risk,

Risk management framework

The Board of Directoss is responsibie for establishing the overall risk appetite of the Group and reviewing
and approving i1s risk management abjectives and stratagies.

Within this framework, the Group's semor management has overall responsibility for managing all aspects
af risk, including implementing risk management stratogies, initlatives and cradit policies and approving
internal rules, measures and procedures related o risk management, The Risk Management Department of
the Group implements procedures for managing the significant risks 10 which the Group is exposed

44.1 Credit risk
Credit risk management

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may anse from a customed oF counterparty's fallure
o meet its obligations when due, Credit risk can abo arise from operational failures that result in
an unauthorized of mappropriate advance, commitment or investment. The Group's magor Cradit
risks arise from loans and receivables, treasury operations and off-balance sheet related credit risk
EAPOSUTES,

The Group’s credit sk management and governance structure comprise the Board of Directors and
its Risk Management Committee, Senicr Management and its Risk Management Committee, Credit
Approval Committes and Awsol Disposal Committee, a5 well a5 the Ritk Management Department,
Cradit Managemant Departrment, Credil Approval Department and related front-affice customer
depariments. The Group's credit risk management funclion operates under a centralized management
and auihorization under a range of specilied lmals.

The Group performs standardized credit management procedures, including credit due  diligence
and proposal submission, credit underwriting review, loan disbursement, posi-lending menitoring
and non-performing fcan management, The Group enhances its credit risk management by strictly
complying with its cradit management procedures, strengthening customer investigation, credit
rating, lending approval and post-lending monitoring measures; enhancing risk mitkgation effect of
loans through collaterad; accelerating disposal process of non-performing loans: and . continuously
upgrading its credit management system.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Credit risk management (Continued)

The Growp writes off financial assets, i whiole or in part, when It has exhaussed all practical recovery
efforts and has concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, Indicators that there is
no measonable expectation of recovery include ceasing enforcement activity and where the Group's
recovery method s foreclossng on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there i no
reasonable expectation of recovenng in full,

The Grouwp may write-off financial assets that are still subject to enforcernent activity. The outstanding
contraciual amounts of such assets written off during 12 months ended 31 December 2019 was
RMES1,398 milllon (Durng the year ended 31 December 2013:RMBES.593 millicn). The Group
still seeks 1o recover amounts if i legally owned in full, but which have been written off due to no
reasonable expectation of full recavery.

During the reporting pencd, the Group continued to improve the comprehensive risk: management
system to ensure effective risk management. The Group strengthened credit nsk management in key
areas and asset quality contrad, with steady declines in both the balance and ratio of non-perfarming
lmans.

Apart from the credit risk exposures on credit-related assets, the credit msk ansing from treasury
operalion business is managed by selecting counterparties with acceplable eradit quality, balancing
credit risk and return, referencing 1o both internal and external credit rating information whare
available and by apphing appropriate limits subpect to different level of managemant authority, and
by tmely reviewing and adjusiing those [imits in credit system. In additien, the Group also provide
Ioan: commatrments and financial guarantee serices to customers which may reguire the Group to
make payrments on behalf of customers ugon their failute ta perform under the terms of the related
contract. Risks arising from loan commitments and financial guarantess are simiar to those assoclated
with |oans and advances. These transactions are, thesefore, subject to the same risk management
policles and procadutes,

Measurement of ECL

The Group apphes the ECL model to calculate loss allowances for its debt financial instruments carned
at amortized cost and FVOC), a5 well as loan commitments and fimancial guaranioe coniracts.

Methods apphied by the Group in assessing the expected creait losses of its financial assels mclude nsk
parameters and the decounted cash fow [“DCF") mode, Rotall ceedit assets and Stage | and Stage ||

wholasale credit assets are assessed using risk parameters, while Stage I wholesale credit assets are
subject to the discounted cash fiow method.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continusd)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)

272 @ rurean

Measurement of ECL (Continuwed)

The Group assesses ECL in light of forward-locking information and uses complex models and
assumptions in calculating the expectad credit bosses. These models and assumptions relate to the
future macroeconomic conditions and the borrowers” ereditworthiness (e.g., the likelihood of default
by customers and the correspanding losses). In assessing the expected credit risks in accordance with
accounting standards, the Group uses the judgments, assumptions and estimates where appropriate,
Inchuding:

— Segrmentation of portfolio sharing similar credit rsk charactenistics {or the purpeses of measuting
ECL

—  Parameters fof measuing ECL

= Criteria for significant increase in credit risk and default definition

—  Definition of credit-impaired financial asset

—  Fonward-looking informathon

—  Estimatian af future cash flovwes Tor Stage Il whalesale eredit assots

Segmontation of portfolio sharing similar crecit risk charactenstics for the purposes of maaswing ECL

For measwrement of ECL, segmemation of portfolo s based on saimilar credit rsk charactenstics. The
Group chassihed cliente into whalesale clients and retail chents bawed on the nature of debtors. In
parforming the portfolio segmentation of whelesale cradit assets, the Group considers the type of
borrower, industry, loan wsage, and secunty type, When padfomming the partfolio segmentation for
rotall credin assets, the Group considers laan product type and security type 10 ensure the reliabllity of
its credit risk segmentation.

Parameters for measuring ECL

According 1o whether there is a significant increase i credit risk and whether a financial asset has
become credit-impabed, the Group recognizes an impairment allowance based on the expecied credit
less for the next 12 monihs or the entire lifetime of the financial asset. The key parameters of ECL
moasuremaent include probability of default (PD), loss given: default (LGD) and exposure at default
(EAD), The Group establishes its PD model, LGD model and EAD model based on the internal rating
based system as currently used for its risk management purpose, n accordance with the requirements
of IFRS 9, in lghi of guantiiative analyzes of historkcal stalistics (such as counterparly ratings,
guarantes methods and collateral types, repayment methods, etc.) and forward-looking infarmation,
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Measurement of ECL (Continued)
Parameters for measuring ECL (Continued)
The pararmeters are defined as follows:

— PD represants the likelhood of ‘a borrower defaulting on its financial oiligation, either over the
next 12 months (12m PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation;

— EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the time of default, over the
next 12 months (12m EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD).

— LGD represents the Group's expectation of the exent of lost on defaulted exposure. LGD
is expressed as a perceniage loss per wnit of exposdre at the time of defaull (EAD). LGD is
calculated on a 12-month or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss
expected to be made I the default eccurs in the next 12 months and Lifetime LGD is the
percentage of loss expected 1o be made if default cccurs over the remaining expected lifetime of
the loan.

Criterta for segnificant increase in credit risk (“5/CR*) and defawlt definfhon

The Group assesses whether or not the credit risk of the relevant financial mstruments has increased
significantly since the imitial recogrition at each balance sheet date. For the purpose of staging
assessment of {is financial assets, the Group thoroughly considers various reasonable and supportable
information that may meflect whether or not there has been a significant change in their credit risk,
including forward-loaking information. Key factors considered Include regulatory and operating
environments, imternal and external credit ratings, sofvency, wability as a going concern, terms of
loan contracts, repayment behavices, among others. Based on the single financial instrument or the
commbination of financial Instruments with similar charactarstics of credit sk, the Group Compares the
risk of default of financial instruments on the balance sheet date with that on the initial recognition
date in order 10 figure out the changes of defautt risk in the expected |ifetime of financial instrurments.
The definition of default refers 1o the faillure to pay the debt as agreed in the contraci, or other
viclations of the debt contract and have a significant impact on the normal delbt repayment.

Thee Group sets quantitative and gualitative criteria o determine whether or not the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly since 115 initial recognition. The criteria include changes
i the barrower's FD, changes in its ceadit risk classification and other factors, In partieular, wihen
the credit risk classification changes from Nermal upon imitial recognition 1o Specal Mention, there
has bean SICK. When the borrewer's PD nises to a certain level, there has been a significant increase
i credit risk. Criteria io determne sigmificant Increase i credit rak varied based on the original PD
upon initial recognition. If the borrower’s oniginal PD s relatively low {for example, lower than 3%,
there has been a sgnificant increase in crodit risk when the credit grade falls at least & notches. If the
eriteria o determine significant increase i eredit risk moves up or down by one notch, the impact on
the allowance of expecied credit loss on 31 December 2019 is [ess than 5%. According 1o IFRS 9, 3
backstop is applied and the financial Instrument considered to have experienced a significant increase
i credit nisk if the borrower s mare than 30 days past due on its contractuzl payments.

Tre Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial Instrument has not increased significantly since
initkal recognitian il the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reparting

date, The Group recognizes a financial instrument as having low credit risk if its internal rating is
consistent with the globally accepted definition for low credit risk,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continusd)
44.1 Credit risk (Continuad)
Measurement of ECL (Continuwed)
Definition of credit-impairad financial asset
The critetia adapled by the Group o determine whether a cradit impalrment occurs unded IFRS 9 |5
consistent with the internal credit risk management objectives for refevant financial instrument, in
addition 1o consideration of quantitative and qualitative indicators, In assassing whether a borrower
has become credit-impalred, the Group mainly considers the following factors:
—  Significant financial difficulty of the ssuer or the borrower;

= A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event in relation to interest or prncipal
payment;

= The lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reascns relating 10 the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted 1o the borrower a concession that the lender would not
olnerwise consider;

— It i becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankrupicy or other financial
reciganisation;

— The duappearance of an active market far that financial asset because of financial difficulties;

— The purchase or origination of a financlal asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred
credit losses,

—  The borrower is overdue for mare than 90 days in any principal, advances, inferest or invastment
in bonds due to the Group.

The credit impairment of a financial assel may be caused by the combined effect of multiple events
rather than any single ducrate event.
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Measurement of ECL (Continued)
Forward-loaking infarmation

The assessment of whather of not thers has been & sgnificant increase in credit fsk and the
calculation of ECL both imeolve forward-lcoking information. Throuwgh the analysis of histoncal
data, the Group idertifies the key economic indicators that affect the credit risk and ECL of vanous
portfolio, Key economic indicators include Gross Domestic Product (GDFP), Consumer Price Index (CPT)
and Industrial Added Value, etc

The impact of these economic indicators on the PDs and the LGDs varkes from one portiollo to
another. The Group comprehensively considers internal and external data, expert forecasts and
statistical analyzes to determine the corralation between thess economic indcators and the PDs and
LGDs. The Group assess and forecasts these economic indicators at least on an annual basis, caloulatles
the best estimates for the future, and regulardy reviews and assesses results. Among the forecasted
economic indicators, the core economic indicator GOP of base scenario aligned with the forecast data
of the national research imstitutian.

Based on statistical analyzes and expert fudgements, the Group delermines the weightings of multiple
scenarnos and the comesponding macro-economic forecast under each scenario. The macro-economic
farecasts of core indicator under upside and downside szenaries deviate less than 10% of that under
base scenano, The weighting of base scenario B greater than the aggregated weightings of the rest
scemarios. The Group uses the weighted 12-manth ECL (Stage I) ar wesghted |ifetime ECL (Stage N and
Stage W) 1o measure relevant impalrment allowances. These weighted credit losses are calculated by
multiplying the expected credit foss under each scenario by the assigned scenanio weighting.

A sensithity analysis is performed on key economic indicators, economic scenarios and weightings
assigned wsed in forward-lcoking measuremant. YWhen the assigned weightings of upside scenario
and downside scenario change by 10% and the forecast of key economic Indicators change
accondingly, the mpact on the allowance of expected credit loss as of 31 December 2019 i less than
5%.

Estimation of future cash fiows for Stage If wholesaie crodit assels

Thee Group measures the ECL for stage il wholesale credit assets wsing DCF method. Under DCF
method, the loss allowance is calculated based on the estimation of future cash flows. At each
measurement date, the Group projects the future cash inflows of relevamt assols under different

scanarios 1o estimate the probability weighted cash flow of each future penod, The cash fiows are
discounted and aggregated 10 gel the present value of the assets’ future cash flows.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)
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Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other

credit enhancements

The mammurm exposure to credit nsk represents the credit sk exposure to the Group at the end of
each reporting penod, withaut taking ito account any collateral held or other credit enhancamants.
The exposune to credit risk at the end of each reporting period primarily arises from credit and
freasury operations; as well as off-balance sheet items such as loan commitments, credit card
commitments, bank acceptance, guarantee and letters of guarantee and letters of credit, as credit
risks arising from these items are similar 19 those associated with loans and receivables.

A summary of the maximum exposure 1o credit risk [s as follows:

Az at 31 Decembear

2019

2,707.008

Balances with central banks 2,606,967
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 235,742 109,728
Placernenis with and loans to banks and

other financial institutions 323,183 552,013
Derivative financial assets 24,944 36,544
Fimancial assets held under resale agreements 708,551 371,001
Loans and advances 1o customers i) 12,819,610 11,461,542
Financial investmants

Finamcial assets at fadr value throwgh profit or loss 693,758 591,787

[Debt instrument investments al amortized cost i} 4,946,741 4,503,698

Other debt instrument investmants at fair value

through other comprehensive income {iii} 1,671,746 1,735,802

Dther financial assets E1,809 58,902
subiotal 24,313,051 22,128,615
Lean commitments and financial guarantee contracts i) 2,384,815 1,990,282
Total 26,697 BE6 24,118,897
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
(Amaunts in milkorm of Renminbi, whies olbensne stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FIMAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuacd)
44.1 Credit risk (Continuad)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements (Continuad)

iy Maximum exposure to credit sk for loans and advances disclcsed in credit ek levels

The Group classified the credit risk levels of financial assets measured by ECL into “Low™
(crechil msk in good condition), "Medium® (incraased credit risk), and "High" (credit rskoin
sevare condition), based on the quality of assets. The credit risk level is used for the purpose of
the group's mitemal cedd risk management “Low™ refers to assets with good credil guality.
There is no swllicient reason to doubt that the atsets are not expected 1o fullill its contractual
obligation to repay or il there |s any other behaviors breaching the debt contracts that would
significantly impact the repayment of debl according to contract terms. “Mediom™ refers to
awats facing obwious negative factars impacting its repayment capacity, but Rot yet have nom-
repayment behaviors. “High™ refers 1o non-repayment according o the debt contract tenms, or
other behaviors breaching the debt contracts or having significant impact on the repayment of
debt according to contract terms.

Carporate loans and advances Az at 31 December 2019
Stage Il &

Stage | Stage N
12 ECL Lifetime ECL

Credit risk grade
L 7,483,007 22,214 7,505,221
bedium - 261,208 261,208
High - 155,430 155.490
Gross carrying amount 7.483,007 438,912 T.921.919%
Allowance for impairment loss {237,105) (163,829) (400,934}
Nl amaunt 7,245,902 275,083 7.520,985

Personal Loans and advances As at 31 December 2018
Stage Il &

Stage | Stage N Total
12m ECL  Lifetime ECL

Credit sk grade

Low 5.338,714 - 5,338,714
Medium - 37,153 37,153
High - 31,720 31,720
Gross carmyng amount 5338714 68,913 5,407 627
_Allowance for impairment loss (114.445)  (25.199)  (139.649)
Met amount 5,224,269 43,714 5,267,983
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuad)

44.1 Credit risk (Continued)
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Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements (Continued)

Mammum exposure to credit nsk for loans and advances disclosed o credit risk levels
{Continuad)

Len 6,751,757 40,876 6,792,633
hadium - 283,697 283,697
High - 154,182 159,782
Gross carmying amount 6,751,757 484,355 7.236,112
Allewance for impairment loss (183,685} (192.575) (376.261)
et amount 6,568,071 291,780 6,85%,851

Credit sk grade

Low 4,611,259 - 4,611,259
Medium - 35,785 35,785
_High - 30,220 30,220
Gross cammying amosint 4,611,259 66,005 4,677,264
Allewance for impairment loss (78.018) (24,864} (102 882}
Met amount 4,533 241 41,141 4,574,382

The above information on the maximum exposure to credit risk of loans and advances 1o
customers does nol include corresponding accured interests or lpans and advances 1o customers
measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019
(A mounts in milkorm of Renminkl, whies otbeosse stated)]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FIMAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuacd)
44.1 Credit risk (Continuad)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements (Continuad)

(i) Maximum expasure to credit sk for debt instrument imvestments at amortized cost disclosed in
credit risk levals

As at 21 December 2019

Stage || &
Stage 1 Stage N
1im ECL  Lifetimea ECL

Credit sk grade

Lenw 4,053,832 - 4,953,832

BMedium - 1,196 1,196

High - 1201 1.20
Gross cammying amount 4,953,832 2,397 4,956,229
Allowance for impairment joss (8.409) (1.079) (9.488)
Het amount 4,945,423 1,318 4,946,741

Credit rsk grade

Low 4 504,520 101 4,508,621

Mpdium - Qg 947

High - 2,322 2,322
Gross carrying amount 4,508,520 3,365 4,512 885
Allowance {or impalrment loss {6,691) {2,496} 19,187}
MWat amount 4,500 829 EbY 4,503,608

Annual Repon. 2019 279

4261492



EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 3019
{Amaurits in milliors of Renminks, unless obenass saled)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continuwed)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements (Continued)

{iliy  Mammum exposure 1o credil risk for other debt mstrument investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income disclosad in credit risk levels

As at 31 December 2019
Stage Il &

Stage | Stage 1)
12m ECL  Lifetime ECL

Credit risk grade

Len 1,671,525 - 1,671,525
Modium - - =
High - n in
Gross carrying amount 1,671,525 221 1,671,746

Credit rek grade

Lt 1,730,932 203 1.731.135
Med| - 4,580 4,580
High - 177 177
GI05s carrying amount 1,730,932 4,960 1,735,892

(v} Mawumum exposure to credit risk for loan commitments and financial guarantee confracts
is balamce after estimaled contingent Babilities Majority of loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts is in Stage | with credit risk grade as “Low”

fvi Asat 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, in its deposits with banks and other financal
Institutions, placements with and loans to banks and ather financial institutions, and financal
assels hedd under resale agreements, the Group had insignificant balances with “Medium® or
*High® credit risk grade and classified as Stage il or Stage il assets, and no default had occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr ended 31 December 2019
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuec)

44.1 Credit risk (Continuad)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements (Continuad)

(vi}y The Group has implemented specific policies anc credit enhancernent practices to mitigate credit
fisk expasuie 1o an acceplable level. The most typical practice is obtaining guarantes deposits,
collateral and guarantees, The amount ana type of acceptable collateral are determined through
the assessment of credit risk of bodrowers of counterparties. The Group implements guidelines
on the acceplability of specific classes of collateral and evaluation parameters,

The main types of collateral cbtained are as follows:

— Morigage loans to retal customess are generally collateralized by mortgages owver
residantial propertios;

= Other personal lending and corporate foans and advances are primanly coflateralized by
charges over land and properties or other assets of the borrowers; and

—  Financial assets held under resals agrepments transactions are primarily collateralzed by
debt sacurities and bills.

The Group monitors the market value of collateral periodically and requests for additional
collateral in accosdance with the underlying agreement when necessary,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advances to custamers (i)

The following tlables set outl the concentration of risk for loans and advances 1o customers by
geographical area and industry.

{1} The composition of loans and advances 1o customers by geographical area 15 analyzed as
fodows:

Az at 31 Decambar

2019

Amount i total

Corpodate loans and advances

Head Dffice 318,970 4.0 303,637 4.2
Yangtze Rver Delta 1,710,643 1.6 1,548,750 21.4
Pearl River Delta 9E0, 384 121 B42.577 1.6
Baohal Rim 1,198,828 15.2 1128923 15.6
Central China 1,125,021 4.2 1,017,666 4.
Western China 1,886,512 238 1,721,056 238
MNortheastern China 216,802 4.0 296,755 4.1
Owvarcaas and Othors 404,759 5.1 376,097 5.2
Subtotal 1.921,919 100.0 7,236,361 100.0
Personal koans and advances
Head Office 55 = 23 -
Yangtze River Delta 1,286,246 238 1,125425 241
Pearl River Delta 1,176,564 218 1,019,760 218
Bohal Rim B02,153 14.8 705,802 15.1
Central China 857,033 15.9 731,700 15.6
Western China 1,083,958 0.0 919,657 19.7
Mortheastern China 186,454 34 163,452 as
__Overseas and Others 15,154 03 11,393 0.2
Subitotal 5,407,627 100.0 4,677,264 100.0

Gross loans and advances
1o customers 13,329,545 11,913,625

it The befow mformation does nof mclude acorved infenests of loans and advarnions B0 CUEOmers.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuac}

44.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and adwances to customers (i) (Continued)

(2} The composition of loans and advances to customers by industry is analyzed as follows:

Corporate loans and advances
Transportation, logistics and

As at 31 December

2018

Amount

% of total

EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood

portal services 1,688,787 1.3 1410827 19.5
Banufacturing 1.291.327 16.3 1,255,497 17.3
Leasing and cornmercial servioes 1,047,843 13.2 923992 128
Froduction ard supply of power,

heat, gas and water 900,036 1.4 BE6R,. 758 12.0
Rl estate 704,973 8.9 619101 8.6
Water, emvironment and public

utilities managament 517448 6.5 438,208 6.1
Ratall and wholesale 386,064 4.9 385,639 53
Finance 623,570 1.9 600813 83
Construction 233,961 2.9 245,584 34
Mining 21201 2.7 201,750 2.8
Others 314,709 4.0 286,152 39
Subtotal 7.921.819 100.0 7,236 361 100.0

Persanal koans and advances
Ressdential mertgage 4,163,293 770 3,661,900 78.3
Personal business 264,980 4.9 216,588 46
Partonal consumpluon 181,234 i3 166,285 ER
Cradit cargs 475,001 8.8 380,720 B.1
Others 323,119 6.0 251,771 54
Subtotal 5,407,627 100.0 4,677,264 1000
Gross |aans and advances
10 Customers 13,329,546 11,913,625
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuad)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advances to customers (i} ({Continued)

{3) The composition of loans and advances to customers by contractual maturity and security type is
analyzed as follows:

31 December 2019

Less than 1ta 5 Over 5

1 year years yEars
Unsecured loans 1,274,211 T65.757 1,403,329 3,443,297
Guaranteed loans 693,480 430,558 733,377 1,856,415
Loans secured by collateral B&1,640 418,293 4,618,803 5898736
Pledged loans 657142 102480 1371476  2.131.098
Total 3485473 1,717,088 6,126,985 13,329,546

Unsecured boans 1,427,185 579,653 1,203,211 3210049

Guaranieed loans 576,797 362,033 428,125 1,365,955
Loans secured by collateral 791,952 399,413 4260910 5452275
Medged loans 626,118 90,126 1,168,102 1,884,346
Total 3,422,052 1431,225 7.060,348 11,913,625

(4) Past due loans

3 Decambar 2019

Up to 31-30 91-360 361 days Qvar

30 days days days 1o 3 years 3 yeans
Unsecured loans 5326 3416 7.957 4,206 1.287 22,192
Guarantesd loans 13,441 3,554 13,259 10,899 3,000 44,243

Loans secured by

collateral 28,893 14,514 25,747 25,865 8396 103,415
Pledged loans 1,733 241 2,687 6,817 1,665 13,143
Taotal 49,393 21,725 49,650 47.787 14,438 182,993

s days 3 yRaErns 3 yiar Total
Unsecured loans 11.624 2,912 7,030 445 16 12,727

Guaranteed loans 11.129 4,646 16,181 16,401 4, 060 52.417
Loans secured by

collateral 28,360 16,480 31,174 31,880 9,293 117,187
PFladged lbans 4,033 274 2,641 1,906 1,747 10,5601
Tatal 55.146 24 312 57,006 0,637 15816 207,932

Whan either loan principal or interest is past due by one day in any pericd, the whole loan &
classified as past due loan
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For the yedr ended 31 December 2019
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuacl)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and adwances to customers (i) (Continued)
{5} Credit quality of loans and advances to customers

Asg at 31 December 2019 and 31 Decernber 2018, the credit quality of loans and advances to
customers by stages is disclosed in Note IV 17,

{6} Modification of contraciual cash flows

A modification or re-negotistion of a contract between the Group and a counterparty may rasult
in'a change 1o the contractual cash flows without resulting in the derecognition of the financial
assats. Such restructuning actwities include extended payment ferm arrangements, repayment
schedile modifications and changes to the ntersst witlemeant method. The rsk of default of
such assets after modification Is assessed at the reporting date and compared with the risk under
the original terms at initial recognition, when the modification is not substantial and 5o does
nat result In derecognition ef the onginal asset. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset
i recalculated and the related gain or loss is recognized m profit and loss. The gross carnmying
amount of the financial asset is determined basad on the present value of the rensgatiated or
medified contraciual cash flows discounted ai the financlal asset’s original effective Interest rate.

The Graup monitors the subsequent performance of modified assets, The Group may determine
that the credit risk has significantly improved after modified, so that the assets are moved from
Stage 3 or Stage 2 1o Stage 1, and the impairment allowance is measured at an amount squal to
the 12-month ECL Instead of the letime ECL

In arder 1o collect loans as much as possible, the Group may renegotiste the terms of the
contract with borrowers because of deterioration in their financial position, or of the Inabibity 1o
meat their original repayment schadule. Such contract modifications include noll over of inan,
extension of non-payrment period o repayment pericd. Based on the management's judgmaent
of the borrowers' repayment possibility, the Group has formulated specific rescheduled loan
policy and practice, and reviewed the policy conlinuously. In most cases, medium and long-
term loans are considered to reschedule. Rescheduled loans should be reviewed after at least 6
manths of observation and reach the cormesponding stage classification criteria, Concassions are
given by the Group that would not otherwise be granted 1o these borrowers for economic or
legal reasons relating to thelr financial diffioulties. Reschedubed loans and advances ol the Group
a% at 31 December 2019 amounted to RMBST, 206 mdlion (31 December 2018: RMBS3,232
milllion),

During the period ended 31 December 2019, a5 a resuft of loan renegotiations, the Group
recognized ordinary shames upon renegotiation of RME2, 123 milkon {during the period ended 31
December 2018: RMB3,221 million). The loss asseciated with these loan renegotiations was not
significant.

(7} Assets foreclosed under credit enhancement arrangement

Such foreclosed assets are disclosed in Note IV 18.1(2) Other financial assets at fair value
theaugh profit or loss and Note IV 23 Other assets.
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Far the year ended 31 Decermnber 2019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.1 Credit risk (Continuad)

Debt instruments

Credit guality of debit instruments

(1) Analysis of the expected credit boss stages of debt instrument investments at amortized cost and
other debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive incame were disclosed in Note
IV18.2 and 18.3, respectvely.

(2) Debl instruments analyzed by credit rating
The Group adopts a credit rating approach to manage the credit risk of the debt securities
portfalio held. The carmying amounts of debt instruments investments at amortized cost and

olher debt nstrument mvestments a1 fair value through other comprehendive income. analyzed
by their credit rating as at the end of the reporting pericd are as follows.

As at 31 December 2013

Credit grade Low Madium High
Debt secunities ksued by
— Govemments 3,540,555 - - 3,540,555
— Public sector and
guasi-governments 1,562,706 - - 1,562,706
— Fimancial instituticns 784,479 - - TE4.479
— Corporates (i 294,375 - an 294,596
Special government bond 94,127 - - 94,127
Receivable from the MOF 307,723 - - 307.723
Others 32983 1184 154 34301
Total 6,616,948 1,164 375 6,618,487

— Govermments 3,045,869 - = 3,045869
— Pubbic sector and
quasi-governments 1,556,598 - - 1,555.598
— Fimancia nstitutions 848,336 - - 848,336
— Corporates (i 356,695 5492 177 362,164
Special government bond 93,358 - - 93,358
Receivable from the MOE 298,734 - - 298,734
Dihers 34 469 - B2 34 531
Total 6,234,059 5,292 239 5,239.590
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[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]
IV MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuacl)
44.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Credit quality of debl instruments {Continued)

{2} Debt indtruments analyzed by eredit rating (Continuwed)

) The ratings as a1 31 December 201% and 31 December 2018 were internal ratings oblained

from the Groun, financial assets at fair value through profit or Joss was not included In the
credit grade tabde as at 31 Decernber 2019 and 31 December 2018,

{iiy As at 31 December 2019, the ratings of super short-term commercial papers of the Greup

amounted 1o RMEB15.834 million (31 December 2018: RMB27,704 million) included in
cofpotate bords above are hated on issuer rating for thes credit rsk analysls.

44.2 Liquidity risk

Liqunchity risk is the risk that funds will not be available to meet habilities as they faf due. This may
arwe from cash flows or maturity mismatches of assats and liabilites.

The Group’s Assets and Liabilities Management Department manages its liquidity risk through:

Dptimizing asset and liability structure;

Maintaining stability of deposit base;

Making projections of future cash flows. and evaluating the appropriate liquid asset position;
Marntaimng an eifcent internal funds transfer mechansm within the Group; and

Performing stress esting an a regular basis,
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued}
44.2 Liguidity risk (Continued)
Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and financial liabilities

The tables below summarize the maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities by
remaining confraciusl maturites based on the carrying amount at the end of each reporting period
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decembes 2019
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.2 Liquidity risk (Continuec)

Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and financial Nabilities
(Continuad)

The tables below summarize the matunty analyss of financial assets and financial |abilities by
remanning contractiual maturities based on the carrying amount at the end of each reparting pacsod:

{Cantinued)
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For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.2 Liquidity risk (Continued)

290 | () rakaun

Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows

Assets avallable to meet obligations related 1o the Group's liabilities and outstanding credit
commitments primanly include cash and balances with central banks, deposits with banks and other
financial instilutions, placements wath and loans 1o banks and other financial nstitutions, finandal
assets at fair wvalue through profit or loss, and financial assets held under resale agreements. In the
narmal course of business, the majority of customer deposits repayable on demand or on maturity
are expected 10 be retained. in addition, the Group is able 10 sell the other debt instrument and other
equily investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (o repay matured Babilities, if
necessary.

The tables below present the undiscounted cash flows of non-derivative financial assets and financial
lrabilties by remaining contractual maturities at the end of each reporting period:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year erded 31 Decembss 2009

(A mounts in milkorm of Renminkl, whies otbeosse stated)]
IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuec)
44.2 Liquidity risk (Continued)
Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows (Continued)

The tables below present the undiscounted cash flows of non-derivative financial assets and financial
fiabifties by remaining contractual maturities at the end of each reporting period (Continwed)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decernber 3019
{Amaurits in milliors of Renminks, unless obenass saled)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuad)
44.2 Liquidity risk (Continued)
Derivative cash flows

Derivatives settled on a net basis

The tables below present the undiscownted contractual cash flows of the Group's net derivative
positions based on their remaineng contractual matunties:

Ltt than

y 5
Dervatives on a net basis (5} (852) {427)

11,275}

Derivatives on a net basis . i'-!] Eﬁtl . 248

Derivatives seftled on a gross basis

The tables below present the undiscounted contractual cash flows of the Group’s gross derivative
positions. based on their remaineng contractual matunties:

11 December 2019
Less than 1-3 3-12 1-5
'

manth et bis manths Y EArS

Denvatives setti=d on a gross bass

— Cash inflow 500415 440526 1840384 53790 80 2862157
== Comawe e G WARMA) eI GLan Lo e
Total (3411} (3815) 4270 1432) (4)  (a02)

Derivatives setil=d on a gross bass

— Cash inflow SE9.624  GA9ETA 1636207 49275 502 2875282
— Cash outflow {S58.961) (64B03E) (1,637,033  [48.351) (496) (2,923879
Total b5 1,636 1B26) {78} b 1.403
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MAMNAGEMENT (Continued)
44.2 Liquidity risk {Continued)
Off-balance sheet ftems
The tables below summarize the amounts of credit commitments by remaining maturity, Financial

guarantees are ako included bedow at notional amounts and based on the earfiest contractual
matunty date.

31 December 2019

J yaars 3
Loan commitments 187,064 265,518 1,056,796
Bank acceptance 339,829 - - 339,829
Credit card commitrments 646,134 - - 645,134
Guarantee and letiers of guarantee 104,848 102,713 E.BBE 216,229
Letters of credit 148,334 2,706 - 151,040
Total 1,426,209 370,937 612,882 2,410,028

906,782

Lesan commilments 132,322 246 008 528452

Bank acceptance 242, 489 - - 242,489

Credit card commitments 538,870 - - 538,870

Guarantee and letiers of guaraniee 97,061 79,008 15,184 191,250

Letters of credit 127,042 4,372 - 131,414

Total 1,137,784 329,385 543,636 2,010,805
44.3 Market risk

Market risk represents the potential loss arising from changes in markel rates of inlerest and
foreign exchange, as well as commaodity and equity prices. Market nisk arises from both the Group's
proprietany positions. and customer difven transactions, in both cases related to on- and off-balance
sheet activities

The Group is primanty exposed to Interest rate risk through its lending, fixed-income and funding
activities, Interest rate risk is inherent in many of the Group's businesses and this situation is comman
amcng large banks. It fundamentally anses through mematches batween the matunty and re-peicing
dates of Interast-earning assets and inlerest-bearing llabilities. As discussed further below, interest
rala risk is actively managed.

Forelgn exchange rate risk is the potential loss related to changes in foreign exchange rates affecting
the translation of foreign currency denominated monetary assets and labilities. The msk of loss results
from movernenis in forelgn currency exchange rates

Annual Repon. 2019 293

4401492



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{amourits n millioes of Benminks, unles olheosise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk (Continued)

The Group is also exposed to commodity risk, primarly related to gold and other precous metals. The
risk of lces results from movements in commiodity price. The Group manages the risk related 1o gald price
together with foreign exchange rate risk.

Thie Group has determined that the levels of market risk related to changes in equity prices and commodity
prices other than gold, wath respect to the related exposures in its trading and imestment portfolios, are
mmmateral.

Segregation of Trading Book and Banking Book

Te enhance the effectiveness of market risk management, as well as the accuracy of determining the
fevels of regulatory capital required related to market risk, the Group segregates all financial mstruments
and commodities, bath of-and off-balance cheetl, iAo edher the tiading book or banking book. The
trading book B comprised of financial instruments and commodity positions held for trading, including all
derivatives instruments. Any other financial mstruments are included in the banking book.

Market Risk Management far Trading Book

The Group manages market risk in the trading book through methodologies that include Value a1 Risk
{VaR), monitoring and management of established |imits, sensitvity analysis, duraton analysis, exposire
analysis and stress testing.

The Group has formulated policses, which are subject 1o review annuadly oF a8 Crcumstances. ot henwss
dictate, to manage markei risk. Further, In this regard, the Group's market risk management is focused
an movements in domestic and global financial markets, as well as the composition of the rading book
and management's trading strategies, within approved limits. Moreower, the Group has implemented
more specific policles for financial instruments, clesely monitering the exposure to specific Bsuers and
counterpartios, as wall as the tenor of individual positions and trading strategies. The foundation of the
Group®s limit and risk monitaring system s basad on VaR, which |5 used consistently 1o monitor all classes
af financial instruments in the trading book,

The Bank has adopied an historical simu‘ation method, with a confidence level of 99% based on holding
period of 1 day and historical data for 250 days to calculate the VaR of the trading book, which includas
the Head Office, domesiic bvanches and overseas branches. Based on the differences between domestic
and owerseas markets, the Bank selected applicable parameters for model and rek lactors in order to reflect
the actual market risk levels, The Bank verified the accuracy and rediability of market risk measurements
thraugh data analysis, parallel modeling and back-testing of the market rigk moasurements.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuac}

44.3 Market risk [Continued)

Market Risk Management for Trading Book (Continued)

VaR Analysts for the Trading Book

Bank
1019
At tha end
of the year Avaraga Mmximm Kinimum
Interest rate risk 75 89 116 57
Exchange rate risk i 90 120 187 56
Commodity risk 9 15 25 5
Cverall VaR 115 146 291 92
Bank

Interest rate risk 109 76 119 44

Exchange rate risk 1 123 17 300 12
Commuodity risk 17 14 19 )
Overall VaR 120 134 252 57

The Bank calculates VaR for its trading book (exclucing RMEB foreign curmency settlernent contracts
with customers under nelevant regulations). The Bank conducts streds testing for its trading bock
guarterty. The specific areas subjact 1o this testing include the major areas of expasure, such as bands,
interest rate derivatives, foreign exchange derivatives and gold. The stress testing uses a range of
scenalios, to assess the potential impact on profit and loss.

{1} VaR related to gedd is recognized as a component of foreign exchange rate sk
Market Risk Management for Banking Book
The Group manages markel risk related to the banking book by consistently applying technigues

across the Group that include exposure limit managamant, strets testing, scenano analysis and gap
analysis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{amourits n millioes of Benminks, unles olheosise sated)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continusd)
44.3 Market risk (Continued}
Market Risk Management for Banking Book (Continued)
Interast Rate Risk Management

Interast sate risk refers to the risk that the adverse changes mn nterest rate |evels and maturity
structures will cause the bank's book value to suffer losses. The Bank's book interest rate risk maindy
comes from the mismatch of maturity or repricing periods of interesi-cencitive assets and labilitios
in the Bank's book and the inconsistent changes in the benchmark interest rate on which assets and
fabilities are based.

Since the People’s Bank of China’s LPR reform, the Bank has implemented relevant policles in
accordance with regulatory requirements, promated business system transformation, modilied system
laan contracts, improved inlesnal and external inlefest fate pricing mechanisms, strengthensd staff
training for branches, comprehensively promated LPR appiications, and basically realized the entire
systern. The entire process of loan pricing applies LPR pricing, After the People’s Bank of China
reforms LPR, the connectron between the benchmark interast rate on loans and the market Interest
rate wall be closer, and the frequency and amplitude of volatility will increase relatively, To this end,
the Bapk strengthened the monitarng and prejudgment of the external interest rate environment,
adjusted Internal and external pricing sirategies in a timely manner, optimized the asset and liability
product structure and matunty structune, actively played the role of interest rate option products, and
praactively adpusted the risk strocture to reduce the economic value and overall impact of interest
rate changes, The adverse impact of earnings. During the reporting period, the Bank's interest rate
sk bsvel was generally stable, and all quota indicators were controlied within the scope of regulatory
requlrements and management objectives,

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk Management

Foreign exchange rate rsk relates 1o the mismatch of foreign currency denomimated monetary assels
and liabilites, and the potential koss related to changes in fareign exchange rates, which largely arises
through operational activities,

The Group performs monitoring and sensitivity analysis of forelgn exchange rate risk ‘expasure,
manages the mismatch of foreign currency denominated assets and habilties to effectivaly manage
foreign exchange rate risk exposure within acceptable limits.

Market Risk Exposure Limit Management

harket risk exposure limits ane classified as either directive limits or indicative limits, based on the
characteristics of the underlying instruments of transactions; including exposure bmit: monitoring,
enforoement of stop-loss limits, VaR limits, and stress testing Hmits.

The Group is committed 1o continuaus improvemaent of its market risk exposure limit management.
The Group establishes exposure limits reflecting its risk appetite and continuously refines the

categorization of market rsk @xposure limits. Further, it regularly monitors, reports, refings, and
implements improvements to the market risk exposure limit process.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MAMNAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk (Continued)
Foreign exchange rate risk
The Group primarily conducts its business activities In AMB, with certain transactions denominated

i USD, HED and, to a lesser extent, other curmencies. The composition of all financial assets and
liabiities at the end of each reporting period analyzed by currency s as follows

31 Datember 2019

Orthar

HED currencieg
{l ({RME
alent]  equivalant)

Cash and baiarices wih central banks 2634765 SLI9 L0 10380

2,699,805

Depersits with banks and

ather firdancial institutions 168,817 44,574 4,605 17,746 135,743
Placements with and loans 1o banks

and ather firandial insitations 292,023 163,495 43,885 3,778 513,183
Derivative fimancial pssets 10,628 13473 154 649 24,944
Firarscial assots held

unckr resale agreements 708,551 - - - 708,551
Loans and advandes 1o CUSTOmEns 12,348,706 348,051 51,769 11,088 12819510
Firuncial assets af fae vahue through

profic o ks man 10,887 10,441 0z 801,361
Dkt rstrument investments at

amortized cost 4,870,459 61,01 7,982 1229 4,945,781
Onher debt instrument and othis equity

Irvestments at Tar valise through

other comprenensie Income 1,426,703 211,441 343 33,245 1,674,828
Oiher financial ssels TH.130 1501 1,336 1.742 81,809
Total finanoal assets 13,306,503 914,302 124,653 168,766 24,516,664
Beamowings from ceniral banks {608,086) = = (4500 (608,536}
Depeeits from banks and

other finandal institutions (1,428 526) {35.573) {16,058} (22,652} (1,503,909
Placoments from banis and

ather finandal instibutions {48,504)  (205,326) {52,480 (19,043}  (325,363)
Finangial liabilies at far value theough

profit of foss (327,080) {3.547) = - (330,627
Dervative financial liabilities {17,558) {11,054) [154) mm (29,548])
Firancial assets sobd

under repurchase x'eements {14,315) (31,638) = (7.244) (53,187)
D 1o customers {12,126,394) (356,070) [38,907) [22,581) (18,542,5861)
Dbt securities iisused (797,766)  (244,866) {25.539) (40,641} (1,108,212)
Bithes financial Eabdibies i242710) {£.318) {1.360) (2.892)  {(255280)
Total financial liabilties {21.611,439)  (897.301)  (131513)  (116.280) (22.757,533)
Net on-halarce shest position 1,647,464 17.001 {7.820) 52,086 1,755,131
Net mational amount of dertives 126,517 11,585 |6, 1886) [43.245) 100,750
Loan commitments and Snancal

guarantes contracls 214161 230,196 5,450 33311 2.410,028
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Far the year ended 31 Decermnber 2019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINAMNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued}
44.3 Market risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued)

The Group primarily conducts its business actvities in RMB, with certain transactions denominated
in USD, HKD and, 1o a lesser extent, other currencies. The composition of all financial assets and
liabilitias at the end of each reporting perod analyzed by currency 5 as follows: (Continwed)

Cash and balances with central banks 1755814 ' N300 2,805,107

Deposits with banks ar

ather financial instiutions 41,200 52,583 4312 11,633 108,728
Placemaends with and kans o banks and

olther financial instifutions 330,738 167,234 35,896 13,143 552,013
Derivative financial asets 4587 31,613 El %] 36544
Firancial assets hald

Jnder resale agreements 3,001 - - - 371,000
Levares. and achrances to CUSICMES 11032180 131,600 46019 50842 11481542
Finareial assets &t Far value thiough

onalit o foss 616,802 11,160 12.332 2951 543,245
Debit inatrumsnt nestments Jt

amoriized cost 4432187 58918 4928 TGRS 4303698
Oher debt instrument and othes equity

imvestments at fair value Theough

other comprehensive income 1,518,832 180,027 3.084 36089 1736132
Other financil Fsels 49641 6.500 086 1,773 SB.002
Totd finanoal assets 21,154,082 B75.065 113,444 137811 72,280,402
Borrowings fiom central banks (560,742} = - [453) 1361,193)
Depcaits from banks and

aither financial instittions (1,061,287} {31,565) (17.435) (4,030 (1,024.322)
Pacements from banks ang

athesr financial institutions {35678) (231,041) (40, 188) (18,623) 335,541)
Financial kabilties at far value throwgh

omlit or fos (282 BES) (3435 - - (285,303
Dierivative financial labilties 127 m5d) {5470 (247 [943) [34,554)
Financial assets soid

uingdas repLrchase agroements {190,943} 1a0,00%) - 15,151) {157,101}
[ue 1o customars {16963 708  [230.184) (23,965) (26,847 (17,346,290
Db securities issued (a7, 130 (109 g {31,747) [41,240) (780,673)
(Other financial Fabilties (168,772} (S06E5) [ad4) 2,393 (181,7Th
Total financial lisbdities (19,710,264} (BE3.270) {114,540 (109,682)  (20,797,756)
Het on-balance sheet position 1.443 818 11,785 11.086) 18,129 1,482,645
Net nolionsl amount of derivalived E5.587 17,299 5149 [14,713) &9,322
Loan commitments and fnancsl

guarantes conlracts L7217 161,808 0,655 33,125 2,010,805

298 (@ ek

445/492



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market dsk [Continued)
Fareign exchange rate risk (Conhinwed)
The table below indicates the potential effect on profit before tax and other comprehensive income
arising from 4 5% appeeciaton of depreciation of RME spot and forward foreign exchange rates

against a basket of all othes currencies on the net pestions of foreign curfency monelary assets and
liabiuties and derivative instruments in the consolidated staternent of financial position,

31 Decamber 2019

Prafit camprah
before tax [

{938)

5% depredation 438 298 556 (240

(298) (55

59 appreciation

The effect on profit before tax and other comprehensive income is caloulated based on the
assumption that the Group's foreign currency sersitive exposures and foreign currency derivative
Imstruments net position at the end of each reporting pevicd remain unchanged. The Group mitigates
its forelgn exchange rate risk through active management of its foreign cumency exposunes and
the approgdiate use of denvative mslisments, based on managemen! expectation of fulure Toregn
currency exchange rate movements, Such analysis does not take into account the correlation effect of
changes in different forgign currencies, nor any further actions that could be taken by management to
mitigate the effect of foreign exchange differences. Therefore, the sensitivity analysis above may differ
from actual results occurring through changes in foreign exchange rates,

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from: the mismatches between contractual maturities or re-
pricing dates of interest-generating assets and interest-bearing liabdlities, as well as the inconsistent
variaions in the benchmark interest rate on which the assets and liabilities are based. The Group's
interesi-generating assets and Interest-bearing labilities are primanly denominated in AMBE. The PEOC
stipulated the benchmark interest rate for RMEB deposits, The deposit interest rate ficating ceding was
removed by the PBOC with effect from 24 December 2015 for commercial banks. Since 16 August
2019, the PROC established RME Loan Pime Rate to replace RME benchmark interest rates for foan
a5 a pricing benchmark of new loan wheneby financial institutions are in a position to price their loans
based on credit risk, commercial and market Factors.

Troe Growp manages is interest rate risk by:

— Strengthen the pre-judgement of the situation and analyze the macroeconomic factors that may
affect the LPR interest rate, the benchmark deposit interest rate and the markel interest rate.

— Strengthen strategy transmission and cptimize the repricing term structure of interest-garning
assats and interast-paying labilities;

— Implement limit management to contral the impact of interest rate changes an the economic
vabue and overall income of bank books within the limits:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 Decermnber 2019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The tables below summarize the contractual matunty or re-pricing date, whichever is earlier, of the
Group's financial assets and Habilities at the end of each reporting penod.

31 December 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019
(Amaunts in milkorm of Renminbi, whies olbensne stated]

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MAMNAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market dsk [Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The 1ables below summarize the contractual maturity or re-pricing date, whichever is earlier, of the
Group's financial assets and liabdites a1 the end of wach reporting period. (Continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
44.3 Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The foliowing table |Hustrates the potential pre-tax impact, of a paraltel upward or downward shift
of 100 basis points in relevant interest rate curves on the Group’s net Interest Income and other
compreheniive income for the next twele manths from the feporting date, based on the Group's
positions of interest-eaming assets and interest-bearing liabalities at the end of each reporting penod.
This analysis assumes that interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount, and does not
teflect the potential impact of unparalieled weld curve movements.

The sensitivity analysis on nel interest income is based on rexsonably passible changes in inlerest rates
with the assumgtion that the structure of financial assets and financial liabilities held at the period end
remains unchanged, and does not take changes in customer behavior, basis sk or any prepayment
aptians on debt securities into consideration,

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income reflects only the effect of changes in fair value
of those financial instrumenis. classified as other debt instrument and other equity Investments at fair
value through other comprehensive held, whose fair value changes are recarded as an element of
other compreharsive Incoeme.

31 December 2019

Het Orther
Interest  comprehendive

IR IREGME T
+100 basis points {25,607) (42,579} 24,024) (67,879
= 10 basis points 15,607 42,579 .04 67,879

The assumptions do not reflect actions that might be taken under the Group's capital and interest
fate risk management policy to mitigate changes to the Group's interest rate rsk. Therefore the above
anabysis may differ from the actual situation.

In addition, the presentation of interest rate sensitivity abowve is for illustration purposes only, showing
the potential impact on net interest income and other comprehensive income of the Group under
differemt parallel yield curve movements, refative to their position at penod-end, excluding the
derivative positions,

44.4 Country Risk

Country risk represents the msk due to changes and incidents occumed in the economy, politics and
sooety of a specific country or regéon, which resuits in the borrowers or debtors in that country or
region incapable of or unwilling to pay their debts owed to the Bank or otherwise leads 1o business
loszes or other losses 1o the Bank in that country or region,

Agccording to the regulatory requirements of CBIRC, the Group managed country risk through tools
and approaches such as country risk rating, limit approval, exposure analysis and stress testing. In
the meanwhile, we fully considered the impacl of country risk on asset quality, accurately identified,
reasonably assessed and prudently estimated the asset loss that may be caused by country msk
Corresponding provisions were also made for country risk impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr ended 31 December 2019
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 FINANCIAL RISE MANMAGEMENT (Continuad)
44.5 Insurance risk

The Group engages m s insurance business primanty im Mainkand China. Insurance risk refers
to the financial impact resulting from the wnespected occurrence of insured events. These risks
are actively’ managed by the Group through effectve sales management, undenwriting conitol,
reinsurance managerment and claim management. Through effective sales management, the sk of
mig-selling could be reduced and the accuracy of information used for undanwrting ia improved.
Throwgh underwriting contrel, risk of adverse selection could be reduced and mareover differential
pricing policy based on the level of each kind of nsk could be wtilized. Through reinsurance, the
Group's insurance capacity could be enhanced and targeted risks could be metigated. Effective claims
management is desioned 1o ensure that insurance payments are controdled according Lo established
criteria,

Uncartainty in the estimation of future benefil payments and premium recepts for long-term life
inisurance contracts afses from the unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels of monality.
The Group conducts experience analysis of mortalty rate and surrendes rate, in order 10 improve its
risk assessment and s 2 basis for reasonable estimates.
45 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are as follows:

—  maintain an adequate capital base to support the development of it business;

— sypport the Group's financial stability and profitable growth;

— allocate capital theough an efficient and risk based approach to optmize rsk-adjusted return to
shareholders: and

— safeguard the long-term sustainabifity of the Group's franchise =0 that it can continue o provide
sufficient sharehedder returns and benefits for oiher stakeholdars.

The “Capital Rules for Commercial Barks (Provissonal)” issued by the CBRC in 2012 includes, amang other
things, mequirements for minimum capital, capital conservation buffer, additional capital surcharge for
systemicalty important banks, countercyclical bufier and Pillar Il capital as follows:

—  minimum regulatery reguirements for Common Equity Ter-one Capltal Adeguacy Ratio, Tier-one
Capital Adequacy Ratio and Capital Adequacy Ratio are 5%, 6% and 8%, nespectively;

— capital conservation buffer requires additsonal 2.5% of Common Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy
Ratio;

— additionad capital surcharge for symml:allr important banks requires additional 1% of Commaon
Equity Tier-one Capital Adeguacy Ratio;

— should the regulators require cowntercyclical bauffer under particular circumstances or regulators
impose additional Pillar || capital requirements for specific banks, these requirements shall be meat
within the specified time limits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{Amourits i millions of Renminks, ke olhsosise vated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

in April 2014, the CBIRC officially approved the Group to adopt advanced capital management approach.
Within the scope of the approval, the Internal Ratings-Based approach is adopied 1o Credit Risk-weighted
Assets for both retail and non-retail nsk exposures, and the Standardized approach for both Operational
Risk-weighted Assets and Market Risk-waighted Assets. The CBIRC will detammine the parallel run penod
for the Group, which should last for at least three years. During the paraliel run period, the Group should
calculate its Capital Adequacy Ratios under the advanced approach and the non-advanced approach, and
should conform to the capital floar requirements & stipulated in the “Capital Rules for Commencial Banks
{Previsional)®,

In lanuary 2017, the CBIRC has officially approved the Group to adopt the Intemal Models approach 1o
measure its Market Rek-weighted Assets for qualified risk exposures.

Capltal adequacy and the utilization of regulalory capital are closely monitored by the Group's
management n accordance with the guidetines developed by the Basel Committee and relevant regulations
promulgated by the CRIRC. Required infarmation related to capital levels and utilization & filed guarearly
with the CBIRC.

The Group’s capital adequacy ratio calculated In accordance with the ® Capital Rules for Commercial Banks
{Pravisionall” issued by the CBIRC as at the end of the reporting panod s as follows:

37 Decomber
2019

Common Equity Ther-one Capital Adeguacy Ratlo {1} 11.24% 11 .55
Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio {1 12.53% 12.13%
Capital Adeguacy Ratio {1} 16.13% 15.12%
Commaon Equity Tier-one Capital 23 14467 1.591.376
Deductible items from Common Equity
Twer-one Capital (3} (7.883) (7, 449)
MWet Common Equity Tier-ane Capital 1,740,564 1,583,927
Additianal Tier-one Capital 4} 195,853 79,506
Met Tier-one Capital 1,940,478 1.663.833
Tier-two Capital {5} 557.833 409,510
Wet Capital 2,498,311 2,073,343
Risk-weighied Assets {6} 15,485,352 13,712.894
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For the yedr ended 31 December 2019
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Pursuant to the “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Frovisional)”:

{1} The scope of consolidation relfated to the calculation of the Group's Capital Adequacy Ratios includes
Dormestic Institutions, Overseas: Institutions: and affiliated financial subsidiaries speciied in the
Ragulation.

The Common Equity Tier-one Capital Adeguacy Ratio is calziilated as Netl Common Equity Tier-ane
Capital divided by Risk-weighted Assets. The Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio s calculated as Net Tier-
one Capital divided by Risk-weighted Assets. The Capital Adequacy Ratio is calculated as Net Capital
divided by Ruk-weighted Assets.

(2) The Group’s Common Equity Tier-one Capital includes: ordinary share capital, capital reserve (subject
to regulatory Hmitations), investment revaluation reserve, surplus reserve, general reserve, refained
earnings, non-controling interests (to the extent permitted in the Common Equity Tier-cne Capital
under the Regulation), and the farelgn cufmency ranslation fewsmne.

(3) The Group's Deductible Nems from Commaon Equity Tier<one Capital include: other intangible assets
{excluding land-use rights), and Common Equity Tier-one Capital investments made in financial
institutions over which the Group has control but are outside the regulatory consoldation scope for
the Capital Adequacy Ratios caleulation.

(4} The Group’s Additonal Ter-one Capital includes. preference shares issued ard non-controlling
Initarests (1o the extent permitted i the Additional Teer-ane Capital definition under the Regulation).

{5) The Group™s Ter-two Capital includes: Ter-twe capital instruments and related premium [to the
extent allowed under the Regulation), excessive allowance for loan losses, and minority interests (io
the extent permitted in the Tier-twa Cagatal definition under the Requlation),

(8) Risk-weighted Assets include Credit Risk-weighted Assets, Market Risk-weighted Assets and
Oparational Risk-weighted Assels
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position are
financial assets and financial liabilities. Fair value measurement of non-financial assets and nen-financial
fabilities do not have a material impact on the Group’s financial position and operations, taken as a whole,

The Group does not hawe any financial assets or financial liabilites subject 10 non-recurring fair value
measurements for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

46.1 Valuation technigue, input and process
The fair value of the Group's financlal assets and financial liablities are determined as follows

— If traded in active markets, fair values of financial assets and financial labilities with standard
terms and conditions are determined with reference 1o quoted market bid prices and ask prices,

respectively;

— If not traded in active markets, lair values of financial assets and financial habilities are
determined by using valuation technigues. These valuation techniques snciude the use of recent
transaction prices of the same or similar instruments, discounted cash flow analyss and genesally
accepted pricing modals,

The Group has established an independent valuathon process for financlal assets and financial
liabilsties. The Fanancial Accounting Department of head office establishes the valuation models for
financial ascets and financial labilities of head office and its branches i China and independently
implerments the valuation on a reguiar basis; and the Risk Management Department (s responsitsla for
vahdating the valuation model, the Oparations Departments records the accounting for thess i1ems.
Creerseas branches and sub-branches designate depariments or personnel that are independent from
the front trading office to perform valuation in accordance with the (ocal regulatory requiremernts and
their own department settings.

The board of directors shall be responsible for establishing and improving the mternal control system
molated 1o the valuation of financial Instruments and approving valuation palicies.

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2019 and 31 December 2018, there was no significant changes in
the valuation technigues or Inputs used to determine falr value measuremenis

46.2 Fair value hierarchy
The Group classifies financial assets and financial labilities into the followmg three levels based on the
extent 1o which Inputs 1o vabuation technigues used to measune falr value of the financial assets and
fimancial liabilities are obsenvable.

Level 10 falr value measuremenis are those derbed from guoted prices (unadjusted) in an active
market for identical assets or [iabilities,

Level 2:  fair value measurements are those derived from Inputs other than guoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, esther directly or indirectly; and

Level 3:  fair value measurements are not based on observable market data,
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[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value on the consolidated
statement of financial position

The tables below summarnize the cafrying amounts and fair values of thote financial assels and
financial Babilitles nat measured in the consolidated statement of financial position at their fair value,
Finarcial assets and firancial labilites for which the carrying amounts approximate {air value, such as
balances with central banks, depesits with banks and other financial instituthans, placements with and
lsans to banks and other financial institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements, loans
and advances 1o customers. feceivable from the MOF, special government bond, borrowings from
ceniral banks, depaosits and placemenis from banks and other financial institutions, due 1o customers,
financial assets sold under repurchase agreements and certificates of deposit Bsued, interbank
cortificate of deposits ssued and commaescial papers issuad are not included in the tables below.

31 Decembaer 2019

Carrying
amaunt Fair valus Liwval 1

Finamcial sssats
Dbt irstrument imestmants af
anortared cost (encluding recenable
from the MOF and special
govermment bond) 4,544,852 4,627,430 33,506 4,403,618 190,308

Financial liabilities
Bonds &aued 356,502 365,295 13,543 341,656 -

Fimancial assats
Debt instruments classified 2
receivables lextluding recevable

from the MOF and special

goverTement Bond) 4,111,606 4,172,399 19,129 3.948 241 05019
Finarcial liabilities
Bonds msued 281,880 181,787 26,597 265,150 -

Annual Repon. 2019 307

454/492



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{Amourits i milicod of Renminbs, wrles oibsaaise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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46.4 Financial assets and financial labilities measured at fair value on the consolidated
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statement of financial position

The tables below summarze the fair values of the financial assets and financial liabdities measured in

the consobidated statement of financial position at their fair value.

Dervative financial assats

— Exchange rate denvatives - 24,128 - 24,128
— Interest rate derivateves . 340 o 340
— Mreciois metal contracts and others = 476 = 476
Subtotal n 29,944 - 24,544
Lowans and acviances 10 customers
— Discounted bills and fodeiting - 540,387 - 540,387
— Megotiation LT - - - -
Subtotal - 540,387 - 540,387
Fenancial irvestment
Financial assets at fair walua through
prafit or loss
Mandaiorily messuired a1 fair value through
predit or loss:
— Hedd for tradirg
Bonds 2,190 199,269 - 201,459
Preciows metal contracts - 29,132 - 29,132
Equity 2,354 - - 2,354
Fund 1,100 236 - 1.336
— Daher financia assets at fair value
through prafit or loss
Bonds - 93,298 4,194 97 492
Equity 2,108 22,194 70,881 95,183
Fund ard others 2227 5.351 15,799 23.377
— Financial assets desgnated a2 dar value
value through profit or loss
Dbt secunites 12,419 199,11 = 211,650
Deposits with banks and other
fmnancal irstitutions - 28,207 - 28,207
Placements with and loans 1o banks
and other financial matitutions - 93,174 5,010 104,184
Oihess - - a57 587
Subtatal 16,398 676,002 96,871 801,361
Other debt instruments and ather equity
imvestments at fair value through
othier comprehensive incoma
Debt Instrurnents
— Bonds 200,203 1,452,949 - 1,653,152
— Others - - 18594 18,594
Equity instniments 1,107 - 1,475 3,082
Subtolal 201,310 1,452,949 20,569 1,674,828
Total aseets 225,708 2,694,372 117440 3,041,520
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the consolidated
statement of finandal pesition (Continued)

The tables below summarize the fair values of the financial zssets and financial liabilites measured in
the consolidated staterment of financial position at their fair value. (Cantinusd)

31 December 2019
Lavel 1 Level 2 Lavel 3

— Held for trading
Financial kabditees relsled o precious metals - (14,147) - (14,147)
— Financial |iabilties designated at fair value
through profit or boss
Principl guaranieed wealth managerment
peoducls - - (312,975) (312.575)
Orveruaas disbl securities - {3,505) - {3,505)
Subtotal - (17.652) (212,975} (330.627)
Darivative financial kabilines
— Exchange rate derivatives - (20.382) - (20.382)
— |mteresl rate deratives - {1,676) - {1,676)
= Precious metal contracts - (745900 - {7.450)
Subtetal = (29,54%) £ 129,548)
Due 1o customers
Dy o customers measured o G vidue - (146,474} - (146,474)

Total lablites

(193,674) (312975 (506,649
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continuead)

The tables below summarize the far values of the financial assets and financial habdites measured in
the consolidated statement of financial poation at their fair value (Continued)

Dervative finanos assets

— Exchange rate darivatives - 35,074 14 35,088
— Interest rate derivaties - 1,635 19 1,654
— Progious metsl contracts ang othars - 202 - 02
Subrioial = 36,911 33 35,944
Laans and advances 10 customers
— [scounted bills and forfeiting - 433,912 - 433,912
— Megotiation LT - 249 - 149
Subtotal - 434,161 - 434,161
Financial irvestment
Financial assets at fair valug through
prafit or loss
Mandatorily measured a1 far vake through
prodit or loss
— Hefd for trading
Bonds - 214,008 - 214,008
Precious metal contracts - 28,139 - 28,133
Equity and furd 4,440 i - 4,641
— Other financal assels at fair value
through profit or loss
Bonds - 71,110 5715 76,885
Eauity and fund 18,937 any 13,998 37.152
Others 208 6,786 8,604 15,688

— Financial assets designated at fair value
through profitof foss

Dbt securities 181 142,723 - 142 504
Deposits with banks and ather
financia institutions - 3174 - 9174
Placements with and loans to banks
and ather financial institutions - 78,002 31,339 110,431
Oithers - - 4,223 4,233
Subtotal 24,766 553,450 65,025 643,245

Other debt mstrument and other equity
Investments at fair value throwgh other

compreheniive income
Debt instruments
— Honds B0.435 1.641,141 - 1,721,576
— Othars - - 14,316 14,316
Equily instruments 988 - 1,252 2,290
Subioial 81,423 1,641,141 15,568 1,738,132
Tatal atsaty 106,189 2,665,443 B0,850 2,852 487

310 @ rexean
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year erded 31 Decembss 2009

[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]
IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the consolidated
statement of finandal pesition (Continued)

The tables below summarize the fair values of the financial zssets and financial liabilites measured in
the consolidated staterment of financial position at their fair value (Comtinued)

Financial llatkties at far valie thraugh
prodit or loss
— Held for trading
Finandal lizbilties related to predous metals - (171881 - {17,188
— Financial liabdties designated at fain value
through profit or loss
Principal guarameed wealth management

products - - (265,715} (265, 715]
Overaas debt saturithes - {34000 - {34000

Subtetal = (20,568 {265,715} (286.303)
Darvative financial Rabilites

— Esxchange rate derhvatives - (31.381) 114} (41,345

— |niterest rale derrathies - (8200 119} (B39

= Frecious metal contracts - 23200 - {23200

Subtotal & 34,521} 133l (34.554)
Total [ablies - (55, 10% (265,748} 320,857

Annual Repan 20019 311
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{amourits n millioes of Benminks, unles olheosise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cantinued)

46.4 Financial assets and financial FKabilities measured at fair value on the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

Substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 2 of the fair walue hierarchy are debt
investments, daposits with banks and other financial Institutions, currency fonwards, currency swaps,
interast rate swaps, curmency aptions and precious metal contracts. Fair value of cebt investments
derominated in RMB 15 determined based wpon the valuation published by the China Central
Depository & Clearing Co., Lid. Fair value of debt investiments denaminated in foreign currencies i
determined based upon the valuation resufts published by Bloombarg, The fair value of deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, currency forwards, currency swaps. Interest rate swaps and
currency oplions are calculated by applying discounted cash flow analysis or the Black Scholes Pricing
hadal. The fair value of precious metal contracts that are related 1o the Group’s trading activities i
detarmined with reference to the relevant obsarvable markel parameters. All shgnificant inputs are
observable in the market.

Level 3 financal asets of the Group manly represented underdying assets imested by prncipal-guaraniesd
WhPs issued by the Group including deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
placements with and loans to banks and other financial Institutions and credit asseis
The counterparties of these deposits and placements are primanly commercial banks and
nan-bank financiad instiutions in Mainland China. The credit assets ane loans and advamces 1o
corporate customers in Malnland China. Level 3 financlal labilities largely represented llabilitles to the
investors of these products. As not all of the inputs needed 1o estimate the fair value of these assets
and llabilites e observable, the Group classified these investment products within Level 3 of the fair
valug measurement higrarchy, The significant unobservable mputs related 1o these assets and habilities
are those parameter relating (o credit rsk, liquidity and discount rate. Management has made
assumpticns on unobservable inputs based on chserved Indicators of Impalmment, significant changes
in yield, external credit ratings and comparable credit spreads, but the fair value of these undertying
assets and liabidities could be different from these disclased.

There was no significant transfer amongst the different levels of the 1ar value merarchy dunng the
yoars ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018,

312 | @rurean
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
[A il in il of Refminl, whies olbessse stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

The reconciliation of Level 3 classified financial assets and hinanoal labilities presentad at fair value on
the consolidated staternani of financial position i as lollows:

Finandial
Firandal agmets I g
at fair value o) E at fair value Derivative
Derivative comprihenslve through financial
Financial assets ; profit or hoss linbilities
Purchanes 116,620 - 2183 - -
b - - - {1.556.474) -
Settlement/depasals (B7.063) (33} {3.503) 1,517,367 3
Tokal boss/{gain) recognized in
— Profit or loss 2,285 - - (8,153 =
— Othaw coergrshersia income - - an - -
31 December 2019 36,871 - 20,569 [312.575) =
Change in uneealized bossigaen)
for the period ncluded n
profit or loss for assetufabilities
held 31 the and af the year 1,004 - - 85 -

1 January J015 ' Ty 1364,151)

Purchares 40,833 - 7.385 - -
bisuns - - - 1,742,672
Sellements’dsposals {109, BEh) {15 {3.7601 (7,633, 46 I
Tokal lossrigain) recognized n

— Piofit or hoss 2144 Fr) ] {10,290} 3

— Dther compeehersive income - - {1 - -
31 December 2018 65,029 13 15,568 (265,715} 133
Change in ureralized krssigasn)

lor the period Encluded in

il or loss dor asetlisbibfes

held a1 the end of the year (3,390} 113 - Ex! 10

Annusl Repam 2019 313
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decernber 20019
{amourits n millioes of Benminks, unles olheosise sated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cantinued)

46.4 Financial assets and financial FKabilities measured at fair value on the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

i fevel 3 el the fair value hierarchy, total gains or lessas mciuded in profit or loss for the penod are
presanted in net gaindoss an financial investments (Note IV 4) of the consaolidated income statement.

47 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
47.1 Profit appropriation

(1)  Purswant to the resolutions of the Board of Dwectors” meeling on 10 lanuary 2020, a cash
dividend at the dvidend rate of 5.5% per annum related to the second tranche of preference
shares amounting 1o RME2, 200 million in tolal was approved and the dividend was distributed
on 11 March 2020,

{2) Pursuant to the meetng of the Board of Directors on 30 March 2020, the proposal for profit
appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 Decernber 2019 are set forth as follows:

(i An appropriastion of RMB20,623 million 1o the statutary surplus reserve (Note IV 36);
()  An appropriation of RMB34,211 million to the general reserve(Nole IV 37);

(i) A cash dividend of RMBD.1219 per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31
Decemnber 2019 based on the number of ordinary shares issued a5 a1 31 December 2018
totaling RMEG3 662 million (Note IV 10).

Asoat 31 December 2019, the statufory surplus reserve had been recognized as
appropriation. The ather two iterms will be recognized in the Group's financial staternents
after appreval by ordinary equity helders in the forthcoming Annul General Meeting.

47.2 Impact assessment on epidemic sitvation of COVID-19

Since the outbreak of pandemic COVID-19 in January 2020, China and other countress and regions
have adopied prevention and control measures. The Group stringently implemented decisions
and plans af the Central Commuttee of the Communist Party of China ang the State Council,
and coordinated overall plans to strengthen pandemic prevention and. controd, financlal services,
and operation managemnent. The Group will pay close attention 1o development of the siuation,
continuowsly evaluate and actively respond 1o the impact of the pandemic on the Group's financial
pasithon and opemting results, and ensune the Group's financial position and oporating resulls femain
steady. As at the report date of this report, the evaluation i still in progress.

34 @rurean
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
[Amaunts in rmilons of Renminb, whied clbensmes stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
48 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE BANK

As at 21 December

2019
Assats
Cash and balances with central banks 2,699,397 2,804,746
Depaosits with banks and ather financial institutions 210,400 90,380
Precsous metals 30,063 21,268
Placernents with and loans to banks and other
finarcial Rstitutons 611,187 581,208
Darnvative financial assels 24,944 36,944
Financial asiets hald oncer resale agreemants 701,304 368, 024
Loans and advances 1o cusiomers 12,765,407 11,420,286
Financial investments
Financial assats at fair value throwgh prafit or boss 608,494 497,702
Debt instrument investments al amortized cost 4,915,498 4,467 824
Othar debt instrument and ather equaty imestments
at fair value through other comprehensine income 1,579,790 1,688,965
Irvestrment in subsidsaries 12 41,543 £8,960
Investments in associates and joint ventures 108 236
Controlled structured entities investments 131,462 110,462
Property and equipment 141,692 143,296
Daferred tax assets 120,072 112,535
Other assets 125,774 90,071
Total assets 24,707,235 22,463,907
Liabilitlos
Barrowangs from central banks GOE 488 561,136
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 1.514,804 1,128 357
Placements from banks and other financial nstituthons 284,187 201,632
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit o loss 330,627 286,303
Darivative financial liabilities 29,496 34,525
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 49,360 152847
De to CUSIoMmers 18,541,030 17,348,832
et securities kswed 1,081,040 758,935
Other liabilities 332,818 239,961
Total liabilities 22,771,850 20,800,528

Anmusd Repan 2009 315
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

48 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE BANK (Continued)

As at 31 December
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2019

Equity
Ordinary shares 32 349,983 349,983
Othar gquity intruments 33 199,886 79.899
Preference shares 79,899 79,899
Perpelual bonds 119,987 -
Capital reserve 34 173,357 173,357
Investment revaluation ressive 35 29,543 18,800
Surplus reserve 36 174,551 153,028
Genoral ressrye i 275,790 238,215
Retalned earnings 730,309 647,737
Foreign curmency translaton mewene 1,960 1,370
Total equity 1,935,385 1,663,379
Total equity and liabilities 24,707,235 32463507

Approved and authorized for ssue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2020,

Zhr.!u Mubing Zhang Kiqiu
Chairman Executive Director

3G @rerean
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the yedr erded 31 Decembser 2009
(Amaunts in milkorm of Renminbi, whies olbensne stated]

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE BANK

Cithar st

g T FEATY Capital ey

wnans wstumn Eare

1231 Deeer 238 T A MM O A LANS GO UM L&

Frabi for the ot - - - - - = M = Wm
(e morgrehense noome - - - 10,659 - - - EL] LM
Tety comprebereng siume
oy the yexr - - - 10,859 - - MW L LY )
Lot conitutef fron
ety hokden B 1H.7 - - . - - - i
Apprapraion fo phe e ] - - e = s - -
Appropraton b ganetal i n - - - - - N piEm - -
Duscerch i oy mputy beldeny 10 - - . - jEpEn - ELEN
Diderds 1o prefeomie thartolders 10 = = - - R R i R0
A 31 Deanber 2015 MM MEs MR BAS O IMIH a5 TG 190 L8538
Asit 31 Detamber 20T 14,7 kel AT L R E T T T LT ] 17 LT
(Change i ancounting poliy - . - §641 - B @M - e
A | Januy 200 Erok] g 5 E51 MM IsT SEeN 117 LsiEn
Prali for the jear - . . - - = R = I9En
Dar corpretesson vore il Lrez] HA%
Tela comprehimag raTe
o e e = = - FehLE] - - 1 LB e
Lot conritutr o
gty bokdiry n E 8 B8t wam
Apgeograion o dphe e & - - - - 15,88 - (387 - -
Appaapraton \o peneral tmena n - g - - = EMi r ] - -
Dicerdh % ordnay squtyhobes - 10 - - - - - - Bratn = A
Duacect c prrieenct hardholden 10 = : = - z - # ol .|
At 31 Deember 2018 ELkt] ME M U R e e L e 130 LA
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47
2019 12 31
5,478
42
( )
2019 12 31
1.
3
2019 2019 2019 2019
3 31 6 30 9 30 12 31
140.60% 123.20% 120.10% 125.60%
3
2018 2018 2018 2018
3 31 6 30 9 30 12 31
124.8% 117.5% 118.1% 126.6%
CBIRC ( )

GAAP
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2019 12 31
926,373 127,888 169,753 1,224,014
(862,776)  (116,052)  (255186) (1,234,014)
( ) 1,387,102 51,531 65594 1,504,227
() (1,278,984) (57,717)  (104,180)  (1,440,881)
(85,453) (3,660) (89,113)
86,262 5,650 (127,679 (35,767)
6,262 9,136 3,088 18,486
2018 12 31
856,774 116,357 137,852 1,110,983
(857,800)  (114,293)  (108,739)  (1,080,832)
() 1,390,475 41,582 46,368 1,478,425
() (1,344,868) (31,833) (71,081)  (1,447,782)
(28,308) (28,308)
16,273 11,813 4,400 32,486
6,264 6,942 2,479 15,685
3.
10%
( )
2019 12 31
134,007 26,555 234,135 394,697
] 39,719 3,106 152,165 194,990
30,071 11,538 70,161 111,770
340,004 78,862 241,315 660,271
654 116 770

504,826 116,955 545,727 1,167,508
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( )
2018 12 31

3

3 6
6 12
12

3

3 6
6 12
12

2019 12 31 2018 12 31

467/492

110,016 19,992 215,727 345,735
31,837 373 151,388 183,598
23,463 10,259 86,311 120,033

330,479 57,744 229,652 617,875

384 172 556

464,342 87,995 531,862 1,084,199

12 31
2019 2018
71,118 79,458
16,799 22,356
32,851 34,670
62,225 66,448
182,993 202,932
0.53% 0.67%
0.12% 0.19%
0.25% 0.29%
0.47% 0.56%
1.37% 1.71%
12 31
2019 2018
57,266 59,232
11,166 15,406
3
0.08% 0.13%
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IFRS SPE IFRS 10
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IFRS IFRS FVOCI IFRS 15
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1
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
20.37 18.52 17.32 17.48 16.75
18.55 15.06 15.75 16.01 14.86
19.40 16.33 16.60 16.70 15.79
18.56 16.78 17.28 16.16 15.60
100
1
2019 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
12 1 2 3 4 5
15.68 16.06 15.96 15.73 15.45 15.20
15.42 15.48 15.57 14.79 15.10 14.97
15.57 15.81 15.74 15.33 15.25 15.11
100
15.10 2020 5 29
100
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2014 1 1 2037 12 31 15.315 15.315 5
2038 1 1 15 15 5
¢ D
2013 1 1 2037 12 31
2.1
2014 1 1 2037 12 31
20.315 15.315 5 2038 1 1
20 15 5
2009
C))
D
2009
20
2013 1 1 2037 12 31 20.315
2016 1 1 2016
2)

©
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2019 12 31

2019 12 31
IFRSs

1SAs

IESBA
IESBA
IESBA
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12.5 1
8 17 44.1
2019 12 31
12,819.61 (1) ECL
12,279.22
540.39
540.58 2
12.54
2019 12 31
131.83
©)
9 4 m
ECL
(5) ECL
ECL 3 (6)
I 1
ECL
ECL i
ECL
ECL

ECL
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2 5 41
WMPs
2019 12 31
464.48 73.52
2019 12 31
WMPs
1,960.70
478.34
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I ndependent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited
(Incorporated in the People's Republic of Chinawith limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group™)
set out on pages 158 to 317, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019;

the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSS”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISAS"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit mattersidentified in our audit are summarized as follows:

e Measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances to customers

e Consolidation of structured entities

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit losses for |oans and advances
to customers

Refer to Note |1 12.5, Note Il 1, Note 1V 8, Note IV 17 and
Note IV 44.1 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of Group's
loans and advances to customers was RMB12,819.61 hillion,
of which RMB12,279.22 hillion were measured at amortized
cost and RMB540.39 billion were measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. A loss allowance of
RMB540.58 hillion was recognized for loans and advances to
customers measured at amortized cost and aloss allowance of
RMB12.54 hillion was recognized for |oans and advances to
customers measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income in the Group’ s consolidated statement
of financial position. The credit impairment |osses on loans
and advances to customers recognized in the Group’s
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to RMB131.83 hillion.

The loss allowances for |oans and advances to customers
represent the management’ s best estimates at the balance
sheet date of expected credit losses under International
Financial Reporting Standard 9: Financia Instruments
expected credit losses (“ECL") models.

The Group assessed whether the credit risk of loans and
advances to customers had increased significantly since their
initial recognition, and applied a three-stage impairment
approach to calculate their ECL. For corporate loans and
advances classified into stages | and Il and for all personal
loans, management assessed ECL using the risk parameter
modelling approach that incorporated key parameters
(including probability of default, loss given default, exposure
at default, etc.). For corporate loans and advances in stage 111,
management assessed ECL by estimating the future cash
flows from the loans.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controlsrelating to the
measurement of expected credit losses for loans and advances
to customers, primarily including:

(2) Internal controls over ECL models, including the
selection, approval and application of modelling
methodology; and ongoing monitoring and optimization
of the models;

(2) Review and approval of significant management
judgements and assumptions, including portfolio
segmentation, model selections, key parameters
estimation, determination of significant increase in credit
risk, identification of default and credit-impaired assets
and forward-looking measurement;

(3) Internal controls over the accuracy and completeness of
data used by the models;

(4) Internal controls relating to estimated future cash flows
and calculations of present values of such cash flows for
corporate loans and advances in stage l11;

(5) Internal controls over the information systems for ECL
measurement;

(6) Review and approval of the measurement result of
expected credit losses for loans and advances to
customers.

We reviewed the modelling methodologies for ECL
measurement, and assessed the reasonabl eness of the
significant judgements and assumptions involved, including
portfolio segmentation, models selections, key parameters
estimation (including probability of default, loss given
default, exposure at default etc.) and so on. We examined the
ECL calculation engines on a sample basis, to validate
whether or not the ECL calculation engines reflect the
management’s modelling methodol ogies.

488/492



Key Audit Matter

EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0(E24593)
ooOooooo
How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Measurement of expected credit losses for |oans and advances
to customers (Continued)

The measurement of ECL for loans and advances to
customers involves significant management judgments and
assumptions, primarily including:

(1) Segmentation of portfolio based on credit risk
characteristics, selection of appropriate models and
determination of relevant key parameters;

(2) Determination of whether or not there was a significant
increase in credit risk, default or credit-impaired;

(3) Inputs and assumptions used to estimate the impact of
forward looking information and multiple economic
scenarios;

(4) Estimation of future cash flows for corporate loans and
advancesin stage I11.

The Group established internal controls for the measurement
of ECL.

Measurement of ECL for |oans and advances to customers
involved complex models and significant management
judgements over parameters and data inputs, and hence was
identified as a key audit matter.

We performed substantive testing over a sample of loans and
advances to customers, and considered financial and non-
financial information, relevant external evidence and other
factors of the borrowers, to assess the appropriateness of
management’s identification of significant increase in credit
risk, defaults and credit-impaired loans.

For forward-looking measurement, we reviewed management
's analysis of their selection of economic indicators, economic
scenarios and weightings assigned. We assessed the
reasonableness of the parameters and inputs used

in the forward looking and multiple economic scenarios
models. We performed sensitivity analysis of the economic
indicators, economic scenarios and weightings assigned.

For corporate loans and advances in stage |11, we examined,
on asample basis, forecasted future cash flows prepared by
the Group based on financial information of borrowers and
guarantors, latest collateral valuations and other available
information together with discount ratesin supporting the
computation of loss allowance.

We examined critical data elements to the ECL models on
selected samples, including historical data and data at the
measurement date, to assess their accuracy and completeness.
We also tested the interfaces of the major data transfer
between the ECL calculation engines and relevant
information systems, to verify their accuracy and

compl eteness.

Based on our procedures performed, in the context of the
inherent uncertainties associated with measurement of ECL
for loans and advances to customers, the models, key
parameters, significant judgement and assumptions adopted
by management and the measurement results were considered
acceptable.
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How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Consolidation of Structured Entities

Refer to Note Il 2, Note I11 5 and Note IV 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Structured entities primarily included Wealth Management
Products (“WMPs"), securitization products, funds, trust
investment plans and asset management plans issued,
managed and/or invested by the Group. As at 31 December
2019, total assets of the consolidated structured entities and
the carrying amount of unconsolidated structured entities
invested by the Group included in the consolidated statement
of financial position amounted to RMB464.48 billion and
RMB73.52 hillion, respectively. In addition, as at 31
December 2019, total assets of non-principal guaranteed
WMPs, funds and asset management plans sponsored and
managed by the Group which were not consolidated and not
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
amounted to RMB1,960.70 billion and RMB478.34 hillion,
respectively.

Management had determined whether the Group had control
of certain structured entities based on their assessment of the
Group’s power over, its exposure to variable returns from its
involvement with, and its ability to useits power to affect the
amount of its returns from these structured entities

The significant judgement exercised by management in
assessing whether the Group had control of structured entities
and the amount of such structured entities resulted in this
matter being identified as a key area of audit focus.

We evaluated and tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the Group’s relevant controls over
consolidation assessment of structured entities, including
approval of transaction structure, review and approval of
contractual terms, variable return computations, and
consolidation assessment results.

We selected samples of structured entities and assessed the
Group'’s contractual rights and obligations in light of the
transaction structures, and evaluated the Group's power over
the structured entities. We performed independent analysis
and tests on the variable returns from the structured entities,
including but not limited to commission income and asset
management fees earned by the Group as the asset manager,
the retention of residual income, and, if any, the liquidity and
other support provided to the structured entities.

We also assessed whether the Group acted as aprincipa or an
agent, through analysis of the scope of the Group’s decision-
making authority over the sampled structured entities, the
remuneration to which the Group was entitled for asset
management services, the Group’s exposure to variability of
returns from its other interests in the structured entities, and
the rights held by other partiesin the structured entities.

Based on the procedures performed, we found management’s
consolidation judgment of these structured entities acceptable.
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Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises al of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give atrue and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financia statementsthat are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as abody, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with |SAs, we exercise professiona judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them al relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communi cated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these mattersin our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Leung Wai Kin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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